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Part

Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Care Investment Trust Inc all references to Care the Company we us and our mean Care

Investment Trust Inc and its subsidiaries makes forward-looking statements in this Form 10-K that are

subject to risks and uncertainties Forward-looking statements include all statements that do not relate solely to

historical or current facts and can be identified by the use of words such as may will expect believe

intend plan estimate continue should and other comparable terms These forward-looking

statements include information about possible or assumed future results of our business and our financial

condition liquidity results of operations plans and objectives They also include among other things

statements concerning anticipated revenues income or loss capital expenditures dividends capital structure

or other financial terms as well as statements regarding subjects that are forward-looking by their nature

such as

our business and financing strategy

our ability to obtain future financing arrangements

our ability to acquire investments on attractive terms

our understanding of our competition

our projected operating results

market trends

estimates relating to our future dividends

completion of any pending transactions

projected capital expenditures and

the impact of technology on our operations and business

Readers are cautioned that while forward-looking statements reflect our good faith belief and best

judgment based upon current information they are not guarantees of future performance and are subject to

known and unknown risks and uncertainties The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update or

revise any forward-looking statements whether as result of new information future events or otherwise

Shareholders and investors are cautioned not to unduly rely on such forward-looking statements when

evaluating the information presented in the Companys filings and reports Actual results may differ materially

from the expectations contained in the forward-looking statements as result of various factors including

among others

the factors referenced in this Form 10-K including those set forth under the section captioned Risk

Factors

general volatility of the securities markets in which we invest and the market price of our common

stock

changes in our business or investment strategy

changes in healthcare laws and regulations

availability terms and deployment of capital

availability of qualified personnel

changes in our industry interest rates the debt securities markets the general economy or the

commercial finance and real estate markets specifically

the degree and nature of our competition



the performance and financial condition of borrowers operators and tenants

increased rates of default and/or decreased recovery rates on our investments

increased prepayments of the mortgages and other loans underlying our mortgage-backed or other

asset-backed securities

changes in governmental regulations tax rates and similar matters

legislative and regulatory changes including changes to laws governing the taxation of REITs or the

exemptions from registration as an investment company

availability of investment opportunities in real estate-related and other securities

the adequacy of our cash reserves and working capital and

the timing of cash flows if any from our investments

We are not obligated to publicly update or revise any forward looking statements whether as result of

new information future events or otherwise

ITEM Business

Overview

Care Investment Trust Inc all references to Care the Company we us and our means Care

Investment Trust Inc and its subsidiaries is an externally managed real estate investment trust REIT
formed to invest in healthcare-related real estate and mortgage debt Care was incorporated in Maryland in

March 2007 and we completed our initial public offering on June 22 2007 The Company was originally

positioned to make mortgage investments in healthcare-related properties and to opportunistically invest in

real estate through utilizing the origination platform of its external manager CIT Healthcare LLC

Manager Care acquired its initial portfolio of mortgage loan assets from the Manager in exchange for

cash proceeds from our initial public offering and common stock In response to dislocations in the overall

credit market and in particular the securitized financing markets in late 2007 we redirected our focus to

place greater emphasis on high-quality healthcare-related real estate equity investments

Our Manager is healthcare finance company that offers full-spectrum of financing solutions and

related strategic advisory services to companies across the healthcare industry throughout the United States

Our Manager was formed in 2004 and is wholly-owned subsidiary of CIT Group Inc CIT leading

middle market global commercial finance company that provides financial and advisory services

As of December 31 2008 we maintained diversified investment portfolio consisting of $64.9 million in

unconsolidated joint ventures that own real estate $105.1 million invested in wholly owned real estate and

$159.9 million in 18 investments in mortgage loans Our current investments in healthcare real estate include

medical office buildings and assisted and independent living facilities and Alzheimer facilities Our loan

portfolio is primarily composed of first mortgages on skilled nursing facilities assisted and independent living

facilities and mixed-use facilities

As REIT we generally will not be subject to federal taxes on our REIT taxable income to the extent

that we distribute our taxable income to stockholders and maintain our qualification as REIT

Real Estate Equity Investments

Unconsolidated Joint Ventures

Cambridge Medical Office Building Portfolio

We own an 85% equity interest in eight limited liability entities that own nine Class medical office

buildings developed and managed by Cambridge Holdings Inc Cambridge totaling approximately

767000 square
feet located in major metropolitan markets in Texas and Louisiana These facilities are

situated on leading medical center campuses or adjacent to prominent acute care hospitals or ambulatory



surgery centers and are affiliated with or tenanted by the leading hospital systems and doctor groups in their

respective markets including MD Anderson Cancer Center and Texas Health Resources Cambridge owns the

remaining 15% interest in the facilities and operates them under long-term management contracts Under the

terms of the management agreement Cambridge acts as the manager and leasing agent of each medical office

building subject to certain removal rights held by us The medical office building properties are 95% leased at

December 31 2008

The table below provides information with respect to the Cambridge portfolio

Weighted average rent per square foot $22.37

Average square foot per tenant 6396

Weighted average remaining lease term 6.43 years

Largest tenant as percentage of total rental square feet 8.83%

Lease Maturity Schedule

of

Number of Rental

Year tenants Square Ft Annual Rent SqFt

2009 11 23451 477485 2.78%

2010 10 21387 464563 2.71%

2011 24 83637 1612876 9.39%

2012 13 62345 1372870 7.99%

2013 19 74004 1523532 8.87%

2014 23080 476153 2.77%

2015 12 95163 1899584 11.06%

2016 11 57610 1214008 7.07%

2017 20982 950183 5.53%

2018 55770 1418231 8.26%

Thereafter 12 250084 5762400 33.57%

100.0%

We paid $64.7 million in cash and equity for our interests in the Cambridge portfolio which consisted of

$61.9 million of cash and commitments to issue operating partnership units to Cambridge with present value

of $2.9 million at December 31 2007 subject to the underlying properties achieving certain performance

hurdles The operating partnership units are held in escrow and will be released to Cambridge only upon the

achievement of certain performance measures Under the terms of our investment we will receive an initial

preferred minimum return of 8.0% on capital invested described below with 2.0% per annum escalations

until the earlier of seven years from the date of close or when the entities have generated sufficient cash to

provide the preferred return without reliance on the credit support for four of six consecutive quarters with

total cash generated from the portfolio for the six quarters sufficient to cover the preferred return over that

period Thereafter the Companys preferred equity interest converts to pari-passu common equity 85% to Care

and 15% to Cambridge

The preferred return is guaranteed by three forms of credit support which are in place until the earlier of

December 31 2014 and ii cash flow from the properties generates the required return The forms of

guarantee are claim on cash flow attributable to Cambridges 15% stake ii claim on the dividends

payable on the operating partnership units issued to Cambridge and iii our ability to cancel operating

partnership units issued at close currently held in escrow If in any given quarter the entities are not able to

generate cash flow from the properties to meet the required preferred return for the Company the Company

will rely first on claim on cash flow attributable to Cambridges 15% stake If that is not sufficient then the

Company will rely on claim on the dividends payable on the operating partnership units issued to



Cambridge Finally if that is still not sufficient the Company will rely on its ability to cancel operating

partnership units issued at the closing of our investment currently held in escrow

Our 8% preferred return is based on our capital invested at the closing of our investment in Cambridge

on December 31 2007 Our capital invested at the closing was $72.4 million which was comprised of

$61.9 million in cash and commitments to issue 700000 operating partnership units valued at $15.00 per unit

or $10.5 million in the aggregate The obligation to issue or more specifically to release from escrow the

operating partnership units is accounted for as derivative obligation with value tied both to our stock price

as each operating partnership unit is convertible into one share of our common stock and to the performance

of the Cambridge portfolio in that we are able to cancel operating partnership units during any quarter in

which the operating cash flow from our share of the portfolio does not generate our preferred return and our

other credit support mechanisms claim on the operating cash flow from Cambridges .15% stake in the

entities or claim on the dividends payable on the operating partnership units do not enable us to meet our

preferred return We are required to mark this obligation to fair value each period However regardless of the

fair value of our obligation to issue these operating partnership units as of any reporting period our 8%

preferred return remains fixed to the initial capital that we invested to acquire our Cambridge interests and

escalates at rate of 2.0% per annum

We also have right of first refusal to purchase an 85% economic interest in four medical office buildings

currently under development by Cambridge totaling approximately 348000 square feet for an aggregate

purchase price of $121 million

Under the terms of our investment Cambridge has the contractual right to put its 15% interest in the

properties to us at an agreed upon market or appraised value in the event we enter into change in control

transaction

Senior Management Concepts Senior Living Portfolio

We own interests in four independent and assisted living facilities located in Utah and operated by Senior

Management Concepts LLC SMC privately held operator of senior housing facilities The four facilities

contain approximately 233 independent living units and 159 assisted living units and each facility is 100%

private pay Affiliates of SMC have entered into 15-year leases on the facilities that expire in 2022 These

facilities are 88% occupied as of December 31 2008

We paid $6.8 million in exchange for 100% of the preferred equity interests and 10% of the common

equity interests in the joint venture Care will receive preferred return of 15.0% on its invested capital and

an additional common equity return payable for up to ten years equal to 10.0% of projected free cash flow

after payment of debt service and the preferred return Our preferred equity interest is not subject to

redemption for period of two years and we retain an option to put our preferred equity interest to our

partner at par any time after the eighth anniversary of the closing

Owned Real Estate

Bickford Senior Living Portfolio

We acquired 14 assisted living independent living and Alzheimer facilities from Eby Realty Group LLC

an affiliate of Bickford Senior Living Group LLC Eby privately owned operator of senior housing

facilities in two sale-leaseback transactions in June 2008 and September 2008 We have leased back the

twelve facilities we acquired in June 2008 and the two facilities we acquired in September 2008 to Eby Realty

Group through master lease agreement for 15 years and 14.75 years respectively with four 10-year

extension options The portfolio developed and managed by Bickford contains 643 units and is located in

Illinois Indiana Iowa and Nebraska The portfolio which is 100% private pay was 92%

occupied as of December 31 2008

Under the terms of the master lease the minimum rent due for the first year on the 14 Bickford

properties is $9.1 million or base lease rate of 8.21% Base rent during the initial 15 year lease term shall

increase at the rate of three percent per year Bickford shall also be liable for additional base rent of



$0.3 million or an additional base lease rate of 0.26% during the first year of the lease term Additional base

rent shall also increase at the rate of three percent per year during the initial term of the master lease Payment

of the additional minimum rent which shall accrue during the first three years of the lease term shall be

deferred to years four and five of the initial lease term The master lease is triple net lease and as such

the master lessee is responsible for all taxes insurance utilities maintenance and capital costs relating to the

facilities The obligations of the master lessee under the master lease are also secured by all assets of the

master lessee and the subtenant facility operators and pending achievement of certain lease coverage ratios

by second mortgage on another Eby project and pledge of minority interests in six unrelated Eby projects

The purchase price for these acquisitions was $111.0 million and Eby Realty Group has the opportunity

under an earn out agreement to receive an additional $7.2 million based on the performance of the properties

and under certain other conditions

Loans Held at the Lower of Cost or Market LOCOM
Upon consummation of our initial public offering our Manager through an affiliate contributed

portfolio of healthcare-related mortgage assets in exchange for $204.3 million in cash and $78.8 million in

shares of Care common stock the Contribution Portfolio

Investments in loans amounted to $159.9 million at December 31 2008 We account for our investment

in loans in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard SFAS No 65 Accounting for

Certain Mortgage Banking Activities SFAS No 65 Under SFAS No 65 loans expected to be held for the

foreseeable future or to maturity should be held at amortized cost and all other loans should be held at the

lower of cost or market LOCOM measured on an individual basis At December 31 2008 in connection

with our decision to reposition ourselves from mortgage REIT to traditional direct property ownership

REIT referred to as an equity REIT see Notes and to the financial statements and as result of

current market conditions we transferred our portfolio of mortgage loans to LOCOM because we are not

certain that we will hold the portfolio of loans either until maturity or for the foreseeable future In connection

with the transfer we recorded valuation allowance of approximately $29.3 million representing the

difference between our carrying amount of the loans and their estimated fair value at December 31 2008

Our investments include senior whole loans and participations secured primarily by real estate property in

the form of pledges of ownership interests direct liens or other security interests The investments are in

various geographic markets in the United States These investments are all variable rate at December 31 2008

had weighted average spread of 5.76% over one month LIBOR some loans are subject to interest rate

floors and an average maturity of approximately 2.1 years One month LIBOR was 0.45% at December 31



2008 The effective yield on our portfolio for the year ended December 31 2008 was 6.20% As of

December 31 2008 except as described in footnote we held the following loan investments in

thousands

Location
Carrying Interest Maturity

Property Type City State Amount Rate Date

SNF Middle River Maryland 9185 L3.75% 03/31/11

SNF/ALFJIL Various Washington/Oregon 26012 L2.75% 10/04/11

SNF d/e Various Michigan 23767 L2.25% 03/26/12

SNF d/e Various Texas 6540 L3.00% 06/30/11

SNF d/e Austin Texas 4604 L3.00% 05/30/11

SNF b/de Various Virginia 27401 L2.50% 03/01/12

SNFIICF d/e Various Illinois 29045 L3.00% 10/31/Il

SNF d/e San Antonio Texas 8412 L3.50% 02/09/11

SNF/ALF d/e Nacogdoches Texas 9696 L3 15% 10/02/11

SNF/Sr.Appts/ALF Various Texas/Louisiana 15682 L4.30% 02/01/11

ALF Daytona Beach Florida 3688 L3.43% 08/11/11

SNF/IL cId/e Georgetown Texas 5980 L3.00% 07/31/09

SNF Aurora Colorado 9151 L5.74% 08/04/10

SNF Various Michigan 10080 L7.00% 02/19/10

Investment in loans gross
189243

Valuation allowance 29327

Loans held at LOCOM $159916

SNF refers to skilled nursing facilities ALF refers to assisted living facilities IL refers to independent living

facilities ICF refers to intermediate care facility and Sr Appts refers to senior living apartments

Loan sold to our Manager on February 2009 for $22543 under our Mortgage Purchase Agreement See Item

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Liquidity and Capital

Resources

Borrower has the ability to extend the maturity date to 7/31/12 upon advanced written notice and subject to

compliance with certain covenants stipulated in the loan agreement

Pledged as collateral for borrowings under our warehouse line of credit On March 2009 Care repaid the

outstanding borrowings on its warehouse line in full

The mortgages are subject to various interest rate floors ranging from 6.00% to 11.5%

All loans were paying in accordance with their terms as of December 31 2008 and we have no allowance

for loan losses Eight loans secured by first mortgages with total principal balance net of premiums of

$114.8 million at December 31 2008 were pledged as collateral at December 31 2008 for borrowings under

our warehouse line of credit see Note

Our mortgage portfolio gross at December 31 2008 is diversified by property type and U.S geographic

region as follows
December 31 December 31

2008 2008

Carrying of Carrying of

By Property Type Amount Portfolio By U.S Geographic Region Amount Portfolio

Skilled Nursing 99.1 52.4% Midwest 62.9 33.2%

Mixed-use 86.4 45.6% South 54.6 28.9%

Assisted Living 3.7 2.0% Mid-Atlantic 36.6 19.3%

Total $189.2 100.0% Northwest 26.0 13.8%

West 9.1 4.8%

Total $189.2 100.0%



Mixed-use facilities refer to properties that provide care to different segments of the elderly population based on their needs such as

Assisted Living Facilities with Skilled Nursing capabilities

At December 31 2008 our portfolio of eighteen mortgages was extended to fourteen borrowers with the

largest exposure to any single borrower at 20.9% of the carrying value of the portfolio The carrying value of

three loans each to different borrowers with exposures of more than 10% of the carrying value of the total

portfolio amounted to 54.9% of the portfolio At December 31 2007 the largest exposure to any single

borrower was 12.7% of the portfolio carrying value and five other loans each to different borrowers each with

exposures of more than 10% of the carrying value of the total portfolio amounted to 55.2% of the portfolio

Our Manager

CIT Healthcare

Our Manager CIT Healthcare is healthcare finance company that offers full spectrum of financing

solutions and related strategic advisory services to companies across the healthcare industry throughout the

United States We believe that our Manager effectively leverages its extensive knowledge and understanding of

the healthcare industry through its client-centric and industry-focused model Our Manager meets the diverse

commercial financing needs of U.S healthcare providers including hospitals and health systems outpatient

centers skilled nursing facilities assisted living facilities physician practices home care and hospice

companies ambulatory surgery centers pharmaceutical and medical technology companies long-term care

facilities and vendors serving healthcare providers Our Managers leadership team has extensive experience

in addressing the capital requirements and advisory service needs of the healthcare marketplace allowing it to

offer full suite of customized flexible healthcare financing solutions and services

As of December 31 2008 our Manager employed approximately 90 professionals with substantial

experience and expertise in origination underwriting structuring portfolio management servicing

securitization syndication and secondary market transactions Of these professionals our Manager had

12 employees originating and sourcing investment opportunities for our consideration We believe our

Manager is one of the leading healthcare financiers in the country During 2008 our Manager evaluated

approximately $13.1 billion of transactions for its own account closed approximately $0.8 billion of

commitments and funded approximately $0.5 billion of healthcare loans in the United States As of

December 31 2008 our Manager owned assets of approximately $2.6 billion

CIT Group

CIT Group NYSE CIT is bank holding company that provides financial products and advisory

services to more than one million customers in over 50 countries across 30 industries leader in middle

market financing CIT has more than $60 billion in managed assets at December 31 2008 and provides

financial solutions for more than half of the Fortune 1000 member of the SP 500 and Fortune 500 it

maintains leading positions in asset-based cash flow and Small Business Administration lending equipment

leasing vendor financing and factoring

At December 31 2008 CIT through our Manager and CIT Holding owned 37.9% of our outstanding

common stock

The Healthcare Industry

According to the 2007 National Health Expenditures forecast published by the Centers for Medicare and

Medicaid Services CMS healthcare spending in the United States is projected to grow at an average

annual growth rate of approximately 6.7% though 2017 the termination year of the forecast As percentage

of Gross Domestic Product GDP healthcare spending is projected to increase by over percentage points

to 19.5% of GDP in 2017 at an expected spending level of over $4.3 trillion

The U.S population 65 years and older is growing in large part due to the coming of age of the baby
boomer generation as well as advances in medicine and technology that have increased the average life



expectancy of the population According to the U.S Census Bureau the 65 and older segment of the

population is projected to increase by almost 50% between the years 2000 and 2050

Delivery of healthcare services in the U.S requires variety of physical plants including hospitals

surgical centers managed care facilities laboratories research facilities and medical office buildings among

others and healthcare providers require real estate investors and financiers to grow their businesses Given the

demographic trends for healthcare spending and an aging population with an increased life expectancy we

believe that the healthcare-related real estate market provides attractive investment opportunities

Origination Opportunities from Portfolio Clients

Our investments are primarily sourced and originated by our Managers origination team which consisted

of 12 members as of December 31 2008 and we participate in investments in which our Manager and

affiliates also participate The Company has adopted certain policies that are designed to eliminate or

minimize certain potential conflicts of interest with our Manager and our board of directors has established

investment guidelines The conflict of interest policy with our Manager includes the first right to invest pan

passu co-investments participations pro-rata fee sharing and legal services by CIT among other provisions

In soliciting and evaluating these opportunities our Manager has developed considerable institutional

relationships within the healthcare industry In addition our Manager services the loans that it directly

originates and monitors our portfolio to generate new origination opportunities from existing assets

Investment Guidelines

Our board of directors has adopted general guidelines for our investments and borrowings to the effect

that

no investment will be made that would cause us to fail to qualify as REIT

no investment will be made that would cause us to be regulated as an investment company under the

Investment Company Act of 1940 as amended

no more than 20% of our equity determined as of the date of such investment will be invested in any

single asset except with respect to the initial assets contributed to us by CIT Holding in connection

with our initial public offering and no more than 40% of our equity determined as of the date of such

investment will be invested in projects controlled by single borrower or group
of affiliated borrowers

that would form consolidated group under GAAP

our leverage will generally not exceed 80% of the total value of our investments

we will maintain portfolio of geographically diverse assets

no investment will be made that does not comply with our conflicts of interest policy and

our Manager must seek approval of majority of our independent directors before engaging in any

transaction that is in contravention of our investment guidelines

These investment guidelines may be changed or waived by our board of directors which must include

majority of our independent directors without the approval of our stockholders

Our Facilities

The market for healthcare real estate is extensive and includes real estate owned by variety of

healthcare operators The following is general description of the types of facilities that we currently invest in

or target for investment

Senior Housing Facilities

Senior housing properties include independent living facilities assisted living facilities and continuing

care retirement communities which cater to different segments of the elderly population based upon their

10



needs Services provided by our tenants in these facilities are primarily paid for by the residents directly or

through private insurance and are less reliant on government reimbursement programs such as Medicaid and

Medicare

Independent Living Facilities or ILFs ILFs are designed to meet the needs of seniors who choose to

live in an environment surrounded by their peers with services such as housekeeping meals and

activities These residents generally do not need assistance with activities of daily living including

bathing eating and dressing However residents have the option to contract for these services

Assisted Living Facilities or ALFs ALFs are licensed care facilities that provide personal care

services support and housing for those who need help with activities of daily living yet require limited

medical care The programs and services may include transportation social activities exercise and

fitness programs beauty or barber shop access hobby and craft activities community excursions meals

in dining room setting and other activities sought by residents These facilities are often in apartment-

like buildings with private residences ranging from single rooms to large apartments Certain ALFs may

offer higher levels of personal assistance for residents with Alzheimers disease or other forms of

dementia Levels of personal assistance are based in part on local regulations

Continuing Care Retirement Communities or CCRCs CCRCs provide housing and health-related

services under long-term contracts This alternative is appealing to residents as it eliminates the need

for relocating when health and medical needs change thus allowing residents to age in place Some

CCRCs require substantial entry fee or buy-in fee and most also charge monthly maintenance fees in

exchange for living unit meals and some health services CCRCs typically require the individual to

be in relatively good health and independent upon entry

Medical Office Buildings

MOBs typically contain physicians offices and examination rooms and may also include pharmacies

hospital ancillary service space and outpatient services such as diagnostic centers rehabilitation clinics and

day-surgery operating rooms While these facilities are similar to commercial office buildings they require

more plumbing electrical and mechanical systems to accommodate multiple exam rooms that may require

sinks in every room brighter lights and special equipment such as for dispensing medical gases

Hospitals

Services provided in these facilities are paid for by private sources third-party payors e.g insurance and

health management organizations or HMOs or through the Medicare and Medicaid programs

Acute Care Hospitals Acute care hospitals offer wide range of services such as fully-equipped

operating and recovery rooms obstetrics radiology intensive care open heart surgery
and coronary

care neurosurgery neonatal intensive care magnetic resonance imaging nursing units oncology

clinical laboratories respiratory therapy physical therapy nuclear medicine rehabilitation services and

outpatient services

Long-Term Acute Care Hospitals Long-term acute care hospitals provide care for patients with

complex medical conditions that require longer stays and more intensive care monitoring or

emergency back-up than that available in most skilled nursing-based programs

Specialty Hospitals Specialty hospitals are licensed as acute care hospitals but focus on providing care

in specific areas such as cardiac orthopedic and womens conditions or specific procedures such as

surgery and are less likely to provide emergency services

Rehabilitation Hospitals Rehabilitation hospitals provide inpatient and outpatient care for patients who

have sustained traumatic injuries or illnesses such as spinal cord injuries strokes head injuries

orthopedic problems work-related disabilities and neurological diseases

11



Skilled Nursing Facilities

Skilled Nursing Facilities or SNFs offer restorative rehabilitative and custodial nursing care for people

not requiring the more extensive and sophisticated treatment available at hospitals Ancillary revenues and

revenue from sub-acute care services are derived from providing services to residents beyond room and board

and include occupational physical speech respiratory and intravenous therapy wound care oncology

treatment brain injury care and orthopedic therapy as well as sales of pharmaceutical products and other

services Certain skilled nursing facilities provide some of the foregoing services on an out-patient basis

Skilled nursing services provided by our tenants in these facilities are primarily paid for either by private

sources or through the Medicare and Medicaid programs

Outpatient Centers

Outpatient centers deliver healthcare services in dedicated settings utilizing specialized staff to provide

more efficient and comfortable experience to the patient than is available in traditional acute care hospital

Ambulatory surgery centers dialysis clinics and oncology diagnostic and treatment centers are examples of

the type of outpatient facilities we intend to target for investment

Other Healthcare Facilities

Other healthcare facilities may include physician group practice clinic facilities health and wellness

centers and facilities used for other healthcare purposes behavioral health and manufacturing facilities for

medical devices

Availability of Documents and Other Information

Our annual report on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form lO-Q and current reports on Form 8-K and

amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13a or 15d of the Exchange Act are

available free of charge on Cares internet website www.carereit.com as soon as reasonably practicable after

such information is electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission

SEC We also make available on our web site our Code of Ethical Conduct that applies to our directors

and executive officers as well as to employees of our Manager when acting for or on behalf of Care In the

event that we make changes in or provide waivers of the provisions of this Code of Ethical Conduct that the

SEC requires us to disclose we intend to disclose these events on our website In addition the SEC maintains

an internet website that contains reports proxy and information statements and other information related to

registrants who file electronically with the SEC at www.sec.gov Access to this site is free of charge

Healthcare Regulation

Overview

The tenants and operators of our properties are typically subject to extensive federal state and local laws

and regulations including but not limited to laws and regulations related to licensure conduct of operations

ownership of facilities addition of facilities services prices for services billing for services and the

confidentiality and security of health-related information These regulations are wide-ranging and complex

and may vary or overlap from jurisdiction to jurisdiction Compliance with such regulatory requirements as

interpreted and amended from time to time can increase operating costs and thereby adversely affect the

financial viability of our tenants and operators business These laws authorize periodic inspections and

investigations and identification of deficiencies that if not corrected could result in sanctions that include

suspension or loss of licensure to operate and loss of rights to participate in the Medicare and Medicaid

programs Regulatory agencies have substantial powers to affect the actions of tenants and operators of our

properties if the agencies believe that there is an imminent threat to patient welfare and in some states these

powers can include assumption of interim control over facilities through receiverships

Medicare is federal program that provides certain hospital nursing home and medical insurance benefits

to persons over the age of 65 certain persons with disabilities and persons with end-stage renal disease
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Medicare however only pays for 100 days of nursing home care per illness upon release from hospital

Medicaid is medical assistance program jointly funded by federal and state governments and administered by

each state pursuant to which benefits are available to certain indigent patients The majority of governmental

funding for nursing home care comes from the Medicaid
program to the extent that patient has spent their

assets down to predetermined level Medicaid reimbursement rates however typically are less than the

amounts charged by the tenants of our properties The states have been afforded latitude in setting payment

rates for nursing home providers Furthermore federal legislation restricts skilled nursing facility operators

ability to withdraw from the Medicaid program by restricting the eviction or transfer of Medicaid residents

For the last several years many states have announced actual or potential budget shortfalls situation which

will likely continue due to the current economic crisis As result of such actual or anticipated budget

shortfalls many states have implemented are implementing or considering implementing freezes or cuts in

Medicaid reimbursement rates paid to providers including skilled nursing providers Changes to Medicaid

eligibility criteria are also possible thereby reducing the number of beneficiaries eligible to have their medical

care reimbursed by government sources Any decrease in reimbursement rates could have significant effect

on tenants financial condition and as result could adversely impact us

The Medicare and Medicaid statutory framework is subject to administrative rulings interpretations and

discretion that affect the amount and timing of reimbursement made under Medicare and Medicaid The

amounts of program payments received by our operators and tenants can be changed from time to time and at

any time by legislative or regulatory actions and by determinations by agents for the programs due to an

economic downturn or otherwise Such changes may be applied retroactively under certain circumstances In

addition private payors including managed care payors continually demand discounted fee structures and the

assumption by healthcare providers of all or portion of the financial risk Efforts to impose greater discounts

and more stringent cost controls upon operators by private payors are expected to intensify and continue

However private payors and managed care payors that provide insurance coverage for nursing home care

assisted living or independent living is extremely limited The primary private source of coverage for nursing

home care and assisted living facilities is long-term care insurance which is costly and not widely held by

patients We cannot assure you that adequate third-party reimbursement levels will continue to be available for

services to be provided by the tenants and operators of our properties which currently are being reimbursed by

Medicare Medicaid and private payors Significant limits on the scope of services reimbursed and on

reimbursement rates and fees could have material adverse effect on these tenants and operators liquidity

financial condition and results of operations which could adversely affect their ability to make rental

payments under and otherwise comply with the terms of their leases with us

Changes in government regulations and reimbursement due to the economic downturn or otherwise

increased regulatory enforcement activity and regulatory non-compliance by our tenants and operators can all

have significant effect on their operations and financial condition and as result can adversely impact us

Please see ITEM 1A Risk Factors for more information

While different properties within our portfolio may be more or less likely subject to certain types of

regulation which in some cases is specific to the type of facility e.g the regulation of continuing care

retirement communities by state Departments of Insurance all healthcare facilities are potentially subject to

the full range of regulation and enforcement described more fully below We expect that the healthcare

industry will continue to face increased regulation and pressure in the areas of fraud waste and abuse cost

control healthcare management and provision of services as well as continuing cost control initiatives and

reform efforts generally Each of these factors can lead to reduced or slower growth in reimbursement for

certain services provided by our tenants and operators as well as reduced demand for certain of the services

that they provide In addition we believe healthcare services are increasingly being provided on an outpatient

basis or in the home and hospitals and other healthcare providers are increasingly facing the need to provide

greater services to uninsured patients all of which can also adversely affect the profitability of some of our

tenants and operators
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Fraud and Abuse

There are extensive federal and state laws and regulations prohibiting fraud and abuse in the healthcare

industry the violation of which could result in significant criminal and civil penalties that can materially affect

the tenants and operators of our properties The federal laws include

The anti-kickback provisions of the federal Medicare and Medicaid programs which prohibit among

other things knowingly and willfully soliciting receiving offering or paying any
remuneration

including any kickback bribe or rebate directly or indirectly in return for or to induce the referral of

an individual to person for the furnishing or arranging for the furnishing of any item or service for

which payment may be made in whole or in part under Medicare or Medicaid

The Stark laws which prohibit with limited exceptions referrals by physicians of Medicare or

Medicaid patients to providers of broad range of designated healthcare services with which physicians

or their immediate family members have ownership interests or certain other financial compensation

arrangements

The False Claims Act which prohibits any person from knowingly presenting false or fraudulent claims

for payment to the federal government including the Medicare and Medicaid programs

The Civil Monetary Penalties Law which authorizes the Department of Health and Human Services to

impose civil penalties administratively for fraudulent acts

The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 commonly referred to as HIPAA
which among other things protects the privacy and security of individually identifiable health

information by limiting its use and disclosure

Sanctions for violating these federal laws include criminal and civil penalties that range from punitive

sanctions damage assessments monetary penalties imprisonment denial of Medicare and Medicaid payments

and/or exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs These laws also impose an affirmative duty on

operators to ensure that they do not employ or contract with persons excluded from the Medicare and other

government programs

Many states have adopted or are considering legislative proposals similar to the federal fraud and abuse

and physician self-referral laws some of which extend beyond the Medicare and Medicaid programs to

prohibit the payment or receipt of remuneration for the referral of patients and physician self-referrals relating

to broader list of services and/or regardless of whether the service was reimbursed by Medicare or Medicaid

Many states have also adopted or are considering legislative proposals to increase patient protections such as

criminal background checks and limiting the use and disclosure of patient specific health information These

state laws also impose criminal and civil penalties similar to the federal laws

In addition various states have established minimum staffing requirements or may establish minimum

staffing requirements in the future for hospitals nursing homes and other healthcare facilities The

implementation of these staffing requirements in some states is not contingent upon any additional

appropriation of state funds in any budget act or other statute Our tenants and operators ability to satisfy

such staffing requirements will depend upon their ability to attract and retain qualified healthcare

professionals Failure to comply with such minimum staffing requirements may result in the imposition of

fines or other sanctions If states do not appropriate sufficient additional funds through Medicaid program

appropriations or otherwise to pay for any additional operating costs resulting from such minimum staffing

requirements our tenants and operators profitability may be materially adversely affected

Finally the majority of states have enacted laws implementing specific requirements in the event that the

personal information of patient or resident is compromised Although these requirements vary from state to

state notification of security breaches to the state Attorney General and affected patients or residents is often

required Notification may be costly and time consuming and failure to comply with these requirements may

result in civil or criminal penalties To the extent to which our tenants own or maintain personal information

they may be required to comply with the state security breach laws which could increase operating costs and

decrease tenants profitability
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In the ordinary course of their business the tenants and operators of our properties have been and are

subject regularly to inquiries inspections investigations and audits by federal and state agencies that oversee

these laws and regulations Skilled nursing facilities are licensed on an annual or bi-annual basis and certified

annually for participation in the Medicare and Medicaid programs through various regulatory agencies which

determine compliance with federal state and local laws Increased funding through recent federal and state

legislation has led to dramatic increase in the number of investigations and enforcement actions over the past

several years Private enforcement of healthcare fraud also has increased due in large part to amendments to

the civil False Claims Act in 1986 that were designed to encourage private individuals to sue on behalf of the

government These whistleblower suits by private individuals known as qui tam suits may be filed by almost

anyone including present and former patients or nurses and other employees HIPAA also created series of

new healthcare-related crimes

As federal and state budget pressures continue federal and state administrative agencies may also

continue to escalate investigation and enforcement efforts to eliminate waste and to control fraud and abuse in

governmental healthcare programs violation of any of these federal and state fraud and abuse laws and

regulations could have material adverse effect on our tenants and operators liquidity financial condition

and results of operations which could affect adversely their ability to make rental payments under or

otherwise comply with the terms of their leases with us

Healthcare Reform

As one of the largest industries in the United States healthcare continues to attract much legislative

interest and public attention In an effort to reduce federal spending on healthcare in 1997 the federal

government enacted the Balanced Budget Act BBA which contained extensive changes to the Medicare

and Medicaid programs including substantial Medicare reimbursement reductions for healthcare operations

For certain healthcare providers including hospitals and skilled nursing facilities implementation of the BBA

resulted in more drastic reimbursement reductions than had been anticipated In addition to its impact on

Medicare the BBA also afforded states more flexibility in administering their Medicaid plans including the

ability to shift most Medicaid enrollees into managed care plans without first obtaining federal waiver

The following key legislative and regulatory changes have been made to the BBA to provide some relief

from the drastic reductions in Medicare and Medicaid reimbursement resulting from implementation of the

BBA

The Balanced Budget Refinement Act of 1999 BBRA
The Medicare Medicaid and State Child Health Insurance Program Benefits Improvement and

Protection Act of 2000 BIPA
The one-time administrative fix to increase skilled nursing facility payment rates by 3.26% instituted

by the Centers for Medicare Medicaid Services CMS beginning on October 2003

The Medicare Prescription Drug Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 Medicare
Modernization Act sometimes referred to as the Drug Bill

The Deficit Reduction Act of 2005 Pub No 109-171 DRA
The Tax Relief and Health Care Act of 2006 Pub No 109-432 and

The Medicare Medicaid and SCHIP Extension Act of 2007 Pub No 110-173

In addition under the CMSs final rule updating Long Term Care DRGs for federal fiscal year 2007

reimbursement of uncollectible Medicare coinsurance amounts for all beneficiaries other than beneficiaries of

both Medicare and Medicaid was reduced from 100% to 75% for skilled nursing facility cost reporting

periods beginning on or after October 2005 CMS estimates that the change in treatment of bad debt will

result in decrease in payments to skilled nursing facilities over five year period from federal fiscal year

2006 to 2010 We cannot assure that future updates to the skilled nursing facilities prospective payment

system therapy services or Medicare reimbursement for skilled nursing facilities will not materially adversely
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impact our tenants which in turn could have materially adverse affect on us The Medicare and Medicaid

programs including payment levels and methods are continually evolving and have been less predictable

following the enactment of BBA and the subsequent reform activities Moreover the healthcare delivery

system is under constant scrutiny and has been identified by the new administration as key area of interest

and likely reform We cannot assure you that future healthcare legislation changes in the administration or

implementation of governmental healthcare reimbursement programs
will not have material adverse effect on

our tenants and operators liquidity financial condition or results of operations which could adversely affect

their ability to make rental payments to us and which in turn could have material adverse effect on us

Certificates of Need and State Licensing

Certificate of need or CON regulations control the development and expansion of healthcare services

and facilities in certain states Some states also require regulatory approval prior to changes in ownership of

certain healthcare facilities In the last several years in response to mounting Medicaid budget deficits many

states have begun to tighten CON controls including the imposition of moratoriums on new facilities and the

imposition of stricter controls over licensing and change of ownership rules States that do not have CON

programs may have other laws or regulations that limit or restrict the development or expansion of healthcare

facilities To the extent that CONs or other similar approvals are required for expansion or the operations of

our facilities either through facility acquisitions expansion or provision of new services or other changes

such expansion could be affected adversely by the failure or inability of our tenants and operators to obtain

the necessary approvals changes in the standards applicable to such approvals or possible delays and expenses

associated with obtaining such approvals

Entrance Fee Communities

Certain of our tenants are continuing care retirement communities which provide independent living

facilities assisted living facilities and nursing home care It is possible that these facilities are operated as an

entrance fee community Generally an entrance fee is an upfront fee or consideration paid by resident

portion of which may be refundable in exchange for some form of long-term benefit Some of the entrance

fee communities are subject to significant state regulatory oversight including for example oversight of each

facilitys financial condition establishment and monitoring of reserve requirements and other financial

restrictions the right of residents to cancel their contracts within specified period of time lien rights in favor

to the residents restrictions on change of ownership and similar matters Such oversight and the rights of

residents within these entrance fee communities may have an effect on the revenues or operations of our

tenants and therefore adversely impact us

Americans with Disabilities Act the ADA

Our properties must comply with the ADA to the extent that such properties are public

accommodations as defined in that statute The ADA may require removal of structural barriers to access by

persons with disabilities in certain public areas of our properties where such removal is readily achievable To

date no notices of substantial noncompliance with the ADA have been received by us Accordingly we have

not incurred substantial capital expenditures to address ADA concerns In some instances our tenants and

operators may be responsible for any additional amounts that may be required to make facilities ADA-

compliant Noncompliance with the ADA could result in imposition of fines or an award of damages to private

litigants The obligation to make readily achievable accommodations is an ongoing one and we continue to

assess our properties and make alterations as appropriate in this respect

Environmental Matters

wide variety of federal state and local environmental and occupational health and safety laws and

regulations affect healthcare facility operations These complex federal and state statutes and their

enforcement involve myriad regulations many of which involve strict liability on the part of the potential

offender Some of these federal and state statutes may directly impact us Under various federal state and

local environmental laws ordinances and regulations an owner or operator of real property or secured
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lender such as us may be liable for the costs of removal or remediation of hazardous or toxic substances at

under or disposed of in connection with such property as well as other potential costs relating to hazardous or

toxic substances including government fines and damages for injuries to persons adjacent property and/or

natural resources This may be true even if we did not cause or contribute to the presence of such substances

The cost of any required remediation removal fines or personal or property damages and the owners or

secured lenders liability therefore could exceed or impair the value of the property and/or the assets of the

owner or secured lender In addition the presence of such substances or the failure to properly dispose of or

remediate such substances may adversely affect the owners ability to sell or rent such property or to borrow

using such property as collateral which in turn could reduce our revenues For description of the risks

associated with environmental matters see ITEM 1A Risk Factors

Competition

We compete for real estate property investments with healthcare providers other healthcare-related

REITs healthcare lenders real estate partnerships banks insurance companies and other investors Some of

our competitors are significantly larger and have greater financial resources and lower cost of capital than

we do

The operators and managers of the properties in which we invest compete on local and regional basis

with other landlords and healthcare providers who own and operate healthcare-related real estate The

occupancy and rental income at our properties depend upon several factors including the number of

physicians using the healthcare facilities or referring patients to the facilities the number of patients or

residents of the healthcare-related facilities competing properties and healthcare providers and the size and

demographics of the population in the surrounding area Private federal and state payment programs and the

effect of laws and regulations may also have significant influence on the profitability of the properties and

their tenants

Employees

We do not currently have any employees nor do we anticipate hiring any employees in the near term

Our executive officers and other staff are all employed by our Manager or CIT Our Manager is reimbursed for

the cost of these employees and the services delivered through management fee under the requirements of

the Management Agreement by and between Care Investment Trust Inc and CIT Healthcare LLC See

Related Party Transactions and Agreements Management Agreement below

Certain U.S Federal Income Tax Considerations

The following discussion of Certain U.S Federal Income Tax Considerations is not inclusive of all

possible tax considerations and is not tax advice This summary does not deal with all tax aspects that might

be relevant to particular stockholder in light of such stockholders circumstances nor does it deal with

particular types of stockholders that are subject to special treatment under the Internal Revenue Code the

Code Provisions of the Code governing the federal income tax treatment of REITs and their stockholders

are highly technical and complex and this summary is qualified in its entirety by the applicable Code

provisions rules and Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder and administrative and judicial

interpretations thereof The following discussion is based on current law which could be changed at any time

and possibly applied retroactively

We elected on our 2007 U.S income tax return to be taxed as REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of

the Internal Revenue Code for our taxable year ended December 31 2007 To qualify as REIT we must

meet certain organizational and operational requirements including requirement to distribute at least 90% of

our REIT taxable income to stockholders As REIT we generally will not be subject to federal income tax

on taxable income that we distribute to our stockholders If we fail to qualify as REIT in any taxable year

we will then be subject to federal income tax on our taxable income at regular corporate rates and we will not

be permitted to qualify for treatment as REIT for federal income tax purposes for four years following the

year during which qualification is lost unless the Internal Revenue Service grants us relief under certain
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statutory provisions Such an event could materially adversely affect our net income and net cash available for

distributions to stockholders However we believe that we will operate in such manner as to qualify for

treatment as REIT and we intend to operate in the foreseeable future in such manner so that we will

qualify as REIT for federal income tax purposes We may however be subject to certain state and local

taxes

The Code defines REIT as corporation trust or association which is managed by one or more

trustees or directors ii the beneficial ownership of which is evidenced by transferable shares or by

transferable certificates of beneficial interest iii which would be taxable but for Sections 856 through 860

of the Code as domestic corporation iv which is neither financial institution nor an insurance company

subject to certain provisions of the Code the beneficial ownership of which is held by 100 or more

persons vi during the last half of each taxable year not more than 50% in value of the outstanding stock of

which is owned actually or constructively by five or fewer individuals and vii which meets certain other

tests described below regarding the amount of its distributions and the nature of its income and assets The

Code provides that conditions to iv inclusive must be met during the entire taxable year and that

condition must be met during at least 335 days of taxable year of 12 months or during proportionate

part of taxable year of less than 12 months

There are presently two gross income requirements for Care to qualify as REIT First for each taxable

year at least 75% of Cares gross income excluding gross income from prohibited transactions as defined

below and certain hedging transactions entered into after July 30 2008 must be derived directly or indirectly

from investments relating to real property or mortgages on real property or from certain types of temporary

investment income Second at least 95% of Cares gross income excluding gross income from prohibited

transactions and qualifying hedges for each taxable year must be derived from income that qualifies under the

75% test and other dividends interest and gain from the sale or other disposition of stock or securities

prohibited transaction is sale or other disposition of property other than foreclosure property held

primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of our trade or business

At the close of each quarter of Cares taxable year it must also satisfy tests relating to the nature of its

assets First at least 75% of the value of Cares total assets must be represented by real estate assets

including shares of stock of other REITs cash cash items or government securities For purposes of this test

the term real estate assets generally means real property including interests in real property and mortgages

and certain mezzanine loans and shares in other REITs as well as any stock or debt instrument attributable to

the investment of the proceeds of stock offering or public debt offering with term of at least five years

but only for the on-year period beginning on the date the proceeds are received Second not more than 25%

of Cares total assets may be represented by securities other than those in the 75% asset class Third of the

investments included in the 25% asset class and except for certain investments in other REITs qualified

REIT subsidiaries and TRSs the value of any one issuers securities owned by Care may not exceed 5% of

the value of Cares total assets and Care may not own more than 10% of the vote or value of the securities of

any one issuer Solely for purposes of the 10% value test however certain securities including but not limited

to securities having specified characteristics straight debt loans to an individual or an estate obligations

to pay rents from real property and securities issued by REIT are disregarded as securities Fourth not more

than 20% 25% for taxable years beginning on or after January 2009 of the value of Cares total assets

may be represented by securities of one or more TRSs

Care directly and indirectly owns interests in various partnerships and limited liability companies that

are either disregarded or treated as partnership for federal income tax purposes In the case of REIT that is

partner
in partnership or member of limited liability company that is treated as partnership under the

Code for purposes of the REIT asset and income tests the REIT will be deemed to own its proportionate

share of the assets of the partnership or limited liability company and will be deemed to be entitled to its

proportionate share of gross income of the partnership or limited liability company in each case determined

in accordance with the REITs capital interest in the entity subject to special rules related to the 10% asset

test
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The ownership of an interest in partnership or limited liability company by REIT may involve special

tax risks including the challenge by the Internal Revenue Service of the allocations of income and expense

items of the partnership or limited liability company which would affect the computation of taxable income of

the REIT and the status of the partnership or limited liability company as partnership as opposed to an

association taxable as corporation for federal income tax purposes

Care also owns interests in number of subsidiaries which are intended to be treated as qualified REIT

subsidiaries each QRS The Code provides that such subsidiaries will be ignored for federal income tax

purposes and all assets liabilities and items of income deduction and credit of such subsidiaries will be

treated as the assets liabilities and such items of Care If any partnership limited liability company or

subsidiary in which Care owns an interest were treated as regular corporation and not as partnership

subsidiary REIT QRS or taxable REIT subsidiary as the case may be for federal income tax purposes Care

would likely fail to satisfy the REIT asset tests described above and would therefore fail to qualify as REIT

unless certain relief provisions apply Care believes that each of the partnerships limited liability companies

and subsidiaries other than taxable REIT subsidiaries in which it owns an interest will be treated for tax

purposes as partnership disregarded entity in the case of 100% owned limited liability company REIT or

QRS as applicable although no assurance can be given that the Internal Revenue Service will not successfully

challenge the status of any such organization

REIT may own any percentage of the voting stock and value of the securities of corporation which

jointly elects with the REIT to be TRS provided certain requirements are met TRS generally may engage

in any business including the provision of customary or noncustomary services to tenants of its parent REIT

and of others except TRS may not manage or operate hotel or healthcare facility TRS is treated as

regular corporation and is subject to federal income tax and applicable state income and franchise taxes at

regular corporate rates In addition 100% tax may be imposed on REIT if its rental service or other

agreements with its TRS or the TRSs agreements with the REITs tenants are not on arms-length terms As

of December 31 2008 Care did not own any interests in subsidiaries which have elected to be taxable REIT

subsidiaries each TRS

In order to qualify as REIT Care is required to distribute dividends other than capital gain dividends

to its stockholders in an amount at least equal to the sum of 90% of its real estate investment trust

taxable income computed without regard to the dividends paid deduction and its net capital gain and

ii 90% of the net income if any after tax from foreclosure property minus the sum of certain items of

non-cash income Such distributions must be paid or treated as paid in the taxable year to which they relate

At Cares election distribution will be treated as paid in taxable year if it is declared before Care timely

files its tax return for such year and is paid on or before the first regular dividend payment after such

declaration provided such payment is made during the twelve month period following the close of such year

To the extent that Care does not distribute all of its net long-term capital gain or distributes at least 90% but

less than 100% of its real estate investment trust taxable income as adjusted Care will be required to pay

tax on the undistributed amount at regular federal and state corporate tax rates Furthermore if Care fails to

distribute during each calendar year at least the sum of 85% of its ordinary income for such year ii 95%

of its capital gain net income for such year and iii any undistributed taxable income from prior periods Care

would be required to pay in addition to regular federal and state corporate tax non-deductible 4% excise tax

on the excess of such required distributions over the amounts actually distributed While historically Care has

satisfied the distribution requirements discussed above by making cash distributions to its shareholders

REIT is permitted to satisfy these requirements by making distributions of cash or other property including in

limited circumstances its own stock For distributions with respect to taxable years ending on or before

December 31 2009 recent Internal Revenue Service guidance allows us to satisfy up to 90% of the

distribution requirements discussed above through the distribution of shares of Care common stock if certain

conditions are met
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Corporate Governance Guidelines

The Company has adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines relating to the conduct and operations of the

board of directors The Corporate Governance Guidelines are posted on the Companys website

www.carereit.com

Committee Charters

The Board of Directors has an Audit Committee Compensation Committee and Nominating Corporate

Governance and Investment Oversight Committee The board of directors has adopted written charters for each

committee which are available on the Companys website www.carereit.com

Codes of Conduct

The Company has adopted for the officers and board of directors of Care Code of Ethical Conduct to

govern its business practices In addition the Company has adopted Code of Business Conduct not only as

guidance for officers and directors of Care but for the employees of our Manager CIT Healthcare LLC and

its affiliates who provide services and support to Care Copies of each code are available on the Companys

website www.carereit.com

Sarbanes-Oxley Act Section 302 Certifications

The certifications of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company pursuant to

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 have been filed as exhibits to this Form 10-K
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ITEM 1A Risk Factors

Risks Related to Our Business

Adverse economic and geopolitical conditions and disruptions in the credit markets could have material

adverse effect on our results of operations financial condition and ability to pay distributions to you

Our business has been and may continue to be affected by market and economic challenges experienced

by the global economy or real estate industry as whole or by the local economic conditions in the markets

where our properties may be located including the current dislocations in the credit markets and general

global economic recession These current conditions or similar conditions existing in the future may

adversely affect our results of operations financial condition and ability to pay distributions as result of the

following among other potential consequences

the financial condition of our borrowers tenants and operators may be adversely affected which may

result in defaults under loans or leases due to bankruptcy lack of liquidity operational failures or for

other reasons

foreclosures and losses on our healthcare-related real estate investments and mortgage loans could be

higher than those generally experienced in the mortgage lending industry because portion of the

investments we make may be subordinate to other creditors

our loan-to-value ratio of loans that we have previously extended would increase and our collateral

coverage would weaken and increase the possibility of loss in the event of borrower default if there

is material decline in real estate values

our ability to borrow on terms and conditions that we find acceptable or at all may be limited which

could reduce our ability to pursue acquisition opportunities and refinance existing debt reduce our

returns from our acquisition activities and increase our future interest expense

reduced values of our properties may limit our ability to dispose of assets at attractive prices or to

obtain debt financing secured by our properties and may reduce the availability of unsecured loans

our Manager may refuse or be unable to meet its commitment to us to purchase the loan assets that we

may elect to sell to our Manager pursuant to the Mortgage Purchase Agreement and we may not be

able to obtain alternative financing on favorable terms or at all

We are dependent on our Managei who has limited experience operating REIT

Prior to our initial public offering our Manager had no experience operating REIT or operating

business in compliance with the numerous technical restrictions and limitations necessary to qualify as REIT

under the Internal Revenue Code or to be exempt from the Investment Company Act Our Managers lack of

experience in managing portfolio of assets under such constraints may hinder its ability to achieve our

investment objective In addition maintaining our REIT qualification and complying with the Investment

Company Act exemptions limit the types of investments particularly with respect to healthcare businesses

that we are able to make We can offer no assurance that our Manager will be successful at all or as

successful as in its previous endeavors Our board of directors is not expected to review or approve individual

investments unless our independent investment advisor function presently filled on rotational basis by an

independent board member determines that such review is appropriate or such review is required under our

investment guidelines

We are dependent upon our Manager for our success and may not find suitable replacement if the

management agreement is terminated or such key personnel are no longer available to us

We do not have any employees Our officers are employees of our Manager through CIT We do not have

any separate facilities and are completely reliant on our Manager which has significant discretion as to the

implementation of our operating policies and strategies We depend on the diligence skill and network of

business contacts of our Manager Our executive officers and our Manager will source evaluate negotiate
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structure close service and monitor our investments The management agreement does not require our

Manager to dedicate specific personnel to fulfilling its obligations to us under the management agreement or

require personnel to dedicate specific amount of time The departure of significant number of the

professionals of our Manager could have material adverse effect on our performance We are also subject to

the risk that our Manager will not renew the management agreement and that no suitable replacement will be

found to manage us After June 30 2010 the expiration of the initial term of the management agreement or

upon the expiration of any automatic renewal term our Manager may elect not to renew the management

agreement without cause without penalty on 180 days prior written notice to us We can offer no assurance

that our Manager will remain our external manager that we will be able to find an adequate replacement for

our Manager should our Manager elect not to renew the management agreement or that we will continue to

have access to our Managers principals and professionals or their information or deal flow

Our Manager has broad discretion to invest funds and may make investments that ultimately produce

investment returns which are substantially below expectations or that result in losses

Our Manager is authorized to follow very broad investment guidelines and has great latitude within those

guidelines in determining the types of assets it may decide are proper investments for us Our board of

directors will periodically review our investment guidelines and our investment portfolio However our board

of directors is not expected to review or approve each proposed investment unless our independent investment

advisor function presently filled on rotational basis by an independent board member determines that such

review is appropriate or such review is required under our investment guidelines In addition the directors and

our independent investment advisor will rely primarily on information provided to them by our Manager in

reviewing our investments and our portfolio Furthermore transactions entered into by our Manager on our

behalf may be costly difficult or impossible to unwind by the time they are reviewed by our board of

directors Our Manager has great latitude within the broad parameters of our investment guidelines in

determining the types of assets it may decide are proper investments for us which could result in investment

returns that are substantially below expectations or that result in losses which would materially and adversely

affect our business operations and results

Our failure to manage future growth effectively may have material negative impact on our business

financial condition and results of operations

Our ability to achieve our investment objective depends on our ability to grow which depends in turn on

the senior management team of our Manager and its ability to identify and invest in assets that meet our

investment criteria Accomplishing this result on cost-effective basis is largely function of our Managers

structuring of our investment process its ability to provide competent attentive and efficient services to us and

our access to financing on acceptable terms Our ability to grow is also dependent upon our Managers ability

to successfully hire train supervise manage and retain its employees We may not be able to manage growth

effectively or to achieve growth at all Any failure to manage our future growth effectively could have

material negative impact on our business financial condition and results of operations

Lenders may require us to enter into restrictive covenants relating to our operations

When we obtain financing lenders could impose restrictions on us that would affect our ability to incur

additional debt our capability to make distributions to stockholders and our flexibility to determine our

operating policies Loan documents we execute will contain negative covenants that may limit among other

things our ability to repurchase stock distribute more than certain amount of our funds from operations and

employ leverage beyond certain amounts

If our Manager ceases to be our Manager pursuant to the management agreement financial institutions

providing any credit facilities may not provide future financing to us

Financial institutions that finance our investments pursuant to credit facilities may require that our

Manager remain our Manager pursuant to the management agreement If our Manager ceases to be our

Manager it may constitute an event of default and the financial institution providing the credit facility may
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have the right to terminate its facility and any obligation to advance funds to us to finance our future

investments If our Manager ceases to be our Manager for any reason and as result we are unable to obtain

financing our growth may be limited We terminated our warehouse line of credit on March 2009 and

currently have no external credit facility

We may be unable to generate sufficient revenue from operations to pay our operating expenses and to

make distributions to our stockholders

As REIT we generally are required to distribute at least 90% of our REIT taxable income each year to

our stockholders and we intend to pay quarterly dividends to our stockholders such that we distribute all or

substantially all of our taxable income each year subject to certain adjustments and sufficient available cash

However we have not established minimum dividend payment level and our ability to pay dividends may be

adversely affected by the risk factors described in this document In the event of downturn in our operating

results and financial performance unanticipated declines in the value of our asset portfolio or prolonged

dislocations in the credit markets we may be unable to pay quarterly dividends to our stockholders The

timing and amount of our dividends are in the sole discretion of our board of directors and will depend upon

among other factors our earnings financial condition credit availability maintenance of our REIT

qualification and other tax considerations and capital expenditure requirements in each case as our board of

directors may deem relevant from time to time

Among the factors that could adversely affect our results of operations and impair our ability to pay

dividends to our stockholders are

the profitability of the investment of the net proceeds of our initial public offering

our ability to make profitable investments

defaults in our asset portfolio or decreases in the value of our portfolio

the fact that anticipated operating expense levels may not prove accurate as actual results my vary

from estimates and

our ability to obtain sources of credit on commercially acceptable terms

change in any one of these factors could affect our ability to pay dividends We cannot assure you that

we will be able to pay dividends to our stockholders in the future or that the level of any dividends we pay

will increase over time

In addition dividends paid to stockholders are generally taxable to our stockholders as ordinary income

but portion of our dividends may be designated by us as long-term capital gains to the extent they are

attributable to capital gain income recognized by us or may constitute return of capital to the extent they

exceed our earnings and profits as determined for tax purposes Distributions in excess of our earnings and

profits generally may be tax-free to the extent of each stockholders basis in our common stock and generally

may be treated as capital gain if they are in excess of basis

Our rights and the rights of our stockholders to take action against our directors and officers are limited

which could limit your recourse in the event of actions not in your best interests

Our charter limits the liability of our directors and officers to us and our stockholders for money

damages except for liability resulting from

actual receipt of an improper benefit or profit in money property or services or

final judgment based upon finding of active and deliberate dishonesty by the director or officer that

was material to the cause of action adjudicated

In addition our charter permits us to agree to indemnify our present and former directors and officers for

actions taken by them in those capacities to the maximum extent permitted by Maryland law Our bylaws

require us to indemnify each present or former director or officer to the maximum extent permitted by
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Maryland law in the defense of any proceeding to which he or she is made or threatened to be made party

by reason of his or her service to us In addition we may be obligated to fund the defense costs incurred by

our directors and officers

Compliance with our Investment Company Act exemption imposes limits on our operations

We conduct our operations so as not to become regulated as an investment company under the Investment

Company Act of 1940 as amended the Investment Company Act We rely on an exemption from

registration under Section 3c5C of the Investment Company Act which generally means that at least 55%

of our portfolio must be comprised of qualifying real estate assets and at least another 25% of our portfolio

must be comprised of additional qualifying real estate assets and real estate-related assets To comply with

these regulations we may from time to time acquire direct interests in real estate or buy or originate whole

mortgage loans and participations in whole mortgage loans provided that we control the right to foreclose the

mortgage securing the loan in the event of default certain Notes and other qualifying assets There can be

no assurance that we will be able to maintain this exemption from registration Further we may not be able to

invest in sufficient qualifying real estate assets and/or real estate-related assets and future revisions of the

Investment Company Act or further guidance from the staff of the SEC may cause us to lose our exemption or

force us to re-evaluate our portfolio and our business strategy

Our subsidiaries will be subject to similar restrictions under the Investment Company Act so that we do

not come within the definition of an investment company under the Investment Company Act These

restrictions also would limit the types of business in which we may engage failure to satisfy these

requirements could materially and adversely affect our business

As part of our Managers obligations under the management agreement our Manager agreed to use

commercially reasonable efforts to cooperate with our efforts to conduct our operations so as not to cause us

to become regulated as an investment company under the Investment Company Act and to refrain from any

action that in our Managers judgment would adversely affect our status as an entity that is not regulated as

an investment company under the Investment Company Act Failure to maintain this exemption would require

us to significantly restructure our business plan For example because affiliate transactions generally are

prohibited under the Investment Company Act we would not be able to enter into transactions with any of our

affiliates if we fail to maintain our exemption and may be required to terminate our management agreement

and any other agreements with affiliates which could have material adverse effect on our ability to operate

our business If the management agreement is terminated it could constitute an event of default under our

credit facilities and lenders may then have the right to terminate these facilities and their obligation to advance

funds to us to finance our future investments In addition we may not be able to identify replacement

manager on favorable terms if at all

Rapid changes in the market value or income from our real estate-related investments or non-qualifying

assets may make it more difficult for us to maintain our status as REIT or exemption from the Investment

Company Act

If the market value or income potential of real estate-related investments declines as result of change

in interest rates prepayment rates or other factors we may need to increase our real estate investments and

income and/or liquidate our non-qualifying assets in order to maintain our REIT status or exemption from the

Investment Company Act If the decline in real estate asset values and/or the decline in qualifying REIT

income occurs quickly it may be especially difficult to maintain REIT status These risks may be exacerbated

by the illiquid nature of both real estate and non-real estate assets that we may own We may have to make

investment decisions that we would not make absent the REIT and Investment Company Act considerations

Liability relating to environmental matters may decrease the value of the underlying properties

Under various federal state and local laws an owner or operator of real property may become liable for

the costs of cleanup of certain hazardous substances released on or under its property Such laws often impose

liability without regard to whether the owner or operator knew of or was responsible for the release of such
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hazardous substances The presence of hazardous substances may adversely affect an owners ability to sell

real estate or borrow using real estate as collateral To the extent that an owner of an underlying property

becomes liable for cleanup costs the ability of the owner to make debt payments may be reduced which in

turn may adversely affect the value of the relevant mortgage asset held by us

We are highly dependent on information systems and systems failures could significantly disrupt our

business which may in turn negatively affect the market price of our common stock and our ability to pay

dividends

We are highly dependent on information systems and systems failures could significantly disrupt our

business which may in turn negatively affect the market price of our common stock and our ability to pay

dividends

Our business is highly dependent on the communications and information systems of our Manager Any

failure or interruption of our Managers systems could cause delays or other problems in our securities trading

activities which could have material adverse effect on our operating results and negatively affect the market

price of our common stock and our ability to pay dividends

Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or war may affect the real estate industry our profitability and

the market for our common stock

The terrorist attacks on September 11 2001 disrupted the U.S financial markets including the real estate

capital markets and negatively impacted the U.S economy in general Any future terrorist attacks the

anticipation of any such attacks the consequences of any military or other response by the U.S and its allies

and other armed conflicts could cause consumer confidence and spending to decrease or result in increased

volatility in the United States and worldwide financial markets and economy The economic impact of any

such future events could also adversely affect the credit quality of some of our loans and investments and the

property underlying our securities

We may suffer losses as result of the adverse impact of any future attacks and these losses may

adversely impact our performance and revenues and may result in volatility of the value of our securities

prolonged economic slowdown recession or declining real estate values could impair the performance of our

investments and harm our financial condition increase our funding costs limit our access to the capital

markets or result in decision by lenders not to extend credit to us We cannot predict the severity of the

effect that potential future terrorist attacks would have on our business Losses resulting from these types of

events may not be fully insurable

In addition the events of September 11 created significant uncertainty regarding the ability of real estate

owners of high profile assets to obtain insurance coverage protecting against terrorist attacks at commercially

reasonable rates if at all With the enactment of the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act of 2002 or TRIA and the

subsequent enactment of the Terrorism Risk Insurance Extension Act of 2005 which extended TRIA through

the end of 2007 insurers must make terrorism insurance available under their property and casualty insurance

policies but this legislation does not regulate the pricing of such insurance The absence of affordable

insurance coverage may adversely affect the general real estate lending market lending volume and the

markets overall liquidity and may reduce the number of suitable investment opportunities available to us and

the pace at which we are able to make investments If the properties in which we invest are unable to obtain

affordable insurance coverage the value of those investments could decline and in the event of an uninsured

loss we could lose all or portion of our investment

Risks Related to Conflicts of Interest and Our Relationship with Our Manager

The management agreement was not negotiated on an arms-length basis As result the terms including

fees payable may not be as favorable to us as if it was negotiated with an unaffiliated third party

The management agreement between Care and its Manager CIT Healthcare LLC was negotiated

between related parties As result we did not have the benefit of arms-length negotiations of the type
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normally conducted with an unaffiliated third party and the terms including fees payable may not be as

favorable to us as if we did engage in negotiations with an unaffiliated third party We may choose not to

enforce or to enforce less vigorously our rights under the management agreement because of our desire to

maintain our ongoing relationship with our Manager

The contribution agreement through which we acquired our initial portfolio of mortgage loan assets at the

time of our initial public offering was not negotiated on an arms-length basis and we did not receive

independent appraisals of the initial assets As result the terms of the contribution agreement including

the consideration paid by us in exchange for the initial assets may not be as favorable to us as if it was

negotiated with an unaffiliated third party

The contribution agreement through which we acquired our initial portfolio of mortgage loan assets at the

time of our initial public offering was negotiated between related parties As result we did not have the

benefit of arms-length negotiations of the type normally conducted with an unaffiliated third party and the

terms including the terms of the contribution of the initial assets may not be as favorable to us as if we did

engage in negotiations with an unaffiliated third party We did not obtain any independent third-party

appraisals of the initial assets contributed to us and the determination of the fair market value of the initial

assets was made by our Manager These assets were contributed to us directly by CIT Holding an affiliate of

ours and in exchange we issued to CIT Holding cash proceeds from our initial public offering and shares of

our common stock As result the consideration paid by us in exchange for the contribution of the assets may

have exceeded the fair market value of these assets In addition we may choose not to enforce or to enforce

less vigorously our rights under the contribution agreement because of our desire to maintain our ongoing

relationship with our Manager and CIT

Our Manager sources most of our investments and we may also participate in investments in which our

Manager and its affiliates are also participating which could result in conflicts of interest

Our Manager sources most of our investments and we may also participate in investments in which our

Manager and its affiliates are also participating Certain of our investments may be subordinate to investments

made by our Manager in the same issuer or project Transactions originated by or in which we co-invest or

participate with our Manager are not and will not be the result of arms-length negotiations and involve

conflicts between our interests and the interests of our Manager in obtaining favorable terms and conditions

There is no assurance that the conflicts of interest policy that addresses some of the conflicts relating to our

investments will be adequate to address all of the conflicts that may arise In each case some of the same

officers will be determining the price and terms for the investments for both us and our Manager and there can

be no assurance that the procedural protections such as obtaining market prices or other reliable indicators of

fair market value appointing third party servicer in the event of loans default or having an independent

investment advisor review all of our investments will be sufficient to assure that the consideration we pay for

these investments will not exceed their fair market value and that we would not receive more advantageous

terms for an investment had we negotiated the purchase with an independent third party In addition since our

Managers officers and employees are also responsible for providing the same services for our Managers

portfolio of investments they may not devote sufficient time to the management of our business operations

Our interests in such investments may conflict with the interests of such other vehicles or accounts in related

investments in the event of default or restructuring of the investment

We rely on our Manager to assist us in various aspects of our business and our Managei in turn relies on

CIT and its affiliates to assist it in various aspects of its business including financing and there is no

assurance that CIT will continue to allocate the same resources to our Manager to provide services to us

Our Manager provides us with services essential to our operations Our Manager represents just one

segment of CIT and relies on CIT and its affiliates for assistance in various aspects of its business including

financing Our Manager obtains its financing from public and private securities offerings by CIT Due to

continued weakness in the credit markets and the likely negative impact on CITs earnings CITs counterparty

rating has been lowered by Standard Poors Moodys and Fitch CITs access to its usual sources of
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wholesale funding has been closed due to the continuing dislocation of the global credit markets and on

March 20 2008 it drew down the remaining availability $7.3 billion from its bank credit facilities to

refinance pre-existing debt On December 22 2008 the Federal Reserve approved CIT as bank holding

company and on December 31 2008 CIT sold $2.33 billion of perpetual preferred stock to the U.S

Department of Treasury under the Capital Purchase Program established under the Emergency Economic

Stabilization Act of 2008 The bank holding company regulations prohibit CIT from holding more than 5% of

the outstanding shares of any class of voting stock of any company engaged in non-banking business and

absent an exemption CIT has two years from January 2009 to reduce its investment in Care to 5% or less

in order to maintain its bank holding company status We cannot assure you that CIT will continue to be able

to raise our Managers financing in the future We also cannot assure you that CIT will continue to allocate the

same resources to our Managers business An inability or unwillingness on the part of CIT to access the

capital markets on behalf of our Manager or to continue to provide the same level of support to our Manager

could negatively affect our business financial condition and results of operations

Termination of our management agreement would be difficult and costly

Termination of the management agreement with our Manager would be difficult and costly The

management agreement has an initial term expiring on June 30 2010 and will automatically be renewed for

one-year terms thereafter unless we or our Manager gives the other party at least 180 days prior notice of its

intention not to renew the agreement We may not terminate the management agreement without cause during

the initial term or any renewal term If we elect to not renew the agreement upon expiration of the initial term

or any renewal term we will be required to pay termination fee within 90 days of termination equal to the

average annual base management fee as earned by the Manager during the two years immediately preceding

the most recently completed fiscal quarter prior to the date of termination multiplied by three In no event

shall the termination fee be less than fifteen million four hundred thousand dollars $15400000 In addition

following any termination of the management agreement we must pay our Manager all compensation accruing

to the date of the termination These provisions increase the effective cost to us of terminating the management

agreement with our Manager even if we believe our Managers performance is not satisfactory No termination

fee is payable if we terminate the management agreement for cause

Our Managers base management fee is payable regardless of our performance

Our Manager is entitled to receive base management fee from us that is based on the amount of our

equity as defined in the management agreement regardless of the performance of our portfolio For example

we would pay our Manager base management fee for specific period even if we experienced net loss

during the same period Our Managers entitlement to substantial nonperformance-based compensation might

reduce its incentive to devote its time and effort to seeking investments that provide attractive risk-adjusted

returns for our portfolio This in turn could hurt our ability to make distributions to our stockholders and the

market price of our common stock

Risks Relating to the Healthcare Industry

Our investments are expected to be concentrated in healthcare facilities and healthcare-related assets

making us more vulnerable economically than if our investments were more diversified

We own interests in healthcare facilities as well as provide financing for healthcare businesses

downturn in the healthcare industry or the economy generally could negatively affect our borrowers or

tenants ability to make payments to us and consequently our ability to meet debt service obligations or make

distributions to our stockholders These adverse effects could be more pronounced than if we diversified our

investments outside of healthcare facilities

Furthermore many of our tenants and borrowers in the healthcare industry are heavily dependant on

reimbursements from the Medicare and Medicaid programs for the bulk of their revenues Our tenants and

borrowers dependence on reimbursement revenues could cause us to suffer losses in several instances
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If our tenants or borrowers fail to comply with operational covenants and other regulations imposed by

these programs they may lose their eligibility to continue to receive reimbursements under the

programs or incur monetary penalties either of which could result in the tenants or borrowers inability

to make scheduled payments to us

If reimbursement rates do not keep pace with increasing costs of services to eligible recipients or

funding levels decrease as result of state budget crises or increasing pressures from Medicare and

Medicaid to control healthcare costs our tenants and borrowers may not be able to generate adequate

revenues to satisfy their obligations to us

If healthcare tenant or borrower were to default on its loan we would be unable to invoke our rights

to the pledged receivables directly as the law prohibits payment of amounts owed to healthcare

providers under the Medicare and Medicaid programs to be directed to any entity other than the actual

providers Consequently we would need court order to force collection directly against these

governmental payors There is no assurance that we would be successful in obtaining this type of court

order

The healthcare industry continues to face various challenges including increased government and private

payor pressure on healthcare providers to control or reduce costs and increasing competition for patients

among healthcare providers in areas with significant unused capacity We believe that certain of our tenants or

borrowers will continue to experience shift in payor
mix away from fee-for-service payors if any resulting

in an increase in the percentage of revenues attributable to managed care payors government payors and

general industry trends that include pressures to control healthcare costs Pressures to control healthcare costs

and shift away from traditional health insurance reimbursement have resulted in an increase in the number of

patients whose healthcare coverage is provided under managed care plans such as health maintenance

organizations and preferred provider organizations In addition due to the aging of the population and the

expansion of governmental payor programs we anticipate that there will be marked increase in the number

of patients reliant on healthcare coverage provided by governmental payors which in the case of skilled

nursing facilities is already significant These changes could have material adverse effect on the financial

condition of some or all of our tenants or borrowers which could have material adverse effect on our

financial condition and results of operations and could negatively affect our ability to make distributions to our

stockholders

The healthcare industry is heavily regulated and existing and new laws or regulations changes to existing

laws or regulations loss of licensure or certification or failure to obtain licensure or certification could

result in the inability of our borrowers or tenants to make payments to us

The healthcare industry is highly regulated by federal state and local laws and is directly affected by

federal conditions of participation state licensing requirements facility inspections state and federal

reimbursement policies regulations concerning capital and other expenditures certification requirements and

other such laws regulations and rules In addition establishment of healthcare facilities and transfers of

operations of healthcare facilities are subject to regulatory approvals not required for establishment of or

transfers of other types of commercial operations and real estate Sanctions for failure to comply with these

regulations and laws include but are not limited to loss of or inability to obtain licensure fines and loss of or

inability to obtain certification to participate in the Medicare and Medicaid programs as well as potential

criminal penalties The failure of tenant or borrower to comply with such laws requirements and regulations

could affect its ability to establish or continue its operation of the facility or facilities and could adversely

affect the tenants or borrowers ability to make payments to us which could have material adverse effect on

our financial condition and results of operations and could negatively affect our ability to make distributions to

our stockholders In addition restrictions and delays in transferring the operations of healthcare facilities in

obtaining new third-party payor contracts including Medicare and Medicaid provider agreements and in

receiving licensure and certification approval from appropriate state and federal agencies by new tenants may

affect the ability of our tenants or borrowers to make payments to us Furthermore these matters may affect

new tenants or borrowers ability to obtain reimbursement for services rendered which could adversely affect
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the ability of our tenants or borrowers to pay rent to us and to pay principal and interest on their loans from

us

Our tenants and borrowers are subject to fraud and abuse laws the violation of which by tenant or

borrower may jeopardize the tenants or borrowers ability to make payments to us

The federal government and numerous state governments have passed laws and regulations that attempt to

eliminate healthcare fraud and abuse by prohibiting business arrangements that induce patient referrals or the

ordering of specific ancillary services In addition the Balanced Budget Act of 1997 strengthened the federal

fraud and abuse laws to provide for stiffer penalties for violations Violations of these laws may result in the

imposition of criminal and civil penalties including possible exclusion from federal and state healthcare

programs Imposition of any of these penalties upon any of our tenants or borrowers could jeopardize any

tenants or borrowers ability to operate facility or to make payments thereby potentially adversely affecting

us

In the past several years federal and state governments have significantly increased investigation and

enforcement activity to detect and eliminate fraud and abuse in the Medicare and Medicaid programs In

addition legislation and regulations have been adopted at both state and federal levels which severely restricts

the ability of physicians to refer patients to entities in which they have financial interest It is anticipated

that the trend toward increased investigation and enforcement activity in the area of fraud and abuse as well

as self-referrals will continue in future years and could adversely affect our prospective tenants or borrowers

and their operations and in turn their ability to make payments to us

Operators are faced with increased litigation and rising insurance costs that may affect their ability to make

their lease or mortgage payments

In some states advocacy groups have been created to monitor the quality of care at healthcare facilities

and these groups have brought litigation against operators Also in several instances private litigation by

patients has succeeded in winning very large damage awards for alleged abuses The effect of this litigation

and potential litigation has been to materially increase the costs of monitoring and reporting quality of care

compliance incurred by operators In addition the cost of liability and medical malpractice insurance has

increased and may continue to increase so long as the present litigation environment affecting the operations

of healthcare facilities continues Continued cost increases could cause our operators to be unable to make

their lease or mortgage payments potentially decreasing our revenue and increasing our collection and

litigation costs Moreover to the extent we are required to take back the affected facilities our revenue from

those facilities could be reduced or eliminated for an extended period of time

Transfers of healthcare facilities generally require regulatory approvals and alternative uses of healthcare

facilities are limited

Because transfers of healthcare facilities may be subject to regulatory approvals not required for transfers

of other types of commercial operations and other types of real estate there may be delays in transferring

operations of our facilities to successor operators or we may be prohibited from transferring operations to

successor operator In addition substantially all of the properties that we may acquire or that will secure our

loans will be healthcare facilities that may not be easily adapted to non-healthcare related uses If we are

unable to transfer properties at times opportune to us our revenue and operations may suffer

Economic crisis generally and its affect on state budgets could result in decrease in Medicare and

Medicaid reimbursement levels

The current economic crisis is having widespread impact both nationally and at the state level

Healthcare facilities are no different that other businesses and are accordingly not immune from the economic

crisis impact Specifically revenues at all healthcare or related facilities may be impacted as result of

individuals forgoing or decreasing utilization of healthcare services or delaying moves to independent living

facilities assisted living facilities or nursing homes Furthermore the federal government in the case of
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Medicare or the federal matching portion of Medicaid may seek cost reductions in such programs in order to

shift federal moneys to pay for the stimulus package or programs assisting the financial sector or other

businesses Finally many states are facing severe budget short-falls and in some cases facing bankruptcy

which could result in decrease in funding made available for the Medicaid program and decrease in

reimbursement rates for nursing home facilities and other healthcare facilities To the extent that there is

decrease in utilization of tenants healthcare facilities or reduction in funds available for the Medicare or

Medicaid programs tenants may not have sufficient revenues to pay rent to us or may be forced to discontinue

operations In either case our revenues and operations could be adversely affected

Risks Related to Our Investments

We may change our targeted investments and investment guidelines without stockholder consent

We may change our targeted investments and investment guidelines at any time without the consent of

our stockholders which could result in our making investments that are different from and possibly riskier

than our current or planned investments change in our targeted investments or investment guidelines may

increase our exposure to interest rate risk default risk and real estate market fluctuations all of which could

adversely affect the market price of our common stock and our ability to make distributions to you

We rely on external sources of capital to fund future capital needs and if our access to such capital is

difficult or on commercially unreasonable terms we may not be able to meet maturing commitments or

make future investments necessary to grow our business

In order to qualify as REIT under the Internal Revenue Code we are required among other things to

distribute to our stockholders each year at least 90% of our REIT taxable income Because of this distribution

requirement we may not be able to fund all future capital needs including capital needs in connection with

investments from cash retained from operations As result we rely on external sources of capital We do not

receive credit or other financial support from CIT We terminated our warehouse line of credit which was our

only external credit facility on March 2009 If we are unable to obtain needed capital at all or obtain it

only on unfavorable terms we might not be able to make the investments needed to grow our business or to

meet our obligations and commitments as they mature which could affect our ability to continue operations

Our access to capital depends upon number of factors over which we have little or no control including

general market conditions

the markets perception of our growth potential

our current and potential future earnings and cash distributions

the market price of the shares of our capital stock and

the markets view of the quality of our assets

Since real estate investments are illiquid we may not be able to sell properties when we desire to do so

Real estate investments generally cannot be sold quickly We may not be able to vary our owned real

estate portfolio promptly in response to changes in the real estate market This inability to respond to changes

in the performance of our owned real estate investments could adversely affect our ability to service our debt

The real estate market is affected by many factors that are beyond our control including

adverse changes in national and local economic and market conditions

changes in interest rates and in the availability costs and terms of financing

changes in governmental laws and regulations fiscal policies and zoning and other ordinances and costs

of compliance with laws and regulations

the ongoing need for capital improvements particularly in older structures

changes in operating expenses and
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civil unrest acts of war and natural disasters including earthquakes and floods which may result in

uninsured and underinsured losses

Because of the unique and specific improvements required for healthcare facilities we may be required to

incur substantial renovation costs to make certain of our properties suitable for other operators and tenants

which could materially adversely affect our business results of operations and financial condition

Healthcare facilities are typically highly customized and may not be easily adapted to non-healthcare

related uses The improvements generally required to conform property to healthcare use such as upgrading

electrical gas and plumbing infrastructure are costly and often times tenant-specific new or replacement

operator or tenant may require different features in property depending on that operators or tenants

particular operations If current operator or tenant is unable to pay rent and vacates property we may incur

substantial expenditures to modify property for new tenant or for multiple tenants with varying

infrastructure requirements before we are able to re-lease the space to another tenant Consequently our

properties may not be suitable for lease to traditional office or other healthcare tenants without significant

expenditures or renovations which costs may materially adversely affect our business results of operations

and financial condition

Our use of joint ventures may limit our flexibility with jointly owned investments and could adversely affect

our business results of operations and financial condition and REIT status

We have invested in joint ventures with other persons or entities when circumstances warrant the use of

these structures We currently have two joint ventures that are not consolidated with our financial statements

Our aggregate investments in these joint ventures represented approximately 17.5% of our total assets at

December 31 2008 Our participation in joint ventures is subject to the risks that

we could experience an impasse on certain decisions because we do not have sole decision-making

authority which could require us to expend additional resources on resolving such impasses or potential

disputes

our joint venture partners could have investment goals that are not consistent with our investment

objectives including the timing terms and strategies for any investments

our joint venture partners might become bankrupt fail to fund their share of required capital

contributions or fail to fulfill their obligations as joint venture partner which may require us to infuse

our own capital into the venture on behalf of the partner despite other competing uses for such capital

our joint venture partners may have competing interests in our markets that could create conflict of

interest issues and

income and assets owned through joint-venture entities may affect our ability to satisfy requirements

related to maintaining our REIT status

Preferred equity investments involve greater risk of loss than conventional debt financing

We have invested in preferred equity investments and may invest in additional preferred equity

investments Our preferred equity investments involve higher degree of risk than conventional debt financing

due to variety of factors including that such investments are subordinate to all of the issuers loans and are

not secured by property underlying the investment Furthermore should the issuer default on our investment

we would only be able to proceed against the entity in which we have an interest and not the property

underlying our investment As result we may not recover some or all of our investment

Our investments in debt securities are subject to specific risks relating to the particular issuer of the

securities and to the general risks of investing in subordinated real estate securities

We may invest in debt securities of healthcare-related issuers Our investments in debt securities involve

specific risks REITs generally are required to invest substantially in real estate or real estate-related assets and
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are subject to the inherent risks associated with real estate-related investments Our investments in debt

securities are subject to risks that include

delinquency and foreclosure and losses in the event thereof

the dependence upon the successful operation of and net income from real property

risks generally incident to interests in real property and

risks that may be presented by the type and use of particular commercial property

Debt securities are generally unsecured and may also be subordinated to other obligations of the issuer

We may also invest in debt securities that are rated below investment grade As result investments in debt

securities are also subject to risks of

limited liquidity in the secondary trading market

substantial market price volatility resulting from changes in prevailing interest rates

subordination to the prior claims of banks and other senior lenders to the issuer

the operation of mandatory sinking fund or calllredemption provisions during periods of declining

interest rates that could cause the issuer to reinvest premature redemption proceeds in lower yielding

assets

the possibility that earnings of the debt security issuer may be insufficient to meet its debt service and

the declining creditworthiness and potential for insolvency of the issuer of such debt securities during

periods of rising interest rates and economic downturn

These risks may adversely affect the value of outstanding debt securities and the ability of the issuers

thereof to repay principal and interest

Our investments will be subject to risks particular to real property

Our loans are directly or indirectly secured by lien on real property or the equity interests in an entity

that owns real property that upon the occurrence of default on the loan could result in our acquiring

ownership of the property Investments in real property or real property-related assets are subject to varying

degrees of risk The value of each property is affected significantly by its ability to generate cash flow and net

income which in turn depends on the amount of rental or other income that can be generated net of expenses

required to be incurred with respect to the property The rental or other income from these properties may be

adversely affected by number of risks including

acts of God including hurricanes earthquakes floods and other natural disasters which may result in

uninsured losses

acts of war or terrorism including the consequences of terrorist attacks such as those that occurred on

September 11 2001

adverse changes in national and local economic and real estate conditions including business layoffs or

downsizing industry slowdowns changing demographics

an oversupply of or reduction in demand for space in properties in geographic areas where our

investments are concentrated and the attractiveness of particular properties to prospective tenants

changes in governmental laws and regulations fiscal policies and zoning ordinances and the related

costs of compliance therewith and the potential for liability under applicable laws and

costs of remediation and liabilities associated with environmental conditions such as indoor mold and

the potential for uninsured or underinsured property losses

Many expenditures associated with properties such as operating expenses and capital expenditures

cannot be reduced when there is reduction in income from the properties Adverse changes in these factors
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may have material adverse effect on the ability of our borrowers to pay their loans as well as on the value

that we can realize from properties we own or acquire and may reduce or eliminate our ability to make

distributions to stockholders

The bankruptcy insolvency or financial deterioration of our facility operators could significantly delay our

ability to collect unpaid rents or require us to find new operators

Our financial position and our ability to make distributions to our stockholders may be adversely affected

by financial difficulties experienced by any of our major operators including bankruptcy insolvency or

general downturn in the business or in the event any of our major operators do not renew or extend their

relationship with us as their lease terms expire

The healthcare industry is highly competitive and we expect that it may become more competitive in the

future Our operators are subject to competition from other healthcare providers that provide similar services

The profitability of healthcare facilities depends upon several factors including the number of physicians using

the healthcare facilities or referring patients there competitive systems of healthcare delivery and the size and

composition of the population in the surrounding area Private federal and state payment programs and the

effect of other laws and regulations may also have significant influence on the revenues and income of the

properties If our operators are not competitive with other healthcare providers and are unable to generate

income they may be unable to make rent and loan payments to us which could adversely affect our cash flow

and financial performance and condition

We are exposed to the risk that our operators may not be able to meet their obligations which may result

in their bankruptcy or insolvency The bankruptcy laws afford certain rights to party that has filed for

bankruptcy or reorganization and the right to terminate an investment evict an operator demand immediate

repayment and other remedies under our leases and loans may not protect us An operator in bankruptcy may

be able to restrict our ability to collect unpaid rents or interest during the bankruptcy proceeding

Volatility of values of commercial properties may adversely affect our loans and investments

Commercial property values and net operating income derived from such properties are subject to

volatility and may be affected adversely by number of factors including but not limited to national

regional and local economic conditions which may be affected adversely by industry slowdowns and other

factors changes or continued weakness in specific industry segments construction quality age and design

demographics retroactive changes to building or similar codes and increases in operating expenses such as

energy costs In the event propertys net operating income decreases borrower may have difficulty

repaying our loan which could result in losses to us In addition decreases in property values reduce the value

of the collateral and the potential proceeds available to borrower to repay our loans which could also cause

us to suffer losses

Insurance on the real estate underlying our investments may not cover all losses

There are certain types of losses generally of catastrophic nature such as earthquakes floods

hurricanes terrorism or acts of war that may be uninsurable or not economically insurable Inflation changes

in building codes and ordinances environmental considerations and other factors including terrorism or acts

of war also might make the insurance proceeds insufficient to repair or replace property if it is damaged or

destroyed Under such circumstances the insurance proceeds received might not be adequate to restore our

economic position with respect to the affected real property Any uninsured loss could result in both loss of

cash flow from and the asset value of the affected property

Our due diligence may not reveal all of borrowers liabilities and may not reveal other weaknesses in its

business

Before investing in company or making loan to borrower we assess the strength and skills of such

entitys management and other factors that we believe are material to the performance of the investment In

making the assessment and otherwise conducting customary due diligence we rely on the resources available
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to us and in some cases an investigation by third parties This process is particularly important and subjective

with respect to newly organized entities because there may be little or no information publicly available about

the entities There can be no assurance that our due diligence processes have or will uncover all relevant facts

or that any investment will be successful

Interest rate fluctuations may adversely affect the value of our assets net income and common stock

Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors beyond our control including governmental monetary

and tax policies domestic and international economic and political considerations and other factors beyond

our control Interest rate fluctuations present variety of risks including the risk of mismatch between asset

yields and borrowing rates variances in the yield curve and fluctuating prepayment rates and may adversely

affect our income and value of our common stock

Our portfolio of mortgage loans is comprised of variable rate instruments each of which bears interest at

stated spread over one-month LIBOR and is funded principally by equity In periods of declining interest

rates our interest income on loans will be adversely affected The REIT provisions of the Internal Revenue

Code exclude income on asset hedges from qualifying as income derived from real estate activities

Accordingly our ability to hedge interest rate risk on portfolio of assets funded principally by equity is

limited

Prepayment rates can increase adversely affecting yields

The value of our assets may be affected by prepayment rates on mortgage loans Prepayment rates on

loans are influenced by changes in current interest rates on adjustable-rate and fixed-rate mortgage loans and

variety of economic geographic and other factors beyond our control Consequently such prepayment rates

cannot be predicted with certainty and no strategy can completely insulate us from prepayment or other such

risks In periods of declining interest rates prepayments on loans generally increase If general interest rates

decline as well the proceeds of such prepayments received during such periods are likely to be reinvested by

us in assets yielding less than the yields on the assets that were prepaid In addition the market value of the

assets may because of the risk of prepayment benefit less than other fixed income securities from declining

interest rates Under certain interest rate and prepayment scenarios we may fail to recoup fully our cost of

acquisition of certain investments portion of our investments require payments of prepayment fees upon

prepayment or maturity of the investment We may not be able to structure future investments that contain

similar prepayment penalties Some of our assets may not have prepayment protection

The lack of liquidity in our investments may harm our business

We may subject to maintaining our REIT qualification and our exemption from regulation under the

Investment Company Act make investments in securities that are not publicly traded These securities may be

subject to legal and other restrictions on resale or will otherwise be less liquid than publicly traded securities

The illiquidity of our investments may make it difficult for us to sell such investments if the need arises

Federal Income Tax Risks

Loss of our status as REJT would have significant adverse consequences to us and the value of our

common stock

If we lose our status as REIT we will face serious tax consequences that may substantially reduce the

funds available for satisfying our obligations and for distribution to our stockholders for each of the years

involved because

We would be subject to federal income tax as regular corporation and could face substantial tax

liability

We would not be allowed deduction for dividends paid to stockholders in computing our taxable

income and would be subject to federal income tax at regular corporate rates
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We also could be subject to the federal alternative minimum tax and possibly increased state and local

taxes

Corporate subsidiaries could be treated as separate taxable corporations for U.S federal income tax

purposes

Any resulting corporate tax liability could be substantial and could reduce the amount of cash available

for distribution to our stockholders which in turn could have an adverse impact on the value of and

trading prices for our common stock and

Unless we are entitled to relief under statutory provisions we will not be able to elect REIT status for

four taxable years following the year during which we were disqualified

In addition if we fail to qualify as REIT all distributions to stockholders would continue to be treated

as dividends to the extent of our current and accumulated earning and profits although corporate stockholders

may be eligible for the dividends received deduction and individual stockholders may be eligible for taxation

at the rates generally applicable to long-term capital gains currently at maximum rate of 15% with respect

to dividend distributions We would no longer be required to pay dividends to maintain REIT status

Our ability to satisfy certain REIT qualification tests depends upon our analysis of the characterization

and fair market values of our assets some of which are not susceptible to precise determination and for

which we will not obtain independent appraisals Our compliance with the REIT income and quarterly asset

requirements also depends upon our ability to successfully manage the composition of our income and assets

on an ongoing basis Moreover the proper classification of an instrument as debt or equity for federal income

tax purposes and the tax treatment of participation interests that we hold in mortgage loans and may be

uncertain in some circumstances which could affect the application of the REIT qualification requirements as

described below Accordingly there can be no assurance that the IRS will not contend that our interests in

subsidiaries or other issuers will not cause violation of the REIT requirements Furthermore as result of

these factors our failure to qualify as REIT also could impair our ability to implement our business strategy

Although we believe that we qualify as REIT we cannot assure you that we will continue to qualify or

remain qualified as REIT for tax purposes

The 90% distribution requirement under the REIT tax rules will decrease our liquidity and may force us to

engage in transactions that may not be consistent with our business plan

To comply with the 90% REIT taxable income distribution requirement applicable to REITs and to avoid

nondeductible 4% excise tax if the actual amount that we pay out to our stockholders in calendar year is

less than minimum amount specified under federal tax laws we must make distributions to our stockholders

For distributions with respect to taxable years ending on or before December 31 2009 recent Internal

Revenue Service guidance allows us to satisfy up to 90% of these requirements through the distribution of

shares of Care common stock if certain conditions are met Although we anticipate that we generally will

have sufficient cash or liquid assets to enable us to satisfy the REIT distribution requirement it is possible

that from time to time we may not have sufficient cash or other liquid assets to meet the 90% distribution

requirement or we may decide to retain cash or distribute such greater amount as may be necessary to avoid

income and excise taxation This may be due to the timing differences between the actual receipt of income

and actual payment of deductible expenses on the one hand and the inclusion of that income and deduction

of those expenses in arriving at our taxable income on the other hand In addition non-deductible expenses

such as principal amortization or repayments or capital expenditures in excess of non-cash deductions also

may cause us to fail to have sufficient cash or liquid assets to enable us to satisfy the 90% distribution

requirement

In the event that timing differences occur or we deem it appropriate to retain cash we may borrow funds

issue additional equity securities although we cannot assure you that we will be able to do so pay taxable

stock dividends if possible distribute other property or securities or engage in transaction intended to enable

us to meet the REIT distribution requirements This may require us to raise additional capital to meet our
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obligations Taking such action may not be consistent with our business plan may increase our costs and may

limit our ability to grow

Qualifying as REIT involves highly technical and complex provisions of the Internal Revenue Code

Qualification as REIT involves the application of highly technical and complex Code provisions for

which there are only limited judicial and administrative interpretations The determination of various factual

matters and circumstances not entirely within our control may affect our ability to remain qualified as REIT

Our continued qualification as REIT will depend on our satisfaction of certain asset income organizational

distribution stockholder ownership and other requirements on continuing basis In addition our ability to

satisfy the requirements to qualify as REIT depends in part on the actions of third parties over which we

have no control or only limited influence including in cases where we own an equity interest in an entity that

is classified as partnership for U.S federal income tax purposes

New legislation or adminisfrative or judicial action in each instance potentially with retroactive effect

could make it more difficult or impossible for us to qualify as REIT

The present federal income tax treatment of REITs may be modified possibly with retroactive effect by

legislative judicial or administrative action at any time which could affect the federal income tax treatment of

an investment in us The federal income tax rules that affect REITs constantly are under review by persons

involved in the legislative process the IRS and the U.S Treasury Department which results in statutory

changes as well as frequent revisions to regulations and interpretations

On July 30 2008 the Housing and Economic Recovery Tax Act of 2008 the 2008 Act was enacted

into law The 2008 Acts sections that affect the REIT provisions of the Code are generally effective for

taxable years beginning after its date of enactment and for us will generally mean that the new provisions

apply from and after January 2009 except as otherwise indicated below

The 2008 Act made the following changes to or clarifications of the REIT provisions of the Code that

could be relevant for us

Taxable REIT Subsidiaries The limit on the value of taxable REIT subsidiaries securities held by

REIT has been increased from 20% to 25% of the total value of such REITs assets

Rental Income from TRS REIT is generally limited in its ability to earn qualifying rental income

from TRS The 2008 Act permits REIT to earn qualifying rental income from the lease of

qualified healthcare property to TRS if an eligible independent contractor operates the property

Expanded Prohibited Transactions Safe Harbor The safe harbor from the prohibited transactions tax

for certain sales of real estate assets is expanded by reducing the required minimum holding period

from four years to two years among other changes

Hedging Income Income from hedging transaction entered into after July 30 2008 that complies

with identification procedures set out in U.S Treasury Regulations and hedges indebtedness incurred or

to be incurred by us to acquire or carry real estate assets will not constitute gross income for purposes

of both the 75% and 95% gross income tests

Reclassification Authority The Secretary of the Treasury is given broad authority to determine

whether particular items of gain or income recognized after July 30 2008 qualify or not under the

75% and 95% gross income tests or are to be excluded from the measure of gross income for such

purposes

Revisions in federal tax laws and interpretations thereof could cause us to change our investments and

commitments and affect the tax consequences of an investment in us
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Dividends payable by REITs do not qualify for the reduced tax rates available for some dividends

The maximum tax rate applicable to income from qualified dividends payable to domestic stockholders

that are individuals trusts and estates has been reduced by legislation to 15% through the end of 2010

Dividends payable by REITs however generally are not eligible for the reduced rates Although this

legislation does not adversely affect the taxation of REITs or dividends payable by REITs the more favorable

rates applicable to regular corporate qualified dividends could cause investors who are individuals trusts and

estates to perceive investments in REITs to be relatively less attractive than investments in the stocks of non

REIT corporations that pay dividends which could adversely affect the value of the stock of REITs including

our common stock

The stock ownership limit imposed by the Internal Revenue Code for REITs and our charter may restrict

our business combination opportunities

To qualify as REIT under the Internal Revenue Code not more than 50% in value of our outstanding

stock may be owned directly or indirectly by five or fewer individuals as defined in the Internal Revenue

Code to include certain entities at any time during the last half of each taxable year after our first year in

which we qualify as REIT Our charter with certain exceptions authorizes our board of directors to take the

actions that are necessary and desirable to preserve our qualification as REIT Unless an exemption is

granted by our board of directors no person as defined to include entities may own more than 9.8% in value

or in number of shares whichever is more restrictive of our common or capital stock In addition our charter

generally prohibits beneficial or constructive ownership of shares of our capital stock by any person that owns

actually or constructively an interest in any of our tenants that would cause us to own actually or

constructively more than 9.9% interest in any of our tenants Our board of directors may grant an exemption

in its sole discretion subject to such conditions representations and undertakings as it may determine Our

board of directors has granted limited exemption from the ownership limitation to CIT Holding our

Manager CIT GoldenTree Asset Management LP and SAB Capital Management L.P but only to the extent

that their ownership of our stock could not reasonably be expected to cause us to violate the REIT

requirements in which case they either would be required to sell some of our stock or would become subject

to the excess share provisions of our charter in each case to the extent necessary to enable us to satisfy the

REIT requirements

These ownership limitations in our charter are common in REIT charters and are intended to assist us in

complying with the tax law requirements and to minimize administrative burdens However these ownership

limits might also delay or prevent transaction or change in our control that might involve premium price

for our common stock or otherwise be in the best interest of our stockholders

Even if we remain qualified as REII we may face other tax liabilities that reduce our cash flow

Even if we remain qualified for taxation as REIT we may be subject to certain federal state and local

taxes on our income and assets including taxes on any undistributed income tax on income from some

activities conducted as result of foreclosure and state or local income property and transfer taxes

including mortgage recording taxes In addition in order to meet the REIT qualification requirements or to

avert the imposition of 100% tax that applies to certain gains derived by REIT from dealer property or

inventory we may hold some of our non-healthcare assets through taxable REIT subsidiaries or TRSs or

other subsidiary corporations that will be subject to corporate-level income tax at regular rates We will be

subject to 100% penalty tax on certain amounts if the economic arrangements among our tenants our TRS

and us are not comparable to similar arrangements among unrelated parties Any of these taxes would decrease

cash available for distribution to our stockholders We currently do not have any TRSs

Complying with REIT requirements may cause us to forgo otherwise attractive opportunities

To qualify as REIT for federal income tax purposes we continually must satisfy tests concerning

among other things the sources of our income the nature and diversification of our assets the amounts we

distribute to our stockholders and the ownership of our stock We may be unable to pursue investments that
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would be otherwise advantageous to us in order to satisfy the source-of-income asset-diversification or

distribution requirements for maintaining our status as REIT Thus compliance with the REIT requirements

may hinder our ability to make certain attractive investments

Complying with REIT requirements may force us to liquidate otherwise attractive investments

To qualify as REIT for federal income tax purposes we must ensure that at the end of each calendar

quarter at least 75% of the value of our assets consists of cash cash items government securities and

qualified REIT real estate assets including certain mortgage loans and mortgage backed securities The

remainder of our investment in securities other than government securities and qualified real estate assets

generally cannot include more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of any one issuer or more than

10% of the total value of the outstanding securities of any one issuer In addition in general no more than 5%

of the value of our assets other than government securities and qualified real estate assets can consist of the

securities of any one issuer and no more than 20% of the value of our total securities can be represented by

securities of one or more TRSs 25% beginning in 2009 If we fail to comply with these requirements at the

end of any calendar quarter we must correct the failure within 30 days after the end of the calendar quarter or

qualify for certain statutory relief provisions to avoid losing our REIT status otherwise we will suffer adverse

tax consequences As result we may be required to liquidate from our portfolio otherwise attractive

investments These actions could have the effect of reducing our income and amounts available for distribution

to our stockholders

Liquidation of assets may jeopardize our status as REIT

To qualify as REIT we must comply with requirements regarding our assets and our sources of income

If we are compelled to liquidate our investments to repay obligations to our lenders we may be unable to

comply with these requirements ultimately jeopardizing our status as REIT or we may be subject to 100%

tax on any resultant gain if we sell assets that are treated as dealer property or inventory

Complying with REIT requirements may limit our ability to hedge effectively

The REIT provisions of the Internal Revenue Code substantially limit our ability to hedge our liabilities

Any income from hedging transaction we enter into to manage risk of interest rate changes or currency

fluctuations with respect to borrowings made or to be made to acquire or carry real estate assets does not

constitute gross income for purposes of the 95% or with respect to transactions entered into after July 30

2008 the 75% gross income test provided that certain requirements are met To the extent that we enter into

other types of hedging transactions the income from those transactions is likely to be treated as non-qualifying

income for purposes of both of the gross
income tests As result we might have to limit our use of

advantageous hedging techniques or implement those hedges through one of our domestic TRSs This could

increase the cost of our hedging activities because our domestic TRSs would be subject to tax on gains or

expose us to greater risks associated with changes in interest rates than we would otherwise want to bear

The tax on prohibited transactions will limit our ability to engage in transactions that would be treated as

sales for federal income tax purposes

REITs net income from prohibited transactions is subject to 100% tax In general prohibited

transactions are sales or other dispositions of property other than foreclosure property but including mortgage

loans that are held primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of our business We might be subject

to this tax if we were to syndicate or dispose of loans in manner that was treated as sale of the loans for

federal income tax purposes Therefore to avoid the prohibited transactions tax we may choose not to engage

in certain sales of loans at the REIT level even though the sales otherwise might be beneficial to us
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ITEM lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

ITEM Properties

We do not own or lease any corporate property and occupy office space owned or leased by our Manager

and CIT Our corporate offices are located in midtown Manhattan at 505 Fifth Avenue New York NY 10017

Correspondence should be addressed to the attention of our Manager CIT Healthcare LLC We can be

contacted at 212 771-0505 In addition our Manager has operations in Ann Arbor MI Livingston NJ and

Wayne PA that provide certain services to Care

ITEM Legal Proceedings

On September 18 2007 class action complaint for violations of federal securities laws was filed in the

United States District Court Southern District of New York alleging that the Registration Statement relating

the initial public offering of shares of our common stock filed on June 21 2007 failed to disclose that certain

of the assets in the contributed portfolio were materially impaired and overvalued and that we were

experiencing increasing difficulty in securing its warehouse financing lines On January 18 2008 the court

entered an order appointing co-lead plaintiffs and co-lead counsel On February 19 2008 the co-lead plaintiffs

filed an amended complaint citing additional evidentiary support for the allegations in the complaint We
believe the complaint and allegations are without merit and intends to defend against the complaint and

allegations vigorously We filed motion to dismiss the complaint on April 22 2008 The plaintiffs filed an

opposition to our motion to dismiss on July 2008 to which we filed our reply on September 10 2008 On

March 2009 the court denied our motion to dismiss We plan to file an answer but the outcome of this

matter cannot currently be predicted To date we have incurred approximately $0.7 million to defend against

this complaint No provision for loss if any related to this matter has been accrued at December 31 2008

We are not presently involved in any other material litigation nor to our knowledge is any material

litigation threatened against us or our investments other than routine litigation arising in the ordinary course

of business Management believes the costs if any incurred by us related to litigation will not materially

affect our financial position operating results or liquidity

ITEM Submission of Matters to Vote of Security Holders

No matter was submitted to vote of shareholders during the three months ended December 31 2008
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Part II

ITEM Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Shareholder Matters and Issuer Purchases

of Equity Securities

Shares of our common stock began trading on The New York Stock Exchange on June 22 2007 under

the symbol CRE As of March 2009 there were 14 shareholders of record

The following table sets forth the high and low closing sales prices per
share of our common stock and

the distributions declared and paid per share on our common stock for the periods indicated

Dividends Dividends

2007 High Low Declared Paid

June 22 commencement of operations to June 30 $13.76 $13.50

Third Quarter
$14.93 $10.31 $0.17 $0.17

Fourth Quarter
$11.99 9.73 $0.17 $0.17

2008 _______ _______

First Quarter $12.23 $10.08 $0.17 $0.17

Second Quarter $11.50 9.43 $0.17 $0.17

Third Quarter $12.00 8.80 $0.17 $0.17

Fourth Quarter $11.61 6.85 $0.17

On March 13 2009 the closing sales price of our common stock was $5.83 per share Future distributions

will be declared and paid at the discretion of the board of directors We presently expect to continue our

policy of generally distributing at least 90% of our REIT taxable income through regular cash dividends on

quarterly basis in order to maintain our status as REIT However there is no assurance as to future dividends

because they depend on future earnings capital requirements financial condition economic conditions and the

discretion of our board of directors See ITEM Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations Dividends for additional information regarding our dividends

On March 13 2009 the board of directors declared quarterly dividend of $0.17 per share for the fourth

quarter of 2008 payable to stockholders of record of our common stock on March 26 2009 The dividend will

be paid on April 2009

On October 22 2008 we announced that the board of directors authorized the purchase from time to

time of up to 2000000 shares of our common stock On November 25 2008 we repurchased 1000000 shares

of our common stock from GoldenTree Asset Management LP at $8.33 per share and also paid GoldenTree

the dividend of $0.17 per share declared for the third quarter of 2008
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The graph below compares
the cumulative total return of Care and the SP 500 and the Equity REIT

Index and Mortgage REIT Index of the National Association of Real Estate Trusts Inc NAREIT from

June 22 2007 commencement of operations to December 31 2008 Total return assumes quarterly

reinvestment of dividends before consideration of income taxes

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
120.00

40.00

20.00

0.00

6/22/07 Jun.07 Sep-07 Dec-07 Mar-08 Jun-08 Sep-08 Dec-08

Care tnvestrnerrt Trust lee ---k- FTSE NAREITEqu/y REITs Index

.0 FTSE NAREtT Mortgage RE/Tn Index SOP 500 Index

INDEXED RETURNS

Base Quarter Ending
Period

Company/Index 6/22/07 6/30/07 9/30/07 12/31/07 3/31/08 6/30/08 9/20/08 12/31/08

Care Investment Trust Inc 100 101.85 88.74 80.91 80.75 73.24 90.55 62.65

SP Index 100 100.05 102.08 98.68 89.36 86.93 79.65 62.17

FTSE NAREIT Equity REITs Index 100 99.18 101.74 88.85 90.09 85.66 90.41 55.33

FTSE NAREIT Mortgage REITs Index 100 94.69 68.04 68.21 53.65 51.21 47.07 46.86
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ITEM Selected Financial Data

Set forth below is our selected financial data for the year ended December 31 2008 and for the period

June 22 2007 commencement of operations to December 31 2007 This information should be read in

conjunction with ITEM Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations

Operating Data

For the Period

For the June 22 2007

Year Ended Commencement
December 31 of Operations to

In thousands except share and per share data 2008 December 31 2007

Total revenues 22259 $12163

Operating expenses 44271 14339

Other income loss

Interest expense 4521 134

Loss from partially-owned entities 4431

Net loss $30806 $1557

Net loss per share basic and diluted 1.47 0.07

Cash dividends paid per
share2 0.68 0.17

Balance Sheet Data

Asof Asof
December 31 December 31

In thousands 2008 2007

Loans held for investment $236833

Investments in loans $159916

Investment in real estate net 105130

Investments in partially-owned entities 64890 72353

Total assets 370906 328398

Borrowings under warehouse line of credit 37781 25000

Mortgage notes payable 82217

Total liabilities 129774 35063

Stockholders equity 241132 293335

Other Data

For the Period

For the June 22 2007

Year Ended Commencement
December 31 of Operations to

In thousands except per share data 2008 December 31 2007

Funds from Operations3 $19832 $1557

Funds from Operations per
share 0.95 0.07

Adjusted Funds from Operations3 4560 7902

Adjusted Funds from Operations per share 0.22 0.38

For 2007 includes $9115 in stock-based compensation related to 607690 shares granted to Cares Manager CIT Healthcare LLC

upon completion of Cares initial public offering
of its common stock which vested immediately

The board of directors declared the Companys inaugural dividend of $0.17 per share for the third
quarter

2007 on November 2007

payable to stockholders of record on November 15 2007 The dividend was paid on November 30 2007 In addition and not

reflected
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in the table above on March 13 2009 the board of directors declared quarterly dividend of $0.17 per share for the fourth
quarter

of

2008 payable to stockholders of record of our common stock on March 26 2009 The dividend is to be paid on April
2009

Funds from Operations FF0 and Available Funds from Operations AFFO are non-GAAP financial measures of REIT performance

See ITEM Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Non-GAAP Financial

Measures for additional information

ITEM Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes included

herein This Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

contains certain non-GAAP financial measures See Non-GAAP Financial Measures and supporting

schedules for reconciliation of our non-GAAP financial measures to the comparable GAAP financial

measures

Overview

Care Investment Trust Inc all references to Care the Company we us and our means Care

Investment Trust Inc and its subsidiaries is an externally managed real estate investment trust REIT
formed to invest in healthcare-related real estate and mortgage debt Care was incorporated in Maryland in

March 2007 and we completed our initial public offering on June 22 2007 The Company was originally

positioned to make mortgage investments in healthcare-related properties and to opportunistically invest in

real estate through utilizing the origination platform of its external manager CIT Healthcare LLC

Manager Cares acquired its initial portfolio of mortgage loan assets from the Manager in exchange for

cash proceeds from our initial public offering and common stock In response to dislocations in the overall

credit market and in particular the securitized financing markets in late 2007 we redirected our focus to

place greater emphasis on high quality healthcare-related real estate equity investments

Our Manager is healthcare finance company that offers full-spectrum of financing solutions and

related strategic advisory services to companies across the healthcare industry throughout the United States

Our Manager was formed in 2004 and is wholly-owned subsidiary of CIT Group Inc CIT leading

middle market global commercial finance company that provides financial and advisory services

As of December 31 2008 we maintained diversified investment portfolio consisting of $64.9 million in

unconsolidated joint ventures that own real estate $105.1 million invested in wholly owned real estate and

$159.9 million in 18 investments in mortgage loans Our current investments in healthcare real estate include

medical office buildings and assisted and independent living facilities and Alzheimer facilities Our loan

portfolio is primarily composed of first mortgages on skilled nursing facilities assisted and independent living

facilities and mixed-use facilities

As REIT we generally will not be subject to federal taxes on our REIT taxable income to the extent

that we distribute our taxable income to stockholders and maintain our qualification as REIT

We utilize leverage in accordance with our investment guidelines in order to increase our overall returns

Our investment guidelines state that our leverage will generally not exceed 80% of the total value of our

investments Dislocations in the credit markets have resulted in significantly reduced availability of liquidity

and have required Care to utilize less leverage resulting in slower growth than planned We cannot anticipate

when credit markets will stabilize and liquidity becomes more available Our actual leverage will depend on

our mix of investments and the cost and availability of leverage Our charter and bylaws do not limit the

amount of indebtedness we can incur and our board of directors has discretion to deviate from or change

investment guidelines at any time

We have used short-term financing in the form of warehouse facility to partially finance our

investments The Company executed warehouse facility with Column Financial Inc an affiliate of Credit

Suisse Securities LLC on October 2007 At December 31 2008 we had pledged eight mortgage loans with

total principal balance of $114.8 million into the warehouse line to secure borrowings of $37.8 million On

March 2009 we repaid these borrowings in full and terminated the warehouse line See Note 19
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Care is externally managed and advised by CIT Healthcare LLC Manager wholly-owned subsidiary

of CIT Group Inc CIT leading middle market global commercial finance company that provides

financial and advisory services Our Manager formed in 2004 is healthcare finance company that offers

full-spectrum of financing solutions and related strategic advisory services to companies across the healthcare

industry throughout the United States

Critical Accounting Policies

Our financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America which requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial

statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods Actual results

could differ from those estimates Set forth below is summary of our accounting policies that we believe are

critical to the preparation of our consolidated financial statements This summary should be read in

conjunction with more complete discussion of our accounting policies included in Note to the consolidated

financial statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include our accounts and those of our subsidiaries which are

wholly-owned or controlled by us All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been

eliminated

FIN No 46R requires company to identify investments in other entities for which control is achieved

through means other than voting rights variable interest entities or VIEs and to determine which business

enterprise is the primary beneficiary of the VIE variable interest entity is broadly defined as an entity where

either the equity investors as group if any do not have controlling financial interest or the equity

investment at risk is insufficient to finance that entitys activities without additional subordinated financial

support The Company consolidates investments in VIEs when it is determined that the Company is the

primary beneficiary of the VIE at either the creation or the variable interest entity or upon the occulTence of

reconsideration event

Investments in partially-owned entities where the Company exercises significant influence over operating

and financial policies of the subsidiary but where we do not control the subsidiary are reported under the

equity method of accounting Generally under the equity method of accounting the Companys share of the

investees earnings or loss is included in the Companys operating results Entities that qualify as VIEs under

FIN 46R for which we are not the primary beneficiary are also accounted for under the equity method of

accounting

Loans held at LOCOM

Investments in loans amounted to $159.9 million at December 31 2008 We account for our investment

in loans in accordance with SFAS No 65 Accounting for Certain Mortgage Banking Activities

SFAS No 65 Under SFAS No 65 loans expected to be held for the foreseeable future or to maturity

should be held at amortized cost and all other loans should be held at the lower of cost or market LOCOM
measured on an individual basis At December 31 2008 in connection with our decision to reposition

ourselves from mortgage REIT to traditional direct property ownership REIT referred to as an equity

REIT see Notes and to the financial statements and as result of current market conditions we

transferred our portfolio of mortgage loans to LOCOM because we are not certain that we will hold the

portfolio of loans either until maturity or for the foreseeable future In connection with the transfer we

recorded valuation allowance of approximately $29.3 million representing the difference between our

carrying amount of the loans and their estimated fair value at December 31 2008

Until December 31 2008 we held our loans until maturity and therefore the loans were carried at

amortized cost net of unamortized loan fees acquisition and origination costs unless the loans were impaired
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Coupon interest on the loans is recognized as revenue when earned Receivables are evaluated for

collectibility if loan becomes more than 90 days past due If fair value is lower than amortized cost changes

in fair value gains and losses are reported through our consolidated statement of operations through

valuation allowance on loans held at LOCOM Loans previously written down may be written up based upon

subsequent recoveries in value but not above their cost basis

Expense for credit losses in connection with loan investments is charge to earnings to increase the

allowance for credit losses to the level that management estimates to be adequate to cover probable losses

Factors considered when making that evaluation are delinquencies loss experience and collateral quality

Specific valuation allowances are established for impaired loans under SFAS 114 based on the fair value of

collateral on an individual loan basis The fair value of the collateral may be determined by an evaluation of

operating cash flow from the property during the projected holding period and estimated sales value computed

by applying an expected capitalization rate to the stabilized net operating income of the specific property less

selling costs Alternatively for construction loans the fair value of the collateral may be determined based on

the estimated cost to complete and projected sales value of the property Whichever method is used other

factors considered relate to geographic trends and project diversification the size of the portfolio and current

economic conditions Based upon these factors we will establish an allowance for credit losses when

appropriate

Where impairment is indicated an impairment charge is recorded based upon the excess of the recorded

investment amount over the net fair value of the collateral As of December 31 2008 we had no impaired

loans

We rely on significant subjective judgments and assumptions of our Manager i.e discount rates

expected prepayments market comparables etc regarding the above items Those judgements and assump

tions may change based on subsequent changes in market conditions

Real Estate

Real estate is carried at cost net of accumulated depreciation and amortization Betterments major

renewals and certain costs directly related to the acquisition improvement and leasing of real estate are

capitalized Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred Depreciation is provided on

straight-line basis over the assets estimated useful lives which range from to 40 years Tenant allowances

are amortized on straight-line basis over the lives of the related leases

Upon the acquisition of real estate we assess the fair value of acquired assets including land buildings

and improvements and identified intangibles such as above and below market leases and acquired in-place

leases and customer relationships and acquired liabilities in accordance with Statement of Financial Account

ing Standards SFAS No 141 Business Combinations and SFAS No 142 Goodwill and Other Intangible

Assets and we allocate purchase price based on these assessments We assess fair value based on estimated

cash flow projections that utilize appropriate discount and capitalization rates and available market informa

tion Estimates of future cash flows are based on number of factors including the historical operating results

known trends and marketJeconomic conditions that may affect the property

Our properties including any related intangible assets are reviewed for impairment if events or

circumstances change indicating that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable An impairment

exists when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its fair value An impairment loss is measured based on

the excess of the carrying amount over the fair value We have determined fair value by using discounted

cash flow model and an appropriate discount rate The evaluation of anticipated cash flows is subjective and is

based in part on assumptions regarding future occupancy rental rates and capital requirements that could

differ materially from actual results If our anticipated holding periods change or estimated cash flows decline

based on market conditions or otherwise an impairment loss may be recognized As of December 31 2008

we have not recognized an impairment loss
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Revenue Recognition

Interest income on investments in loans is recognized over the life of the investment on the accrual basis

Fees received in connection with loans are recognized over the term of the loan as an adjustment to yield

Anticipated exit fees whose collection is expected will also be recognized over the term of the loan as an

adjustment to yield Unamortized fees are recognized when the associated loan investment is repaid before

maturity on the date of such repayment Premium and discount on purchased loans are amortized or accreted

on the effective yield method over the remaining terms of the loans

Income recognition will generally be suspended for loan investments at the earlier of the date at which

payments become 90 days past due or when in our opinion full recovery of income and principal becomes

doubtful Income recognition is resumed when the loan becomes contractually current and performance is

demonstrated to be resumed As of December 31 2008 we have no loans for which income recognition has

been suspended

Rents on the Companys real estate holdings are recognized over the non-cancelable term of the related

leases on straight-line basis which includes the effects of rent escalations We commence rental revenue

recognition when the tenant takes control of the leased space

Stock-based Compensation Plans

We account for stock-based compensation in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards SFAS 123R Share-based Payment SFAS 123R SFAS 123R requires that

compensation cost for stock based compensation be recognized ratably over the service period of the award

Because all of our stock-based compensation is issued to non-employees the amount of compensation is to be

adjusted in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force EITF 96-18 Accounting for Equity Instruments

That are Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring or in Conjunction with Selling Goods or Services in

each subsequent reporting period based on the fair value of the award at the end of the reporting period until

such time as the award has vested or the service being provided is substantially completed or under certain

circumstances likely to be completed whichever occurs first

Derivative Instruments

We account for derivative instruments in accordance with SFAS No 133 Accounting for Derivative

Instruments and Hedging Activities as amended and interpreted In the normal course of business we may use

variety of derivative instruments to manage or hedge interest rate risk We will require that hedging

derivative instruments be effective in reducing the interest rate risk exposure they are designated to hedge

This effectiveness is essential for qualifying for hedge accounting Some derivative instruments may be

associated with an anticipated transaction In those cases hedge effectiveness criteria also require that it be

probable that the underlying transaction will occur Instruments that meet these hedging criteria will be

formally designated as hedges at the inception of the derivative contract

To determine the fair value of derivative instruments we may use variety of methods and assumptions

that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each balance sheet date For the majority of financial

instruments including most derivatives long-term investments and long-term debt standard market conventions

and techniques such as discounted cash flow analysis option-pricing models replacement cost and termina

tion cost are likely to be used to determine fair value All methods of assessing fair value result in general

approximation of fair value and such value may never actually be realized

We may use variety of commonly used derivative products that are considered plain vanilla

derivatives These derivatives typically include interest rate swaps caps collars and floors We expressly

prohibit the use of unconventional derivative instruments and using derivative instruments for trading or

speculative purposes Further we have policy of only entering into contracts with major financial institutions

based upon their credit ratings and other factors so we do not anticipate nonperformance by any of our

counterparties
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We may employ swaps forwards or purchased options to hedge qualifying forecasted transactions Gains

and losses related to these transactions are deferred and recognized in net income as interest expense in the

same period or periods that the underlying transaction occurs expires or is otherwise terminated

Hedges that are reported at fair value and presented on the balance sheet could be characterized as either

cash flow hedges or fair value hedges For derivative instruments not designated as hedging instruments the

gain or loss resulting from the change in the estimated fair value of the derivative instruments will be

recognized in current earnings during the period of change

Income Taxes

We have elected to be taxed as REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue Code To

qualify as REIT we must meet certain organizational and operational requirements including requirement

to distribute at least 90% of our REIT taxable income to stockholders As REIT we generally will not be

subject to federal income tax on taxable income that we distribute to our stockholders If we fail to qualify as

REIT in any taxable year we will then be subject to federal income tax on our taxable income at regular

corporate rates and we will not be permitted to qualify for treatment as REIT for federal income tax

purposes for four years following the year during which qualification is lost unless the Internal Revenue

Service grants us relief under certain statutory provisions Such an event could materially adversely affect our

net income and net cash available for distributions to stockholders However we believe that we will operate

in such manner as to qualify for treatment as REIT and we intend to operate in the foreseeable future in

such manner so that we will qualify as REIT for federal income tax purposes
We may however be

subject to certain state and local taxes

Earnings per Share

We present basic earnings per share or EPS in accordance with SFAS No 128 Earnings per Share We

also present diluted EPS when diluted EPS is lower than basic EPS Basic EPS excludes dilution and is

computed by dividing net income available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of

common shares outstanding during the period Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur if

securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common stock where

such exercise or conversion would result in lower EPS amount At December 31 2008 diluted EPS was the

same as basic EPS because all outstanding restricted stock awards were anti-dilutive The operating partnership

units issued in connection with our investment in the Cambridge medical office building portfolio See
Note are in escrow and do not impact EPS

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates

and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and the accompanying notes

Actual results could differ from those estimates

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash

investments loan investments and interest receivable We may place our cash investments in excess of insured

amounts with high quality financial institutions We perform ongoing analysis of credit risk concentrations in

our loan investment portfolio by evaluating exposure to various markets underlying property types investment

structure term sponsors tenant mix and other credit metrics The collateral securing our loan investments are

real estate properties located in the United States

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued Statement No 157 Fair

Value Measurements SFAS 157 SFAS 157 defines fair value establishes framework for measuring fair

value in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and
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expands disclosures about fair value measurements SFAS 157 was effective for our financial assets and

liabilities on January 2008 The FASB has deferred the implementation of the provisions of SFAS 157

relating to certain non-financial assets and liabilities until January 2009 This standard did not materially

affect how we determine fair value but resulted in certain additional disclosures

In February 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and

Financial Liabilities Including an amendment of FASB Statement No 115 This statement permits companies

to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value SFAS 159 was effective for the

Company on January 2008 The Company did not elect the fair value option for any if its existing financial

instruments on the effective date and has not determined whether or not it will elect this option for any

eligible financial instruments it acquires in the future

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 160 Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial

Statements an amendment of ARB No 51 SFAS 160 requires that noncontrolling interest in subsidiary

be reported as equity and the amount of consolidated net income specifically attributable to the noncontrolling

interest be identified in the consolidated financial statements It also calls for consistency in the manner of

reporting changes in the parents ownership interest and requires fair value measurement of any noncontrolling

equity investment retained in deconsolidation SFAS 160 is effective for the Company on January 2009

The adoption of SFAS 160 did not have an impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS l4lR Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 141

revised 2007 Business Combinations SFAS 141R broadens the guidance of SFAS 141 extending its

applicability to all transactions and other events in which one entity obtains control over one or more other

businesses It broadens the fair value measurement and recognition of assets acquired liabilities assumed and

interests transferred as result of business combinations SFAS 141R expands on required disclosures to

improve the statement users abilities to evaluate the nature and financial effects of business combinations

SFAS 141 is effective for the Company for any business combinations we entered into on or after January

2009 The Company has not determined whether or not the adoption of SFAS l4lR will have material effect

on its consolidated financial statements

Results of Operations

We commenced operations on June 22 2007 with the completion of our initial public offering The

following compares our results of operations for the year ended December 31 2008 against our results of

operations for the period from June 22 2007 commencement of operations to December 31 2007 In most

cases the increases in revenue and expense amounts are attributable to the fact that the comparative period

comprised only approximately six months of operations

Revenue

Income from Investments in Loans

We earned income from our portfolio of mortgage investments of approximately $15.8 million in 2008 as

compared to approximately $11.2 million in 2007 an increase of approximately 41.1% The increase is

primarily due to an additional six months of interest income from the loan portfolio partially offset by net

decrease in the portfolio due to payoffs and amortizations of approximately $54.2 million and decrease in

the one month LIBOR from an average of 5.2% for the period from June 22 2007 commencement of

operations to December 31 2007 to an average
2.7% for the year ended December 31 2008

Rental Revenues

In 2008 we recognized $6.2 million of rental revenue on the twelve properties acquired in the Bickford

transaction on June 26 2008 and the acquisition of two additional properties from Bickford on September 30

2008 Rental revenue includes the collection of tax escrows from the lessee of approximately $0.5 million

offset by an expense of approximately the same amount We did not have any wholly-owned real estate

investments in 2007 and thus did not receive any rental revenue in 2007
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Other Income

Other income in 2008 amounted to $0.2 million and consisted of ancillary fees collected of approximately

$0.2 million as compared to $1.0 million in 2007 The decrease in other income is primarily due to

prepayment fee collected on loan in 2007 of approximately $0.7 million

Expenses

Expenses for the year ended December 31 2008 amounted to approximately $44.3 million as compared

to approximately $14.3 million for 2007 for an increase of $30.0 million This increase relates to an increase

in management fees of $1.5 million discussed below and an increase in marketing general and administrative

expenses of $3.2 million before considering stock-based compensation expense over 2007 as result of

having full year of operations in 2008 We also incurred $1.5 million in depreciation and amortization

related to the acquisition of the Bickford properties described in Note and incurred $2.7 million loss on

the sale of mortgage loan to our Manager These increases are partially offset by an $8.2 million decrease in

stock based compensation from 2007 We also incurred $29.3 million charge related to recording valuation

allowance on our loans held at LOCOM which is discussed below

Management Fees

Our management fees increased from $2.6 million in 2007 to $4.1 million in 2008 as result of having

full year of operations in 2008 This increase was partially offset by reduction in our management fee that

became effective on September 30 2008

Valuation Allowance on Loans Held at LOCOM

Investments in loans amounted to $159.9 million at December 31 2008 We account for our investments

in loans in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard SFAS No 65 Accounting for

Certain Mortgage Banking Activities SFAS No 65 Under SFAS No 65 loans expected to be held for the

foreseeable future or to maturity should be held at amortized costs and all other loans should be held at lower

of cost or market LOCOM measured on an individual basis At December 31 2008 in connection with our

decision to reposition ourselves from mortgage REIT to traditional direct property ownership REIT

referred to as an equity REIT see Notes and to the financial statements and as result of current

market conditions we transferred our portfolio of mortgage loans to LOCOM because we are not certain that

we will hold the portfolio of loans either until maturity or for the foreseeable future In connection with the

transfer we recorded valuation allowance of approximately $29.3 million representing the difference between

our carrying amount of the loans and their estimated fair value at December 2008

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expenses increased to $1.6 million in 2008 primarily because we did not

have any wholly-owned real estate investments in 2007 The depreciation and amortization expenses we

incurred in 2008 relate to the Bickford assets we acquired in June and September 2008

Interest Expense

We incurred interest expense on borrowings from our warehouse line of credit and mortgages associated

with the acquisition of the Bickford properties of $4.5 million in 2008 as compared to $0.1 million in 2007

The increase was principally due to the interest expense associated with the Bickford acquisition of

$4.2 million plus larger average borrowings during the year on our warehouse facility

Loss on Partially-Owned Entities

We recognized loss from our investments in partially owned entities of $4.4 million in 2008 which

included $9.4 million attributable to our share of the depreciation and amortization expenses associated with

the Cambridge properties We closed on our first investments in partially owned entities the Cambridge and
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Senior Management Concepts transactions on December 31 2007 therefore the loss on this venture did not

have an effect on our performance in 2007

Unrealized Loss on Derivative

We recognized an unrealized loss on derivative associated with the Cambridge acquisition of approxi

mately $0.2 million in 2008 representing an increase in the liability associated with the obligation to issue

operating partnership units in connection with the Cambridge transaction

Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents were $31.8 million at December 31 2008 as compared to $15.3 million in

2007 for an increase of $16.5 million Cash flows during 2008 were provided by $71.4 million in net proceeds

from our financing activities and $13.0 million from operations offset by $67.9 million in net investment

activity over the year

Net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31 2008 amounted to $13.0 mil

lion as compared to $11.9 million in 2007 Net loss before adjustments was $30.8 million Equity in the

operating results of and distributions from investments in partially-owned entities added $7.8 million Non-

cash charges for straight-line effects of lease revenue losses on our loan portfolio valuation allowance on

loans at LOCOM amortization of loan premium deferred financing costs amortization of deferred fees

expenses for stock-based compensation unrealized losses on derivatives depreciation and amortization and the

net loss on the prepayment of loan contributed $35.7 million The net change in operating assets and

liabilities contributed $0.4 million and consisted of decrease in accrued interest receivable of $0.9 million

and an increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses of $0.1 million offset by $0.6 million decrease in

other liabilities including amounts due to related party

Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31 2008 decreased approximately

$159.4 million over 2007 The decrease primarily related to the initial contribution of investments made by

our Manager in 2007 which decreased by approximately $204.2 million decrease in investments in

partially-owned entities of $69.2 million and decreases in loan fundings in 2008 as compared to 2007 totaling

$7.0 million These decreases were partially offset by the investment in the Bickford properties totaling

$111.0 million and decrease in loan principal repayments from the prior year totaling $10.0 million

Net cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31 2008 decreased approximately

$159.4 million over 2007 The decrease primarily related to the fact that we raised $210.1 million net of

offering costs in our initial public offering in 2007 We also experienced decrease in borrowings under the

Companys warehouse facility of $11.4 million and decreases due to the repurchase of treasury stock in 2008

totaling $8.3 million and the payment of full year
of dividends in 2008 totaling $10.7 million These

decreases were principally offset by borrowings from mortgage loans associated with the Bickford transaction

totaling $82.2 million

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity is measurement of our ability to meet potential cash requirements including ongoing

commitments to repay borrowings fund and maintain loans and other investments pay
dividends and other

general business needs Our primary sources of liquidity are net interest income earned on our portfolio of

loans rental income from our real estate properties distributions from our joint ventures and interest income

earned from our available cash balances We also obtain liquidity from repayments of principal by our

borrowers in connection with our loans Lastly as discussed further below we have an agreement with our

Manager to sell to our Manager certain of our loan assets under Mortgage Purchase Agreement which we

consider an additional potential source of liquidity

As of December 31 2008 the Company had $31.8 million in cash and cash equivalents including

$1.3 million related to customer deposits maintained in an unrestricted account Due to our sale of loan to
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our Manager for $22.5 million on February 2009 under the Mortgage Purchase Agreement we had

approximately $55 million in cash and cash equivalents as of March 2009

Historically we have relied on borrowings under warehouse line of credit extended by Column

Financial lender affiliated with Credit Suisse to fund our investments We collateralized the borrowings

under our warehouse line of credit with mortgage loans in our portfolio As of December 31 2008 the

Company had pledged eight mortgage loans with total principal balance of $114.8 million into the

warehouse line and had $37.8 million in borrowings outstanding under the line On March 2009 we repaid

these borrowings in full with cash on hand and terminated the warehouse line After repayment of the

borrowings under our warehouse line of credit we have $19.6 million in cash and cash equivalents as of

March 2009

We expect that based upon anticipated loan prepayments and the cash flows from our investments along

with the projected funding schedule of our commitments we will have adequate liquidity to meet our funding

obligations for the foreseeable future Should loan prepayments not occur as we expect or funding

commitments be required earlier than we anticipate we intend to rely on the Mortgage Purchase Agreement

discussed below to meet any funding obligation prior to its expiration on September 30 2009

On September 30 2008 we entered into Mortgage Purchase Agreement MPA with our Manager in

order to secure potential additional source of liquidity Pursuant to the MPA the Company has the right but

not the obligation to cause the Manager to purchase its current senior mortgage assets the Mortgage

Assets at their then-current fair market value as determined by third party appraiser However the MPA

provides that in no event shall the Manager be obligated to purchase any Mortgage Asset if the Manager

has already purchased Mortgage Assets with an aggregate sale price of $125.0 million pursuant to the MPA or

the third-party appraiser determines that the fair market value of such Mortgage Asset is greater than 105%

of the then outstanding principal balance of such Mortgage Asset The Company may exercise its rights under

the MPA with respect to any or all of the Mortgage Assets identified in the MPA at any time or from time to

time until the MPA expires on September 30 2009 There can be no assurance that we will be able to sell our

loans to our Manager at attractive prices or that our Manager will not refuse to or be unable to honor its

commitment under the MPA

Pursuant to the MPA we have sold two separate loans with carrying amounts of $24.8 million and

$27.0 million for total proceeds of $44.9 million The sale of the first loan closed in November of 2008 and

the Company recorded loss on the sale of $2.4 million in the consolidated statement of operations for the

year ended December 31 2008 The second loan closed in February of 2009 at loss of $4.9 million The

loss on this loan was included in the valuation allowance on loans held at LOCOM at December 31 2008 As

result of these sales under the MPA $80.1 million remains available under the MPA subject to the

conditions of the MPA

Our ability to meet our long-term liquidity and capital resource requirements will be subject to obtaining

additional debt financing We cannot anticipate when credit markets will stabilize and liquidity will become

available If we are unable to replace or expand our sources of financing it may have an adverse effect on our

business results of operations and ability to make distributions to our stockholders

To maintain our status as REIT under the Internal Revenue Code we must distribute annually at least

90% of our REIT taxable income These distribution requirements limit our ability to retain earnings and

thereby replenish or increase capital for operations
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Contractual Obligations

The table below summarizes our contractual obligations as of December 31 2008 amounts in millions

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Thereafter

Repayment of warehouse borrowings $37.8

Commitment to fund loans $4.2

Commitment to fund tenant improvements $4.2

Commitment to fund earn out $7.2

Mortgage notes payable $6.1 6.5 $6.5 $6.5 $6.5 $86.9

Management fee $2.3 $16.6

We repaid our borrowings under the warehouse line of credit in full on March 2009

Our principal contractual obligations relate to tenant improvements commitments to fund additional loans

from our mortgage loan borrowers and the mortgages we entered into with Red Mortgage Capital in

connection with our acquisition of the Bickford properties in June and September 2008 and commitment to

pay an earn out fee to Eby Realty Group We also are obligated to pay our Manager base management fee

on monthly basis See Related Party Transactions and Agreements Management Agreement below

Care has commitments at December 31 2008 to extend credit or finance tenant improvements amounting

to $15.6 million For the table above the estimated amounts and timing of the commitments to fund loans are

based on projections on data provided by borrowers The projections are subject to adjustments based on

changes in borrowers needs Similarly the estimated amounts and timing of the commitments to fund tenant

improvements are based on projections by the property managers who are affiliates of Cambridge We have

estimated amounts due to our Manager under the Management Agreement based on experience to date and

estimates of our capital position in the near-term until the expiration of the agreement in June 2010

Eby Realty Group the seller of our Bickford properties has the opportunity to earn an additional

$7.2 million from us as an earn out payment based on the performance of the properties and under certain

other conditions and while there can be no assurance it is possible that such performance can be achieved in

2009 requiring us to pay the earn out payment

On June 26 2008 with the acquisition of the twelve properties from Bickford Senior Living Group LLC

the Company entered into mortgage loan with Red Mortgage Capital Inc for $74.6 million The terms of

the mortgage require interest-only payments at fixed interest rate of 6.845% for the first twelve months

Commencing on the first anniversary and every month thereafter the mortgage loan requires fixed monthly

payment of $0.5 million for both principal and interest until the maturity in July 2015 when the then

outstanding balance of $69.6 million is due and payable The mortgage loan is collateralized by the properties

On September 30 2008 with the acquisition of the two additional properties from Bickford the Company

entered into an additional mortgage loan with Red Mortgage Capital Inc for $7.6 million The terms of the

mortgage require interest and principal payments of approximately $52000 based on fixed interest rate of

7.17% until the maturity in July 2015 when the then outstanding balance of $7.1 million is due and payable

Care paid approximately $10600 in principal amortization during the year ended December 31 2008 The

mortgage loan is collateralized by the properties

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As discussed above in Business Unconsolidated Joint Ventures we own interests in certain unconsol

idated joint ventures Our risk of loss associated with these investments is limited to our investment in the

joint venture However under the terms of our investment in the joint venture with Cambridge Holdings Inc

Cambridge has the contractual right to put its 15% interest in the properties to us at an agreed upon market or

appraised value in the event we enter into change in control transaction
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Dividends

To maintain our qualification as REIT we must pay annual dividends to our stockholders of at least

90% of our REIT taxable income determined before taking into consideration the dividends paid deduction

and net capital gains We intend to pay regular quarterly dividends to our stockholders Before we pay any

dividend whether for federal income tax purposes or otherwise which would only be paid out of available

cash to the extent permitted under our secured credit facility we must first meet both our operating

requirements and any scheduled debt service on our outstanding borrowings

Related Party Transactions and Agreements

Contribution Agreement

In connection with our initial public offering we and our Manager entered into contribution agreement

pursuant to which our Manager contributed portfolio of initial assets to us and we issued to our Manager

shares of our common stock and cash We determined that the fair value of the assets contributed was

approximately $283.1 million on June 27 2007 inclusive of approximately $4.6 million in premium The

initial assets were acquired in exchange for approximately $204.3 million in cash from the proceeds of our

initial public offering and 5256250 restricted shares of our common stock at fair value of approximately

$78.8 million We recorded each initial asset we purchased at its estimated fair value

Management Agreement

In connection with our initial public offering we entered into Management Agreement with our

Manager which describes the services to be provided by our Manager and its compensation for those services

Under the Management Agreement our Manager subject to the oversight of our board of directors is required

to conduct our business affairs in conformity with the policies and the investment guidelines that are approved

by our board of directors The Management Agreement has an initial term expiring on June 30 2010 and will

automatically be renewed for one-year terms thereafter unless terminated by us or our Manager

On September 30 2008 we amended the Amendment the Management Agreement between ourselves

and the Manager Pursuant to the terms of the Amendment the Base Management Fee as defined in the

Management Agreement payable to the Manager under the Management Agreement is reduced from

monthly amount equal to 1/12 of 1.75% of the Companys equity as defined in the Management Agreement

to monthly amount equal to 1/12 of 0.875% of the Companys equity In addition pursuant to the terms of

the Amendment the Incentive Fee as defined in the Management Agreement payable to the Manager

pursuant to the Management Agreement was eliminated and the Termination Fee as defined in the

Management Agreement payable to the Manager upon the termination or non-renewal of the Management

Agreement shall be equal to the average annual Base Management Fee as earned by the Manager during the

immediately preceding two years but in no event shall the Termination Fee be less than $15.4 million No
termination fee is payable if we terminate the Management Agreement for cause

In consideration of the Amendment and for the Managers continued and future services to the Company
the Company granted the Manager warrants to purchase 435000 shares of the Companys common stock at

$17.00 per share the Warrant under the Manager Equity Plan adopted by the Company on June 21 2007

the Manager Equity Plan The Warrant which is immediately exercisable expires on September 30 2018

For the period ended December 31 2008 we recognized $4.1 million in management fee expense related

to the base management fee and our Manager was not eligible for an incentive fee Since our initial public

offering transactions with our Manager relating to our initial public offering and the Management Agreement

included

The acquisition of our initial assets from our Manager upon the completion of Cares initial public

offering The fair value of the acquisitions was approximately $283.1 million inclusive of approximately

$4.6 million in premium In exchange for these assets we issued 5256250 restricted shares of common
stock to our Manager at fair value of approximately $78.8 million and paid approximately

$204.3 million in cash from the proceeds of our initial public offering

53



Our issuance of 607690 shares of common stock issued to our Manager concurrently with our initial

public offering at fair value of $9.1 million at date of grant These shares vested immediately and

therefore their fair value was expensed at issuance

Our issuance of 133333 restricted shares of common stock to our Managers employees some of

whom are also Care officers or directors and 15000 shares to our independent directors at IPO with

total fair value of approximately $2.2 million at the date of grant The shares granted to our Managers

employees vest on June 22 2010 three years from the date of grant The shares granted to our

independent directors vest ratably over the next three years on each anniversary of the date of grant

Pursuant to SFAS 123R we recognized approximately $0.4 and $0.3 million respectively in expense for

the year ended December 31 2008 and for the period from June 22 2007 commencement of

operations to December 31 2007 related to these grants The remainder of this compensation will be

recognized over the remaining vesting period and the amount of the compensation adjusted to fair value

at each measurement date pursuant to SFAS 123R

During the year ended December 31 2008 42000 shares of restricted stock granted to our Managers

employees were forfeited and 10000 shares vested due to termination of an officer of the Manager

without cause In addition 20000 shares of restricted stock were granted to new independent board

member who formerly served as non-independent board member and an employee of our Manager

These shares had fair value of $183000 at issuance and vest on June 27 2010 Also on April

2008 shares of restricted stock units were awarded to the Companys CEO The restricted stock units

had fair value of $385000 on the grant date The vesting of the award is 50% on the third anniversary

of the award and the remaining 50% on the fourth anniversary of the award

On May 12 2008 two new long-term equity incentive programs were awarded The first program is an

annual performance-based restricted stock unit program and the second program is three-year

performance share plan The restrict stock units will vest in equal installments on each of the first four

anniversaries of the grant date In connection with the initial adoption of the restricted stock unit award

program certain employees of the Manager were granted 68308 restricted stock units on the adoption

date with fair value of $0.7 million

Our $3.8 million liability to our Manager for professional fees paid and other third party costs incurred

by our Manager on behalf of Care related to the initial public offering of our common stock

$1.5 million and business operations $2.3 million and

Expenses of $2.6 million for the Base Management Fee as required pursuant to our agreement with our

Manager for the period June 22 2007 to December 31 2007 and expenses of $4.1 million for the Base

Management Fee for the year ended December 31 2008

Mortgage Purchase Agreement

On September 30 2008 we entered into Mortgage Purchase Agreement MPA with our Manager in

order to secure potential additional source of liquidity Pursuant to the MPA the Company has the right but

not the obligation to cause the Manager to purchase its current senior mortgage assets the Mortgage

Assets at their then-current fair market value as determined by third party appraiser However the MPA

provides that in no event shall the Manager be obligated to purchase any Mortgage Asset if the Manager

has already purchased Mortgage Assets with an aggregate sale price of $125.0 million pursuant to the MPA or

the third-party appraiser determines that the fair market value of such Mortgage Asset is greater than 105%

of the then outstanding principal balance of such Mortgage Asset The Company may exercise its rights under

the MPA with respect to any or all of the Mortgage Assets identified in the MPA at any time or from time to

time until the MPA expires on September 30 2009 There can be no assurance that we will be able to sell our

loans to our Manager at attractive prices or that our Manager will not refuse to or be unable to honor its

commitment under the MPA

Pursuant to the MPA we have sold two separate loans with carrying amounts of $24.8 million and

$27.0 million for total proceeds of $44.9 million The sale of the first loan closed in November of 2008 and
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the company recorded loss on the sale of $2.4 million in the consolidated statement of operations for the

year ended December 31 2008 The second loan closed in February of 2009 at loss of $4.9 million The

loss on this loan was included in the valuation allowance on the loans held at LOCOM at December 31 2008

As result of these sales under the MPA $80.4 million remains available under the MPA subject to the

conditions of the MPA

Warrant

In consideration of the Amendment and for the Managers continued and future services to the Company
the Company granted the Manager warrants to purchase 435000 shares of the Companys common stock at

$17.00 per share the Warrant under the Manager Equity Plan adopted by the Company on June 21 2007

the Manager Equity Plan The Warrant which is immediately exercisable expires on September 30 2018

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Funds from Operations

Funds from Operations or FF0 which is non-GAAP financial measure is widely recognized measure

of REIT performance We compute FF0 in accordance with standards established by the National Association

of Real Estate Investment Trusts or NAREIT which may not be comparable to FF0 reported by other REITs

that do not compute FF0 in accordance with the NAREIT definition or that interpret the NAREIT definition

differently than we do

The revised White Paper on FF0 approved by the Board of Governors of NAREIT in April 2002 defines

FF0 as net income loss computed in accordance with GAAP excluding gains or losses from debt

restructuring and sales of properties plus real estate related depreciation and amortization and after

adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures

Adjusted Funds from Operations

Adjusted Funds from Operations or AFFO is non-GAAP financial measure We calculate AFFO as net

income loss computed in accordance with GAAP excluding gains losses from debt restructuring and

gains losses from sales of property plus the expenses associated with depreciation and amortization on real

estate assets and non-cash equity compensation expenses and the effects of straight lining lease revenue one
time events pursuant to changes in GAAP and other non-cash charges Proportionate adjustments for

unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures will also be taken when calculating the Companys AFFO

We believe that FF0 and AFFO provide additional measures of our core operating performance by

eliminating the impact of certain non-cash expenses and facilitating comparison of our financial results to

those of other comparable REITs with fewer or no non-cash charges and comparison of our own operating

results from period to period The Company uses FF0 and AFFO in this way and also uses AFFO as one

performance metric in the Companys executive compensation program The Company also believes that its

investors also use FF0 and AFFO to evaluate and compare the performance of the Company and its peers and

as such the Company believes that the disclosure of FF0 and AFFO is useful to and expected of its

investors

However the Company cautions that neither FF0 nor AFFO represent cash generated from operating

activities in accordance with GAAP and they should not be considered as an alternative to net income

determined in accordance with GAAP or an indication of our cash flow from operating activities

determined in accordance with GAAP measure of our liquidity or an indication of funds available to fund

our cash needs including our ability to make cash distributions In addition our methodology for calculating

FF0 and/or AFFO may differ from the methodologies employed by other REITs to calculate the same or

similar supplemental performance measures and accordingly our reported FF0 and/or AFFO may not be

comparable to the FF0 or AFFO reported by other REITs
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FF0 and AFFO for the year ended December 31 2008 were as follows in thousands except per share

data

In thousands except share and per share data

Net loss

Depreciation and amortization from partially owned entities

Depreciation and amortization on owned properties

Valuation allowance for loans carried at LOCOM

Straight-line effects of lease revenue

Obligation to issue OP Units

Stock-based compensation

Funds From Operations and Adjusted Funds From Operations

FF0 and Adjusted FF0 per share basic

FF0 and Adjusted FF0 per share dilutedW

Weighted average shares outstanding basic

Weighted average shares outstanding diluted

FF0 per diluted share is anti-dilutive and therefore not provided

For the year ended

December 31 2008

FF0 AFFO

30806 30806

9420 9420

1554 1554

24469

1214

195

942

19832 4560

0.95 0.22

0.22

20952972 20952972

21148313 21148313
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ITEM 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Market risk includes risks that arise from changes in interest rates commodity prices equity prices and

other market changes that affect market sensitive instruments In pursuing our business plan we expect that

the primary market risks to which we will be exposed are real estate and interest rate risks

Real Estate Risk

The value of owned real estate commercial mortgage assets and net operating income derived from such

properties are subject to volatility and may be affected adversely by number of factors including but not

limited to national regional and local economic conditions which may be adversely affected by industry

slowdowns and other factors local real estate conditions such as an oversupply of retail industrial office or

other commercial space changes or continued weakness in specific industry segments construction quality

age and design demographic factors retroactive changes to building or similar codes and increases in

operating expenses such as energy costs In the event net operating income decreases or the value of

property held for sale decreases borrower may have difficulty paying our rent or repaying our loans which

could result in losses to us Even when propertys net operating income is sufficient to cover the propertys

debt service at the time an investment is made there can be no assurance that this will continue in the future

The current turmoil in the residential mortgage market may continue to have an effect on the commercial

mortgage market and real estate industry in general

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is highly sensitive to many factors including the availability of liquidity governmental

monetary and tax policies domestic and international economic and political considerations and other factors

beyond our control

Our operating results will depend in large part on differences between the income from assets in our

mortgage loan portfolio and our borrowing costs Most of our loan assets and borrowings are expected to be

variable-rate instruments that we will finance with variable rate debt The objective of this strategy is to

minimize the impact of interest rate changes on the spread between the yield on our assets and our cost of

funds Although we have not done so to date we may enter into hedging transactions with respect to liabilities

relating to fixed rate assets in the future If we were to finance fixed rate assets with variable rate debt and the

benchmark for our variable rate debt increased our net income would decrease Furthermore as our current

financing allows the lender to mark our assets to market and make margin calls based on change in the

value of our assets financing fixed rate assets with floating rate debt would create the risk that an increase in

fixed rate benchmarks such as swap yields would decrease the value of our fixed rate assets Some of our

loans may be subject to various interest rate floors As result if interest rates fall below the floor rates the

spread between the yield on our assets and our cost of funds will increase which will generally increase

our returns

At present our portfolio of variable rate mortgage loans is substantially funded by our equity as

restrictive conditions in the securitized debt markets have not enabled us to leverage the portfolio through our

warehouse line as we originally intended Accordingly the income we earn on these loans is subject to

variability in interest rates At current investment levels changes in one month LIBOR at the magnitudes
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listed would have the following estimated effect on our annual income from investments in loans one month

LIBOR was 0.45% at December 31 2008

Increase/decrease in income

from investments in loans

Increase/Decrease in interest rate dollars in thousands

40 basis points 240

Base interest rate

100 basis points
300

200 basis points
601

300 basis points 1202

Assumed one month LIBOR would not go below zero

In the event of significant rising interest rate environment and/or economic downturn delinquencies and

defaults could increase and result in credit losses to us which could adversely affect our liquidity and

operating results Further such delinquencies or defaults could have an adverse effect on the spreads between

interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities
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ITEM Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Care Investment Trust Inc and subsidiaries

New York NY

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Care Investment Trust Inc and subsidiaries

the Company as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of operations

stockholders equity and cash flows for the year ended December 31 2008 and for the period from June 22
2007 commencement of operations to December 31 2007 Our audits also included the financial statement

schedules listed in the Index at Item 15 These financial statements and financial statement schedules are the

responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial

statements and financial statement schedules based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on

test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating

the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our

opinion

In our opinion such consolidated financial statements present fairly in all material respects the financial

position of Care Investment Trust Inc and subsidiaries at December 31 2008 and 2007 and the results of

their operations and their cash flows for the year ended December 31 2008 and for the period from June 22
2007 commencement of operations to December 31 2007 in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America Also in our opinion such financial statement schedules

when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as whole present fairly in

all material respects the information set forth therein

As discussed in Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements the financial statements include investments

in loans valued at $137416000 37% of total assets as of December 31 2008 whose fair values have been

estimated by management in the absence of readily determinable fair value Managements estimates are based

upon valuations performed internally using the projected cash flows for each loan

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 based on

the criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 16 2009 expressed an unqualified

opinion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting

Is DELOITTE TOUCHE LLP

Parsippany NJ

March 16 2009
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Care Investment Trust Inc and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets

dollars in thousands except share and per share data

December 31 December 31
2008 2007

Assets

Real Estate

Land 5020

Buildings and improvements 101524

Less accumulated depreciation 1414

Total real estate net 105130

Cash and cash equivalents 31800 15319

Investments in loans 236833

Loans held at LOCOM 159916

Investments in partially-owned entities 64890 72353

Accrued interest receivable 1045 1899

Deferred financing costs net of accumulated amortization of $339 and $69

respectively
1402 757

Identified intangible assets leases in-place net 4295

Other assets net 2428 1237

Total Assets $370906 $328398

Liabilities and Stockholders Equity

Liabilities

Borrowings under warehouse line of credit 37781 25000

Mortgage notes payable 82217

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
1625 1509

Accrued expenses payable to related party 3793 3119

Obligation to issue operating partnership units 3045 2850

Other liabilities 1313 2585

Total Liabilities 129774 35063

Commitments and Contingencies

Stockholders Equity

Common stock $0001 par value 250000000 shares authorized 20021359

and 21017588 shares issued and outstanding in 2008 and 2007

respectively
21 21

Additional paid-in-capital 299656 298444

Treasury stock 8330

Accumulated deficit 50215 5130

Total Stockholders Equity 241132 293335

Total Liabilities and Stockholders Equity $370906 $328398

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

60



Care Investment Trust Inc and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations

dollars in thousands except share and
per share data

Period from

June 22 2007

Year Ended Commencement
December 31 of Operations to

2008 December 31 2007

Revenues

Rental revenue 6228

Income from investments in loans 15794 11209

Other income 237 954

Total Revenues 22259 12163

Expenses

Management fees to related party 4105 2625

Marketing general and administrative including stock-based

compensation expense of $1212 and $9459 respectively 6623 11714

Depreciation and amortization 1554

Valuation allowance on loans held at LOCOM 29327

Loss on sale of loans 2662

Operating Expenses 44271 14339

Other Income Expense

Loss from investments in partially-owned entities 4431

Unrealized loss on derivative instruments 237

Interest income 395 753
Interest expense including amortization of deferred financing costs 4521 134

Net Loss 30806 1557

Loss per share of common stock

Net loss basic and diluted 1.47 0.07

Weighted average common shares outstanding basic and diluted 20952972 20866526

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Care Investment Trust Inc and Subsidiaries

Common Stock

Balance at June 22 2007

Commencement of Operations 100

Proceeds from public offering of common stock 15000000

Underwriting and offering costs

Issuance of common stock for the
acquisition

of initial

assets from Manager 5256250

Stock-based compensation to Manager in common

stock pursuant to the Care Investment Trust Inc

Manager equity pian 607690

Stock-based compensation to non-employees in

common stock pursuant to the Care Investment

Trust Inc Equity Plan 148333

Unamortized portion
of unvested common stock issued

pursuant to the Care Investment Trust Inc Equity

Plan

Stock-based compensation to directors for services

rendered 5215

Net loss for the period from June 22 2007

Commencement of Operations to December 31

2007

Dividends declared and paid on common stock

Balance at December 31 2007

Treasury stock purchased

Stock-based compensation fair value net of

forfeitures

Stock-based compensation to directors for services

rendered

Warrants granted to manager

Dividends declared and paid on common stock

Net loss
___________

Balance December 31 2008

1557 1557
3573 3573

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Stockholders Equity

dollars in thousands except share data

Treasury Additional

Stock Paid in Capital

Accumulated
Deficit Total

15 224985 225000

14837 14837

78838 78843

9114 9115

2225 2225

1943 1943

62 62

21017588 21 298444 5130 293335

1000000 8330 8330

22000 410 410

25771 270 270

532 532

14279 14279

30806 30806

20021359 $21 $8330 $299656 $502l5 $241132
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Care Investment Trust Inc and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

dollars in thousands

For the Period

For the Year June 22 2007

Ended Commencement
December 31 of Operations to

2008 December 31 2007

Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Net loss 30806 1557

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities

Increase in deferred rent receivable 1218
Loss on sale of loans 2662 833
Loss from investments in partially-owned entities 4431

Distributions of income from partially-owned entities 3358

Amortization of loan premium paid on investment in loans 1927 507

Amortization of deferred financing cost 367 69

Amortization of deferred loan fees 380 149

Stock-based compensation to manager 9115

Stock-based non-employee compensation 1212 344

Depreciation and amortization on real estate including intangible assets 1554

Unrealized loss on derivative instruments 237

Valuation allowance on loans at LOCOM 29327

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accrued interest receivable 854 1899
Other assets 14 1237
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 116 4628

Other liabilities
including payable to related

party 598 2585

Net cash provided by operating activities 13029 11871

Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Purchase of initial assets from Manager 204272

Loan repayments 54245 64264

Loan investments 10864 17805

Investments in partially-owned entities 326 69503

Investments in real estate 110980

Net cash used in investing activities 67925 227316

Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Proceeds from sale of common stock 225000

Underwriting and offering costs 14837

Borrowing under mortgage notes payable 82227

Borrowings under warehouse line of credit 13601 25000

Principal payments under borrowings 830

Treasury stock purchases 8330
Payment of deferred financing costs 1012 826

Dividends paid 14279 3573

Net cash provided by financing activities 71377 230764

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 16481 15319

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of period 15319

Cash and cash equivalents end of period 31800 15319

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

Cash paid for interest 4181 0.1

Issuance of Common Stock to Manager to purchase initial assets 78843

Obligation to issue operating partnership units in connection with the Cambridge Investment 2850

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Care Investment Trust Inc and Subsidiaries Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31 2008 and for the Period from June 22 2007

Commencement of Operations to December 31 2007

Note Organization

Care Investment Trust Inc together with its subsidiaries the Company or Care unless otherwise

indicated or except where the context otherwise requires we us or our is real estate investment trust

REIT with geographically diverse portfolio of senior housing and healthcare-related assets in the United

States Care is externally managed and advised by CIT Healthcare LLC Manager As of December 31

2008 this portfolio of assets consisted of real estate and mortgage related assets for senior housing facilities

skilled nursing facilities medical office properties and first mortgage liens on healthcare related assets Our

owned senior housing facilities are leased under triple-net leases which require the tenants to pay
all

property-related expenses

On June 22 2007 commencement of operations the Company acquired portfolio of healthcare-related

mortgage assets from our Manager with fair value of approximately $283.1 million Care received

approximately $210.2 million after underwriting discounts and other expenses related to its initial public

offering from the closing of its initial public offering of its common stock on June 27 2007 and utilized

approximately $204.3 million as partial payment to purchase the initial assets from the Manager The

remainder of the purchase price was paid via the issuance of $78.8 million in common shares to the Manager

Care elected to be taxed as REIT under the Internal Revenue Code commencing with our taxable year

ended December 31 2007 To maintain our tax status as REIT we are required to distribute at least 90% of

our REIT taxable income to our stockholders At present Care does not have any taxable REIT subsidiaries

TRS but in the normal course of business expects to form such subsidiaries as necessary

Note Significant Accounting Policies

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include our accounts and those of our subsidiaries which are

wholly-owned or controlled by us All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been

eliminated

Investments in partially-owned entities where the Company exercises significant influence over operating

and financial policies of the subsidiary but does not control the subsidiary are reported under the equity

method of accounting Generally under the equity method of accounting the Companys share of the investees

earnings or loss is included in the Companys operating results

Financial Interpretation FIN No 46R Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities requires company

to identify investments in other entities for which control is achieved through means other than voting rights

variable interest entities or VIEs and to determine which business enterprise is the primary beneficiary

of the VIE variable interest entity is broadly defined as an entity where either the equity investors as

group if any do not have controlling financial interest or the equity investment at risk is insufficient to

finance that entitys activities without additional subordinated financial support The Company consolidates

investments in VIEs when it is determined that the Company is the primary beneficiary of the VIE at either

the creation or the variable interest entity or upon the occurrence of reconsideration event The Company has

concluded that neither of its partially-owned entities are VIEs

Segment Reporting

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 131 Disclosures about Segments of an

Enterprise and Related Information establishes standards for the way that public entities report information

about operating segments in the financial statements We are REIT focused on originating and acquiring

healthcare-related real estate and commercial mortgage debt and currently operate in only one reportable

segment
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash

equivalents Included in cash and cash equivalents at December 31 2008 and 2007 are approximately

$1.3 million and $2.6 million respectively in customer deposits maintained in an unrestricted account

Real Estate and Identified Intangible Assets

Real estate and identified intangible assets are carried at cost net of accumulated depreciation and

amortization Betterments major renewals and certain costs directly related to the acquisition improvement

and leasing of real estate are capitalized Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred

Depreciation is provided on straight-line basis over the assets estimated useful lives which range from to

40 years

Upon the acquisition of real estate we assess the fair value of acquired assets including land buildings

and improvements and identified intangible assets such as above and below market leases and acquired in-

place leases and customer relationships and acquired liabilities in accordance SFAS No 141 Business

Combinations and SFAS No 142 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets and we allocate purchase price

based on these assessments We assess fair value based on estimated cash flow projections that utilize

appropriate discount and capitalization rates and available market information Estimates of future cash flows

are based on number of factors including the historical operating results known trends and marketleconomic

conditions that may affect the property

Our properties including any related intangible assets are reviewed for impairment under SFAS No 144

Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long Lived Assets if events or circumstances change indicating

that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable An impairment exists when the carrying amount

of an asset exceeds its fair value An impairment loss is measured based on the excess of the carrying amount

over the fair value We have determined fair value by using discounted cash flow model and an appropriate

discount rate The evaluation of anticipated cash flows is subjective and is based in part on assumptions

regarding future occupancy rental rates and capital requirements that could differ materially from actual

results If our anticipated holding periods change or estimated cash flows decline based on market conditions

or otherwise an impairment loss may be recognized As of December 31 2008 we have not recognized an

impairment loss

Loans Held at LOCOM

Valuation Alowance on Loans Held at LOCOM

Investments in loans amounted to $159.9 million at December 31 2008 We account for our investments

in loans in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard SFAS No 65 Accounting for

Certain Mortgage Banking Activities SFAS No 65 Under SFAS No 65 loans expected to be held for the

foreseeable future or to maturity should be held at amortized costs and all other loans should be held at lower

of cost or market LOCOM measured on an individual basis At December 31 2008 in connection with our

decision to reposition ourselves from mortgage REIT to traditional direct property ownership REIT

referred to as an equity REIT see Notes and to the financial statements and as result of current

market conditions we transferred our portfolio of mortgage loans to LOCOM because we are not certain that

we will hold the portfolio of loans either until maturity or for the foreseeable future In connection with the

transfer we recorded valuation allowance of approximately $29.3 million representing the difference between

our carrying amount of the loans and their estimated fair value at December 31 2008

Until December 31 2008 we held our loans until maturity and therefore the loans were carried at

amortized cost net of unamortized loan fees and acquisition and origination costs unless the loans were

impaired
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Coupon interest on the loans is recognized as revenue when earned Receivables are evaluated for

collectibility if loan becomes more than 90 days past due If fair value is lower than amortized cost changes

in fair value gains and losses are reported through our consolidated statement of operations through

valuation allowance on loans held at LOCOM Loans previously written down may be written up based upon

subsequent recoveries in value but not above their cost basis

Expense for credit losses in connection with loan investments is charge to earnings to increase the

allowance for credit losses to the level that management estimates to be adequate to cover probable losses

considering delinquencies loss experience and collateral quality Impairment losses are taken for impaired

loans based on the fair value of collateral on an individual loan basis The fair value of the collateral may be

determined by an evaluation of operating cash flow from the property during the projected holding period

and/or estimated sales value computed by applying an expected capitalization rate to the stabilized net

operating income of the specific property less selling costs Whichever method is used other factors

considered relate to geographic trends and project diversification the size of the portfolio and current

economic conditions Based upon these factors we will establish an allowance for credit losses when

appropriate When it is probable that we will be unable to collect all amounts contractually due the loan is

considered impaired

Where impairment is indicated an impairment charge is recorded based upon the excess of the recorded

investment amount over the net fair value of the collateral As of December 31 2008 and 2007 we had no

impaired loans and no allowance for credit losses

Investment in Partially-Owned Entities

We invest in preferred equity interests that allow us to participate in percentage of the underlying

propertys cash flows from operations and proceeds from sale or refinancing At the inception of the

investment we must determine whether such investment should be accounted for as loan joint venture or as

real estate Care invested in one preferred equity investment at December 31 2007 and will account for such

investment as joint venture

The Company assesses whether there are indicators that the value of its partially owned entities may be

impaired An investments value is impaired if the Company determines that decline in the value of the

investment below its carrying value is other than temporary To the extent impairment has occurred the loss

shall be measured as the excess of the carrying amount of the investment over the estimated value of the

investment As of December 31 2008 the Company has not recognized any impairment on our partially

owned entities

Comprehensive Income

The Company has no items of other comprehensive income and accordingly net loss is equal to

comprehensive loss for all periods presented

Revenue Recognition

Interest income on investments in loans is recognized over the life of the investment on the accrual basis

Fees received in connection with loans are recognized over the term of the loan as an adjustment to yield

Anticipated exit fees whose collection is expected will also be recognized over the term of the loan as an

adjustment to yield Unamortized fees are recognized when the associated loan investment is repaid before

maturity on the date of such repayment Premium and discount on purchased loans are amortized or accreted

on the effective yield method over the remaining terms of the loans

Rents are recognized over the non-cancelable term of the related leases on straight-line basis which

includes the effects of rent escalations We commence rental revenue recognition when the tenant takes control

of the leased space

Income recognition will generally be suspended for loan investments at the earlier of the date at which

payments become 90 days past due or when in our opinion full recovery of income and principal becomes
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doubtful Income recognition is resumed when the loan becomes contractually current and performance is

demonstrated to be resumed As of December 31 2008 and 2007 we have no loans for which income

recognition has been suspended

The Company recognizes rental revenue in accordance with SFAS No 13 SFAS No 13 requires that

revenue be recognized on straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic and rational

basis is more representative of the time pattern in which the use benefit is derived from the leased property

Renewal options in leases with rental terms that are lower than those in the primary term are excluded from

the calculation of straight line rent if the renewals are not reasonably assured The Company recognizes lease

termination payments as component of rental revenue in the period received provided that there are no

further obligations under the lease

Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred financing costs represent commitment fees legal and other third party costs associated with

obtaining commitments for financing which result in closing of such financing These costs are amortized

over the terms of the respective agreements on the effective interest method and the amortization is reflected

in interest expense Unamortized deferred financing costs are expensed when the associated debt is refinanced

or repaid before maturity Costs incurred in seeking financing transactions which do not close are expensed in

the period in which it is determined that the financing will not close

Stock-based Compensation Plans

We have two stock-based compensation plans described more fully in Note 14 We account for the plans

using the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No 123R Share-Based Payment SFAS No 123R
SFAS No 123R requires that compensation cost for stock-based compensation be recognized ratably over the

service period of the award Because all of our stock-based compensation is issued to non-employees the

amount of compensation is to be adjusted in each subsequent reporting period based on the fair value of the

award at the end of the reporting period until such time as the award has vested or the service being provided

is substantially completed or under certain circumstances likely to be completed whichever occurs first

Derivative Instruments

We account for derivative instruments in accordance with SFAS No 133 Accounting for Derivative

Instruments and Hedging Activities as amended and interpreted In the normal course of business we may use

variety of derivative instruments to manage or hedge interest rate risk We will require that hedging

derivative instruments be effective in reducing the interest rate risk exposure they are designated to hedge

This effectiveness is essential for qualifying for hedge accounting Some derivative instruments may be

associated with an anticipated transaction In those cases hedge effectiveness criteria also require that it be

probable that the underlying transaction will occur Instruments that meet these hedging criteria will be

formally designated as hedges at the inception of the derivative contract

To determine the fair value of derivative instruments we may use variety of methods and assumptions

that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each balance sheet date For the majority of financial

instruments including most derivatives long-term investments and long-term debt standard market conventions

and techniques such as discounted cash flow analysis option-pricing models replacement cost and termina

tion cost are likely to be used to determine fair value All methods of assessing fair value result in general

approximation of fair value and such value may never actually be realized

We may use variety of commonly used derivative products that are considered plain vanilla

derivatives These derivatives typically include interest rate swaps caps collars and floors We expressly

prohibit the use of unconventional derivative instruments and using derivative instruments for trading or

speculative purposes Further we have policy of only entering into contracts with major financial institutions

based upon their credit ratings and other factors so we do not anticipate nonperformance by any of our

counterparties
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We may employ swaps forwards or purchased options to hedge qualifying forecasted transactions Gains

and losses related to these transactions are deferred and recognized in net income as interest expense in the

same period or periods that the underlying transaction occurs expires or is otherwise terminated

Hedges that are reported at fair value and presented on the balance sheet could be characterized as either

cash flow hedges or fair value hedges For derivative instruments not designated as hedging instruments the

gain or loss resulting from the change in the estimated fair value of the derivative instruments will be

recognized in current earnings during the period of change

Income Taxes

We have elected to be taxed as REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue Code To

qualify as REIT we must meet certain organizational and operational requirements including requirement

to distribute at least 90% of our REIT taxable income to stockholders As REIT we generally will not be

subject to federal income tax on taxable income that we distribute to our stockholders If we fail to qualify as

REIT in any taxable year we will then be subject to federal income tax on our taxable income at regular

corporate rates and we will not be permitted to qualify for treatment as REIT for federal income tax

purposes
for four years following the year during which qualification is lost unless the Internal Revenue

Service grants us relief under certain statutory provisions Such an event could materially adversely affect our

net income and net cash available for distributions to stockholders However we believe that we will operate

in such manner as to qualify for treatment as REIT and we intend to operate in the foreseeable future in

such manner so that we will qualify as REIT for federal income tax purposes We may however be

subject to certain state and local taxes

Underwriting Commissions and Costs

Underwriting commissions and costs incurred in connection with our initial public offering are reflected

as reduction of additional paid-in-capital

Organization Costs

Costs incurred to organize Care have been expensed as incurred

Earnings per Share

We present basic earnings per share or EPS in accordance with SFAS No 128 Earnings per Share We

also present diluted EPS when diluted EPS is lower than basic EPS Basic EPS excludes dilution and is

computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the

period Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue

common stock were exercised or converted into common stock where such exercise or conversion would

result in lower EPS amount At December 31 2008 and 2007 diluted EPS was the same as basic EPS

because all outstanding restricted stock awards were anti-dilutive The operating partnership units issued in

connection with an investment See Note are in escrow and do not impact EPS

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates

and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and the accompanying notes

Actual results could differ from those estimates

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash

investments real estate loan investments and interest receivable We may place our cash investments in excess

of insured amounts with high quality financial institutions We perform ongoing analysis of credit risk

concentrations in our real estate and loan investment portfolios by evaluating exposure to various markets
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underlying property types investment structure term sponsors tenant mix and other credit metrics The

collateral securing our loan investments are real estate properties located in the United States

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2007 consolidated financial statements to conform them

to the 2008 presentation Specifically we have shown deferred costs separately in the 2007 balance sheet to

conform to the 2008 presentation In addition we changed the presentation of our consolidated statements of

operations to include as separate line item interest earned on cash balances This change did not impact our

current or prior period results of operations

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued Statement No 157 Fair

Value Measurements SPAS 157 SPAS 157 defines fair value establishes framework for measuring fair

value in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and

expands disclosures about fair value measurements SFAS 157 was effective for our financial assets and

liabilities on January 2008 The FASB has deferred the implementation of the provisions of SFAS 157

relating to certain non-financial assets and liabilities until January 2009

In February 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and

Financial Liabilities SPAS 159 Including an amendment of FASB Statement No 115 This statement

permits companies to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value SPAS 159 is

effective for the Company on January 2008 The Company did not elect the fair value option for any of its

existing financial instruments on the effective date and has not determined whether or not it will elect this

option for any eligible financial instruments it acquires in the future

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 160 Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial

Statements SPAS 160 an amendment of ARB No 51 SPAS 160 requires that noncontrolling interest in

subsidiary be reported as equity and the amount of consolidated net income specifically attributable to the

noncontrolling interest be identified in the consolidated financial statements It also calls for consistency in the

manner of reporting changes in the parents ownership interest and requires fair value measurement of any

noncontrolling equity investment retained in deconsolidation SFAS 160 is effective for the Company on

January 2009 The adoption of SFAS 160 did not have an impact on the Companys consolidated financial

statements

In December 2007 the PASB issued SFAS 141R Business Combinations SFAS 141R SPAS 141R

broadens the guidance of SFAS 141 extending its applicability to all transactions and other events in which

one entity obtains control over one or more other businesses It broadens the fair value measurement and

recognition of assets acquired liabilities assumed and interests transferred as result of business combina

tions SFAS l4lR expands on required disclosures to improve the statement users abilities to evaluate the

nature and financial effects of business combinations SPAS 14 1R is effective for the Company for any

business combination we enter into on or after on January 2009 The Company has not determined whether

or not the adoption of SPAS 141R will have material effect on its consolidated financial statements

On March 20 2008 the FASB issued SFAS No 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and

Hedging Activities SFAS 161 an amendment of FASB Statement No 133 SPAS 133 SFAS 161

provides for enhanced disclosures about how and why an entity uses derivatives and how and where those

derivatives and related hedged items are reported in the entitys financial statements SPAS 161 also requires

certain tabular formats for disclosing such information SFAS 161 applies to all entities and all derivative

instruments and related hedged items accounted for under SFAS 133 Among other things SFAS 161 requires

disclosures of an entitys objectives and strategies for using derivatives by primary underlying risk and certain

disclosures about the potential future collateral or cash requirements that is the effect on the entitys

liquidity as result of contingent credit-related features SFAS 161 is effective for the Company on January

2009 The Company is currently evaluating the impact that the adoption of SFAS 161 will have on the

disclosures included in its consolidated financial statements
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Note Real Estate Properties

On June 26 2008 we purchased twelve senior living properties for approximately $100.8 million from

Bickford Senior Living Group LLC an unaffihiated party Concurrent with the purchase we leased these

properties to Bickford Master LLC the Master Lessee or Bickford for initial annual base rent of

$8.3 million and additional base rent of $0.3 million with fixed escalations of 3% for 15 years The leases

contain an option of four renewals of ten years each The additional base rent is deferred and accrues for the

first three years and then is paid starting with the first month of the fourth year We funded this acquisition

using cash on hand and mortgage borrowings of $74.6 million

On September 30 2008 we purchased two additional senior living properties for approximately

$10.3 million from Bickford Senior Living Group LLC Concurrent with the purchase we leased these

properties back to Bickford for initial annual base rent of $0.8 million and additional base rent of $0.03 million

with fixed escalations of 3% for 14.75 years
The leases contain an option of four renewals of ten years each

The additional base rent is deferred and accrues for the first three years and then is paid starting with the first

month of the fourth year We funded this acquisition using cash on hand and mortgage borrowings of

$7.6 million

At each acquisition we completed preliminary assessment of the allocation of the fair value of the

acquired assets including land buildings equipment and in-place leases in accordance with SFAS 141 and

SFAS 142 Based upon that assessment the preliminary allocation of the purchase price to the fair values of

the assets acquired is as follows in millions

Buildings improvements and equipment
95.6

Furniture fixtures and equipment
6.0

Land 5.0

Identified intangibles leases in-place Note 4.4

$111.0

Additionally as part of the June 26 2008 transaction we sold back property acquired from Bickford

Senior Living Group LLC that was acquired on March 31 2008 at its net carrying amount which did not

result in gain or loss to the Company

As of December 31 2008 the properties owned by Care and leased to Bickford were 100% managed or

operated by Bickford Senior Living Group LLC As an enticement for the Company to enter into the leasing

arrangement for the properties Care received additional collateral and guarantees of the lease obligation from

parties affiliated with Bickford who act as subtenants under the master lease The additional collateral pledged

in support of Bickfords obligation to the lease commitment included properties and ownership interests in

affiliated companies of the subtenants

Future minimum annual rental revenue under the non-cancelable terms of the Companys operating leases

at December 31 2008 are as follows in thousands

2009 9250

2010 9527

2011 10176

2012 10874

2013 10974

Thereafter 119496

$170297

Note Loans Held at LOCOM

As of December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 our net investments in loans amounted to

$159.9 million and $236.8 million respectively Considering changes in our strategies and changes in the

70



marketplace discussed in Note we transferred our portfolio of mortgage loans to the lower of cost or market

in the December 31 2008 financial statements because we are not certain that we will hold the portfolio of

loans either until maturity or for the foreseeable future The transfer resulted in charge to earnings of

$29.3 million During the year ended December 31 2008 we received $54.2 million in principal repayments

and proceeds from the sale of loan and recognized $1.9 million in amortization of the premium we paid for

the purchase of our initial assets as reduction of interest income Our investments include senior whole loans

and participations secured primarily by real estate in the form of pledges of ownership interests direct liens or

other security interests The investments are in various geographic markets in the United States These

investments are all variable rate and had weighted average spread of 5.76% and 3.25% over one month

LIBOR and have an average maturity of 2.1 and years at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively Some

loans are subject to interest rate floors The effective yield on the portfolio was 6.20% and 8.22% respectively

for the year ended December 31 2008 and for the period from June 22 2007 commencement of operations

to December 31 2007 One month LIBOR was 0.45% at December 31 2008

December 31 2008

Location
Carrying Interest Maturity

Property Tpe City State Amount Rate Date

SNF Middle River Maryland 9185 L3.75% 03/31/11

SNF/ALF/IL Various Washington/Oregon 26012 L2.75% 10/04/11

SNF d/e Various Michigan 23767 L2.25% 03/26/12

SNF d/e Various Texas 6540 L3.00% 06/30/il

SNF d/e Austin Texas 4604 L3.00% 05/30/li

SNF bde Various Virginia 27401 L2.50% 03/01/12

SNFJICF d/e Various Illinois 29045 L3.00% 10/31/11

SNF d/e San Antonio Texas 8412 L3.50% 02/09/li

SNF/ALF d/e Nacogdoches Texas 9696 L3.15% 10/02/li

SNF/Sr.Appts/ALF Various Texas/Louisiana 15682 L4.30% 02/01/li

ALF Daytona Beach Florida 3688 L3.43% 08/li/il

SNFIIL c/d/e Georgetown Texas 5980 L3.00% 07/31/09

SNF Aurora Colorado 9151 L5.74% 08/04/10

SNF Various Michigan 10080 L7.00% 02/19/10

Investment in loans gross 189243

Valuation allowance 29327

Loans held at LOCOM $159916
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December 31 2007

Location
Carrying Interest Maturity

Property Type City State Amount Rate Date

SNF Middle River Maryland 9348 L3.75% 3/31/11

SNF/ALF Various New Jersey 25360 L3.48% 12/8/08

SNF/ALF/IL Various Washington Oregon 26871 L2.75% 10/4/11

SNF Various New Jersey 27987 L4.00% 1/31/11

SNF d/e Various Michigan 24179 L2.25% 3/26/12

SNF d/e Various Virginia
26830 L2.50% 3/1/12

SNF d/e Various Texas 6711 L3.00% 6/30/11

SNF d/e Austin Texas 5474 L3.00% 5/30/11

SNFIICF d/e Various Illinois 30155 L3.00% 10/31/11

SNF/ d/e San Antonio Texas 8695 L3.50% 2/9/11

SNF/ALF d/e Nacogdoches Texas 9911 L3.l5% 10/2/11

SNF/Sr Appts/ALF
Various Texas Louisiana 17087 L4.34% 2/1/il

ALF Daytona Beach Florida 3723 L3.43% 8/11/11

SNF/IL c/d/e Georgetown Texas 6075 L3.00% 7/31/09

SNF Aurora Colorado 9276 L5.74% 8/4/10

Investments in loans gross
237682

Unamortized loan fees 849

Investments in loans net $236833

SNF refers to skilled nursing facilities ALF refers to assisted living facilities IL refers to independent living facilities ICF refers to

intermediate care facility and Sr Appts refers to senior living apartments

Loan sold to Manager in February 2009 totaling $22543 See Note

Borrower has the ability to extend the maturity date to 7/31/12 upon advanced written notice and subject to compliance with certain

covenants stipulated in the loan agreement

Pledged as collateral for borrowings under our warehouse line of credit On March 2009 Care repaid the outstanding borrowings

on its warehouse line in full

The mortgages are subject to various interest rate floors ranging from 6.00% to 11.5%

All loans were paying in accordance with their terms as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and we have no

allowance for loan losses Eight loans secured by first mortgages with total principal balance net of

premiums of $114.8 million at December 31 2008 were pledged as collateral at December 31 2008 for

borrowings under our warehouse line of credit See Note

Our mortgage portfolio gross at December 31 2008 is diversified by property type and U.S geographic

region as follows

December 31 December 31

2008 2008

Carrying of Carrying of

By Property Type Amount Portfolio By U.S Geographic Region Amount Portfolio

Skilled Nursing 99.1 52.4% Midwest 62.9 33.2%

Mixed-use 86.4 45.6% South 54.6 28.9%

Assisted Living 3.7 2.0% Mid-Atlantic 36.6 19.3%

Total $189.2 100.0% Northwest 26.0 13.8%

West 9.1

$189.2 100.0%

Mixed-use facilities refer to properties
that provide care to different segments of the elderly population based on their needs such as

Assisted Living with Skilled Nursing capabilities
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At December 31 2008 our portfolio of eighteen mortgages was extended to fourteen borrowers with the

largest exposure to any single borrower at 20.9% of the carrying value of the portfolio The carrying value of

three loans each to different borrowers with exposures of more than 10% of the carrying value of the total

portfolio amounted to 55.1% of the portfolio At December 31 2007 the largest exposure to any single

borrower was 12.7% of the portfolio carrying value and five other loans each to different borrowers each with

exposures of more than 10% of the carrying value of the total portfolio amounted to 54.9% of the portfolio

Note Sale of Loans to Manager

On September 30 2008 we finalized Mortgage Purchase Agreement the Agreement with our

Manager that provides us an option to sell loans from our investment portfolio to our Manager at the loans

fair value on the sale date See Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations Liquidity and Capital Resources for discussion of the terms and conditions of the Agreement

Pursuant to the Agreement we sold two loans with total carrying amounts of approximately $24.8 million and

$27.0 million for proceeds equal to $44.9 million We incurred loss on the sale of the first loan of

$2.4 million which closed in November of 2008 We incurred loss of $4.9 million on the sale of the second

loan which closed in February of 2009 The loss on the second loan was included in the valuation allowance

on the loans held at LOCOM at December 31 2008

Note Investment in Partially-Owned Entities

On December 31 2007 Care through its subsidiary ERC Sub L.P purchased an 85% equity interest in

eight limited liability entities owning nine medical office buildings with value of $263.0 million for

$61.9 million in cash including the funding of certain reserve requirements The Seller was Cambridge

Holdings Incorporated Cambridge and the interests were acquired through DownREIT partnership

subsidiary i.e ERC Sub L.P The transaction also provided for the issuance of 700000 operating partnership

units to Cambridge subject to future performance of the underlying properties These units were issued by us

into escrow and will be released to Cambridge subject to the acquired properties meeting certain performance

benchmarks Based on the expected timing of the release of the operating partnership units from escrow the

fair value of the operating partnership units was $3.1 million and $2.9 million on December 31 2008 and

2007 respectively Each operating partnership unit is redeemable into one share of the Companys common

stock subject to certain conditions The Company has the option to pay cash or issue shares of company stock

upon redemption

In accordance with SFAS No 133 the obligation to issue operating partnership units is accounted for as

derivative instrument Accordingly the value of the obligation to issue the operating partnership units is

reflected as liability on the Companys balance sheet and accordingly will be remeasured every period until

the operating partnership units are released from escrow

Care will receive an initial preferred minimum return of 8.0% on capital invested at close with 2.0% per

annum escalations until certain portfolio performance metrics are achieved The entities now owned with

Cambridge currently carry $183.4 million in asset-specific mortgage debt which mature no earlier than the

fourth quarter of 2016 and bear weighted average fixed interest rate of 5.86%

The Cambridge portfolio contains approximately 767000 square feet and is located in major metropolitan

markets in Texas and Louisiana The properties are situated on leading medical center campuses or

adjacent to prominent acute care hospitals or ambulatory surgery centers Affiliates of Cambridge will act as

managing general partners of the entities that own the properties as well as manage and lease these facilities
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Summarized financial information as of December 31 2008 and 2007 for the Companys unconsolidated

joint venture in Cambridge is as follows amounts in millions

2008 2007

Amount Amount

Assets $238.0 $259.3

Liabilities 192.3 $186.5

Equity
45.7 72.8

Revenue 24.1

Expenses
30.6

Net loss 6.5

On December 31 2007 the Company also formed joint venture SMC-CIT Holding Company LLC

with an affiliate of Senior Management Concepts LLC to acquire four independent and assisted living

facilities located in Utah Total capitalization of the joint venture is $61.0 million Care invested $6.8 million

in exchange for 100% of the preferred equity interests and 10% of the common equity interests of the joint

venture The Company will receive preferred return of 15% on its invested capital and an additional common

equity return equal to 10% of the projected free cash flow after payment of debt service and the preferred

return Cares preferred equity interest is not subject to redemption for period of two years and the Company

retains an option to put its preferred equity interest to its joint venture partner at par any time after the eighth

anniversary of the closing Affiliates of Senior Management Concepts LLC will lease the facilities from the

joint venture for 15 years Care accounts for its investment in SMC-CIT Holding Company LLC under the

equity method

The four facilities contain approximately 233 independent living units and 159 assisted living units The

properties were constructed in the last 25 years and two were built in the last 10 years Since both transactions

closed on December 31 2007 the Company recorded no income or loss on these investments for the period

from June 22 2007 commencement of operations to December 31 2007

For the year ended December 31 2008 our equity in the loss of our Cambridge portfolio amounted to

$5.6 million which included $9.4 million attributable to our share of the depreciation and amortization

expenses associated with the Cambridge properties The Companys investment in the Cambridge entities was

$58.1 million at December 31 2008 and $65.6 million at December 31 2007 During the year ended

December 31 2008 we received $2.2 million in distributions from our investment in Cambridge

For the year ended December 31 2008 we recognized $1.1 million in equity income from our interest in

SMC and received $1.1 million in distributions

Note Identified Intangible Assets leases in-place net

The following table summarizes the Companys identified intangible assets as of December 31 2008

Identified intangibles leases in-place amounts in thousands

Gross amount $4435

Accumulated amortization 140

$4295
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The estimated annual amortization of acquired in-place leases for each of the succeeding years as of

December 31 2008 is as follows amounts in thousands

2009 296

2010 296

2011 296

2012 296

2013 296

Thereafter 2815

The Company amortizes this intangible asset over the life of the leases on straight-line basis

Note Other Assets net

Other assets at December 31 2008 of $2.4 million consisted of $0.6 million in deferred exit fees on

certain loans due from borrowers at the time of their pay-off $0.4 million in prepaid expenses and $1.2 million

relating the straight-line effect of our lease revenue and $0.2 million of miscellaneous other assets

Note Borrowings under Warehouse Line of Credit

On October 2007 Care entered into master repurchase agreement Agreement with Column

Financial Inc Column an affiliate of Credit Suisse one of the underwriters of Cares initial public

offering in June 2007 This type of lending arrangement is often referred to as warehouse facility The

Agreement provides an initial line of credit of up to $300 million which may be increased temporarily to an

aggregate amount of $400 million under the terms of the Agreement Care may receive up to 50% of the value

of each loan sold based on Columns underwriting of such loan and will agree to repurchase each loan at

future date From the time of sale until the time of repurchase Care pays Column monthly price differential

payment set at 1.0% over one month LIBOR one month LIBOR was 0.45% at December 31 2008

Borrowings under the warehouse line of credit are accounted for as secured borrowings on the balance sheet

The term of the Agreement is for three years and may be terminated by Column at any time on not less

than one years notice As of December 31 2008 and 2007 Care had $37.8 and $25.0 million respectively

outstanding under the warehouse line Interest expense for the year ended December 31 2008 and for the

period from June 22 2007 commencement of operations to December 31 2007 was $1.4 million and

$.l million respectively The $37.8 million outstanding was secured by pledge of nine first mortgages with

principal balances totaling $114.8 million at December 31 2008 Care paid approximately $0.8 million in

principal amortization during the year ended December 31 2008 Costs incurred to establish the warehouse

line approximated $0.9 million and are reflected in other assets and are amortized over the three-year term of

the facility as additional interest expense At December 31 2008 the unamortized balance of deferred

financing costs approximated $0.5 million

Dislocations in the global credit markets that arose in the second half of 2007 have persisted into 2008

and have resulted in significant contraction of liquidity in the marketplace at commercially acceptable terms

In January 2008 Care pledged additional assets to the warehouse facility providing increased availability

under the line On February 19 2008 the Company utilized $10.2 million from the warehouse line to fund

new mortgage investment and on March 19 2008 we drew an additional $3.4 million

While we initially expected that the loans included as collateral under the warehouse line would be

transferred to term securitization program such as CDO we cannot foresee when the CDO market may

stabilize and do not believe that we will be able to successfully enter into CDO in the short term

On March 2009 Care repaid this loan in full and closed the warehouse line of credit

Note 10 Mortgage Notes Payable

On June 26 2008 with the acquisition of the twelve properties from Bickford Senior Living Group LLC
the Company entered into mortgage loan with Red Mortgage Capital Inc for $74.6 million The terms of
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the mortgage require interest-only payments at fixed interest rate of 6.845% for the first twelve months

Commencing on the first anniversary and every month thereafter the mortgage loan requires fixed monthly

payment of $0.5 million for both principal and interest until the maturity in July 2015 when the then

outstanding balance of $69.6 million is due and payable The mortgage loan is collateralized by the properties

On September 30 2008 with the acquisition of the two additional properties from Bickford the Company

entered into an additional mortgage loan with Red Mortgage Capital Inc for $7.6 million The terms of the

mortgage require interest and principal payments of approximately $52000 based on fixed interest rate of

7.17% Commencing on the first of November 2008 and every month thereafter the mortgage loan requires

fixed monthly payment of approximately $52000 for both principal and interest until the maturity in July

2015 when the then outstanding balance of $7.1 million is due and payable Care paid approximately $10600

in principal amortization during the year ended December 31 2008 The mortgage loan is collateralized by the

properties

As of December 31 2008 principal repayments due under all borrowings for the next years and

thereafter are as follows in millions

2009 0.3

2010a 38.6

2011 0.9

2012 0.9

2013 1.0

Thereafter 78.3

We repaid our borrowings under the warehouse line of credit in full on March 2009

Note 11 Other Liabilities

Other liabilities as of December 31 2008 and 2007 consist principally of deposits and real estate escrows

from borrowers amounting to $1.3 million and $2.6 million respectively

Note 12 Related Party Transactions

Management Agreement

In connection with our initial public offering in 2007 we entered into Management Agreement with our

Manager which describes the services to be provided by our Manager and its compensation for those services

Under the Management Agreement our Manager subject to the oversight of the Board of Directors of Care is

required to manage the day-to-day activities of the Company for which the Manager receives base

management fee and is eligible for an incentive fee The Manager is also entitled to charge the Company for

certain expenses incurred on behalf of Care

On September 30 2008 we amended our Management Agreement Pursuant to the terms of the

amendment the Base Management Fee as defined in the Management Agreement payable to the Manager

under the Management Agreement is reduced to monthly amount equal to 1/12 of 0.875% of the Companys

equity as defined in the Management Agreement In addition pursuant to the terms of the Amendment the

Incentive Fee as defined in the Management Agreement to the Manager pursuant to the Management

Agreement has been eliminated and the Termination Fee as defined in the Management Agreement to the

Manager upon the termination or non-renewal of the Management Agreement shall be equal to the average

annual Base Management Fee as earned by the Manager during the immediately preceding two years

multiplied by three but in no event shall the Termination Fee be less than $15.4 million No termination fee is

payable if we terminate the Management Agreement for cause

In consideration of the Amendment and for the Managers continued and future services to the Company

the Company granted the Manager warrants to purchase 435000 shares of the Companys common stock at
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$17.00 per share the Warrant under the Manager Equity Plan adopted by the Company on June 21 2007

the Manager Equity Plan The Warrant which is immediately exercisable expires on September 30 2018

In accordance with SFAS No l23R the Company used the Black-Scholes option pricing model to

measure the fair value of the Warrant granted with the Amendment The Black-Scholes model valued the

Warrant using the following assumptions

Volatility 47.8%

Expected Dividend Yield 5.92%

Risk-free Rate of Return 3.8%

Current Market Price $7.79

Strike Price $17.00

Term of Warrant 10 years

The fair value of the Warrant is approximately $0.5 million which is recorded as part of additional

paid-in-capital with corresponding entry to expense The Warrant will be remeasured to fair value at each

reporting date and amortized into expense over 18 months which represents the remaining initial term of the

Management Agreement

We are also responsible for reimbursing the Manager for its pro rata portion of certain expenses detailed

in the Management Agreement such as rent utilities office furniture equipment and overhead among others

required for our operations Transactions with our Manager during the year ended December 31 2008

included

Our $3.8 million liability to our Manager for professional fees paid and other third party costs incurred

by our Manager on behalf of Care management fees and other general expenses related to business

operations

Our expense recognition of $0.6 million and $4.1 million for the three months and year ended

December 31 2008 respectively for the Base Management Fee

On November 20 2008 we sold loan with book value of $24.8 million to our Manager for proceeds

of $22.4 resulting in an approximate loss of $2.4 million

On February 2009 we sold loan with book value of $27.0 on the date of sale to our Manager for

proceeds of $22.5 resulting in an approximate loss of $4.9 million

Note 13 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company adopted SFAS 157 effective January 2008 and accordingly all financial assets and

liabilities measured at fair value will utilize valuation methodologies in accordance with the statement The

Company has established processes for determining fair values and fair value is based on quoted market

prices where available If listed prices or quotes are not available then fair value is based upon internally

developed models that primarily use inputs that are market-based or independently-sourced market parameters

financial instruments categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of

input that is significant to the fair value measurement The three levels of valuation hierarchy established by

SFAS 157 are defined as follows

Level inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices unadjusted for identical assets or

liabilities in active markets

Level inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in

active markets and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly for

substantially the full term of the financial instrument

Level inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value

measurement
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The following describes the valuation methodologies used for the Companys financial instruments

measured at fair value as well as the general classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation

hierarchy

Investment in loans the fair value of the portfolio is based on an internally developed model Investing

in healthcare-related commercial mortgage debt is transacted through an over-the-counter market with minimal

pricing transparency Loans are infrequently traded and market quotes are not widely available and

disseminated Our investments in variable rate loans bear interest at stated spreads to floating base rate one

month LIBOR and re-price monthly The valuation model involves the use of estimates The variables in the

model include the expected life of the loans discount factor based on the expected market return for these

assets and the expected cash flows to be received from the portfolio determined on an asset by asset basis At

December 31 2008 we valued our loans assuming weighted average life of 2.1 years and yield of 15%

Loans under contract for sale are valued at their net realizable value and are valued using combination of

level and level inputs

Interest rate caps the fair value of interest rate caps is based on an independent dealer quote

Obligation to issue operating partnership units the fair value of our obligation to issue operating

partnership units is based on an internally developed valuation model as quoted market prices are not

available nor are quoted prices for similar liabilities Our model involves the use of management estimates as

well as some Level inputs The variables in the model include the estimated release dates of the shares out

of escrow based on the expected performance of the underlying properties discount factor of approximately

14% and the market price and expected dividend of Cares common shares at each measurement date

The following table presents
the Companys financial instruments carried at fair value on the consolidated

balance sheet as of December 31 2008 by SFAS 157 hierarchy

Fair Value at December 31 2008

in millions
Level Level Level Total

Assets

Investment in loans $22.5 $137.4 $159.9

Liabilities

Obligation to issue operating partnership units 3.0 3.0

At December 31 2007 the fair value of our obligation
to issue partnership units was $2.9 million and we recognized expense of

$0.1 million on revaluation at December 31 2008

The tables below present reconciliations for all assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring

basis using significant unobservable inputs Level during 2008 Level instruments presented in the tables

include liability to issue partnership units which are carried at fair value These instruments were valued

using models that in managements judgment reflect the assumptions marketplace participant would use at

December 31 2008

Level Instruments Fair

Value Measurements

Obligation to Investment

issue in loans held

Partnership at lower of cost

in millions
Units or market

Balance December 31 2007 2.9 $189.2

Total unrealized losses included in income statement 0.1 29.3

Balance December 31 2008 3.0 $159.9

Net change in unrealized losses from investments still held at

December 31 2008 0.1 $29.3
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In addition to SFAS 157 SFAS No 107 Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments requires

disclosure of fair value information about financial instruments whether or not recognized in the financial

statements for which it is practical to estimate that value In cases where quoted market prices are not

available fair value is based upon the application of discount rates to estimated future cash flows based on

market yields or other appropriate valuation methodologies Considerable judgment is necessary to interpret

market data and develop estimated fair value Accordingly the estimates presented herein are not necessarily

indicative of the amounts we could realize on disposition of the financial instruments The use of different

market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have material effect on the estimated fair value

amounts

In addition to the amounts reflected in the financial statements at fair value as noted above cash

equivalents accrued interest receivables loan held for sale accounts payable and accrued expenses and other

liabilities reasonably approximate their fair values due to the short maturities of these items

Borrowings under our warehouse line of credit bear interest at one month LIBOR plus spread of

100 basis points Due to the monthly resetting of interest management believes the carrying amount of our

borrowings under the warehouse line of credit reasonably approximates fair value at December 31 2008 On

March 2009 Care repaid the outstanding borrowings on its warehouse line in full

The mortgage note payable incurred to acquire the additional two Bickford properties which closed on

September 30 2008 approximates its fair value Management believes that the fair value of the mortgage note

payable of $74.6 million that was incurred from the acquisition of the twelve properties on June 26 2008 is

approximately $71.3 million

Note 14 Stockholders Equity

Our authorized capital stock consists of 100000000 shares of preferred stock $0001 par value and

250000000 shares of common stock $0001 par value As of December 31 2008 no shares of preferred

stock were issued and outstanding and 20021359 shares of common stock were issued and outstanding

Equity Plan

Restricted Stock Grants

At the time of our initial public offering in June 2007 we issued 133333 shares of common stock to our

Managers employees some of whom are officers or directors of Care and we also awarded 15000 shares of

common stock to Cares independent board members The shares granted to our Managers employees vest on

June 22 2010 three years from the date of grant The shares granted to our independent board members vest

ratably on the first second and third anniversaries of the grant During the year ended December 31 2008

42000 shares of restricted stock granted to our Managers employees were forfeited and 10000 shares vested

due to termination of an officer of the Manager without cause In addition 20000 shares of restricted stock

were granted to new independent board member who formerly served as non-independent board member and

an employee of our Manager These shares had fair value of $183000 at issuance and vest on June 27
2010

Schedule of Non Vested Shares Equity Plan

Grants to Grants to

Independent Managers Total

Directors Employees Grants

Balance at January 2008 15000 133333 148333

Granted 20000 20000

Vested 5000 10000 15000

Forfeited 42000 42000

Balance at December 31 2008 30000 81333 111333
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Vesting Schedule

June 27 2009 5000 5000

June 27 2010 25000 81333 106333

30000 81333 111333

Restricted Stock Units

On April 2008 the Compensation Committee the Committee of the Board of Directors of Care

awarded the Companys CEO 35000 shares of restricted stock units RSUs under the Care Investment

Trust Inc Equity Incentive Plan Equity Plan The RSUs had fair value of $385000 on the grant date

The vesting of the award is 50% on the third anniversary of the award and the remaining 50% on the fourth

anniversary of the award

Long-Term Equity Incentive Programs

On May 12 2008 the Committee approved two new long-term equity incentive programs under the

Equity Plan The first program is an annual performance-based RSU award program the RSU Award

Program and the second program is three-year performance share plan the Performance Share Plan

Achievement of awards under the RSU Award Program will be based upon the Companys ability to meet

both financial Adjusted Funds from Operations AFFO as defined per share and strategic shifting from

mortgage to an equity REIT performance goals as well as on the individual employees ability to meet

individual performance goals All of the Companys executive officers have been granted the right to receive

an award under the RSU Award Program the actual amount of which will depend on Company and individual

performance in 2008 Performance under the 2008 RSU Award Program will be measured at the end of the

performance period December 31 2008 and the RSUs in respect of such 2008 performance period will be

granted in early 2009 The RSUs will vest in equal installments on each of the first four anniversaries of the

grant date In connection with the initial adoption of the RSU Award Program certain employees of the

Manager were granted 68308 RSUs on the adoption date with fair value of $0.7 million RSUs granted in

connection with the Equity Plan vest as follows

2009 14766

2010 14766

2011 32266

2012 32266

Under the Performance Share Plan participant is granted number of performance shares or units the

settlement of which will depend on the Companys achievement of certain pre-determined financial goals at

the end of the three-year performance period Any shares received in settlement of the performance award will

be issued to the participant in early 2011 without any further vesting requirements With respect to the

2008-2010 performance periods the performance goals relate to the Companys ability to meet both financial

compound growth in AFFO per share and share return goals total shareholder return versus the Companys

healthcare equity and mortgage REIT peers The Committee has established threshold target and maximum

levels of performance If the Company meets the threshold level of performance participant will earn 50%

of the performance share grant if it meets the target level of performance participant will earn 100% of the

performance share grant and if it achieves the maximum level of performance participant will earn 200% of

the performance share grant As of December 31 2008 no shares have been earned under this plan

As of December 31 2008 166943 shares of our common stock and 126563 RSUs had been granted

pursuant to the Equity Plan and 406494 shares remain available for future issuances The Equity Plan will

automatically expire on the 10th anniversary of the date it was adopted Cares Board of Directors may

terminate amend modify or suspend the Equity Plan at any time subject to stockholder approval in the case of

amendments or modifications Pursuant to SFAS 123R we recognized expense of approximately $0.4 million as

compensation expense related to these grants during the year ended December 31 2008 All of the shares issued
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under our equity pian are considered non-employee awards Accordingly the expense for each period is

determined based on the fair value of each share or unit awarded over the required performance period

Shares Issued to Directors for Board Fees

On January 2008 April 2008 July 2008 and October 2008 5815 shares 5920 shares

7508 shares and 6528 shares of common stock respectively with combined fair value of approximately

$0.3 million were granted to our independent directors as part of their annual retainer Each independent

director receives an annual base retainer of $100000 payable quarterly in arrears of which 50% is paid in

cash and 50% in common stock of Care Shares granted as part of the annual retainer vest immediately and

are included in general and administrative expense The Company granted 5215 shares to directors as part of

this arrangement during 2007

Manager Equity Plan

Upon completion of our initial public offering in June 2007 we granted 607690 fully vested shares of

our common stock to our Manager under the Manager Equity Plan These shares are subject to our Managers

right to register the resale of such shares pursuant to registration rights agreement we entered into with our

Manager in connection with our initial public offering At December 31 2008 282945 shares are available

for future issuances under the Manager Equity Plan The Manager Equity Plan will automatically expire on

the 10th anniversary of the date it was adopted Cares Board of Directors may terminate amend modify or

suspend the Manager Equity Plan at any time subject to stockholder approval in the case of amendments or

modifications

The 282945 shares available for future issuance under the Manager Equity Plan are net of 435000 shares

that may be issued upon conversion of warrant issued to our Manager described in Note 12

Note 15 Loss per share in thousands except share and per share data

For the Period from

June 22 2007

For the Year Commencement of

Ended Operations to

December 31 2008 December 31 2007

Loss per share basic and diluted 1.47 0.07

Numerator

Net loss 30806 1557

Denominator

Weighted Average Common Shares

Outstanding 20952972 20866526

Diluted loss per share was the same as basic loss per share for each period because all outstanding

restricted stock awards were anti-dilutive

Note 16 Commitments and Contingencies

Several of our investments in loans have commitment amounts in excess of the amount that we have

funded to date on such loans At December 31 2008 Care was obligated to provide approximately $4.2 million

in additional financing at the request of our borrowers subject to the borrowers compliance with their

respective loan agreements and approximately $4.2 million in tenant improvements related to our purchase of

the Cambridge properties

Care is also obligated to fund additional payments for expansion of four of the facilities acquired in the

Bickford transaction on June 26 2008 The maximum amount that the Company is obligated to fund is

$7.2 million Since these payments would increase our investment in the properties the minimum base rent

and additional base rent would increase based on the amounts funded After funding the expansion payments

and meeting certain conditions as outlined in the documents associated with the transaction the sellers are

81



entitled to the balance of the commitment of $7.2 million less the total of all expansion payments made in

conjunction with the properties

Under our Management Agreement our Manager subject to the oversight of the Companys board of

directors is required to manage the day-to-day activities of Care for which the Manager receives base

management fee The Management Agreement has an initial term expiring on June 30 2010 and will be

automatically renewed for one-year terms thereafter unless either we or our Manager elect not to renew the

agreement The base management fee is payable monthly in arrears in an amount equal to 1/12 of 0.875% of

the Companys stockholders equity at the end of each month computed in accordance with GAAP adjusted

for certain items pursuant to the terms of the agreement

In addition our Manager may be entitled to termination fee payable for non-renewal of the

Management Agreement without cause in an amount equal to three times the sum of the average
annual base

fee as earned by our Manager during the two years immediately preceding the most recently completed

calendar quarter prior to the date of termination but no less than $15.4 million No termination fee is payable

if we terminate the Management Agreement for cause

On October 2007 Care entered into master repurchase agreement MRA with Column Financial

Inc for short-term financing through warehouse facility The MRA provides an initial line of credit up to

$300 million Under the terms of the MRA Care may receive up to 50% of the value of each loan sold into

the warehouse based on Columns underwriting of such loan and will agree to repurchase each loan at future

date The term of the MRA is for three years and may be terminated by Column at any time on not less than

one years notice In addition Column has the right to issue margin calls in certain situations which Care must

satisfy in cash within one business day The MRA also requires the Company to maintain certain financial

covenants From the time of sale until the time of repurchase Care is required to pay Column monthly price

differential payment set at one month LIBOR 1.0% In addition partial amortization of the principal

borrowed is required As of December 31 2008 the Company had $37.8 million in borrowings under the

facility On March 2009 Care repaid the outstanding borrowings on its warehouse line in full and closed

the warehouse facility

The table below summarizes our contractual obligations as of December 31 2008

Amounts in millions 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Thereafter

Repayment of warehouse borrowings $37.8

Commitment to fund loans 4.2

Commitment to fund tenant improvements 4.2

Commitment to fund earn out 7.2

Mortgage notes payable 6.1 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.5 86.9

Management fee 2.3 16.6

We repaid our borrowings under the warehouse line of credit in full on March 2009

On September 18 2007 class action complaint for violations of federal securities laws was filed in the

United States District Court Southern District of New York alleging that the registration statement relating to

the initial public offering of shares of our common stock filed on June 21 2007 failed to disclose that certain

of the assets in the contributed portfolio were materially impaired and overvalued and that Care was

experiencing increasing difficulty in securing its warehouse financing lines On January 18 2008 the court

entered an order appointing co-lead plaintiffs and co-lead counsel On February 19 2008 the co-lead plaintiffs

filed an amended complaint citing additional evidentiary support for the allegations in the complaint Care

believes the complaint and allegations are without merit and intend to defend against the complaint and

allegations vigorously The Company filed motion to dismiss the complaint on April 22 2008 The plaintiffs

filed an opposition to the Companys motion to dismiss on July 2008 On March 2009 the court denied

Cares motion to dismiss Care plans to file an answer but the outcome of this matter cannot currently be

predicted To date Care has incurred approximately $0.7 million to defend against this complaint No

provision for loss related to this matter has been accrued at December 31 2008
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Care is not presently involved in any other material litigation nor to our knowledge is any material

litigation threatened against us or our investments other than routine litigation arising in the ordinary course

of business Management believes the costs if any incurred by us related to litigation will not materially

affect our financial position operating results or liquidity

Note 17 Financial Instruments Derivatives and Hedging

The fair value of our obligation to issue operating partnership units was $3.0 million and $2.9 million at

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively resulting in an unrealized loss of $0.1 million

On February 2008 we entered into three interest rate caps on three loans pledged as collateral under our

warehouse line of credit in order to increase the advance rates available on the pledged loans The total premium

paid for the caps approximated $50000 Two of the caps have term of 33 months and the other has term of

months The notional amounts of the interest rate cap agreements at December 31 2008 are $24.0 million

The interest rate caps are not designated as hedges for accounting purposes accordingly they are carried at fair

value with changes in fair value included in earnings The balance of the interest rate caps was nominal at

December 31 2008 and is included in other assets on the condensed consolidated balance sheet

Note 18 Quarterly Financial Information Unaudited

Summarized unaudited consolidated quarterly information for the years ended December 31 2008 and

2007 is provided below

Amounts in millions except per share amounts Quarter Ended

2008 March 31 June 30 Sept 301 Dec 311

Revenues 4.7 3.6 6.6 7.4

Income loss available to common shareholders 0.5 0.7 3.5 28.5

Earnings per sharebasic and diluted $0.02 $0.03 $0.17 $1.35

Earnings per share diluted $0.02 $0.03

2007 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31

Revenues 0.6 6.0 5.5

Income loss available to common shareholders 8.9 3.7 3.6

Earnings per share basic and diluted $0.43 $0.18 $0.17

Earnings per share diluted $0.18 $0.17

Basic and diluted are the same as inclusion of diluted shares would be anti-dilutive

June 30 2007
represents

the period from June 22 2007 commencement of operations to June 30 2007

Note 19 Subsequent Events

Sale of loan held at LOCOM

On February 2009 the Company closed on the sale of loan to our Manager that had book value of

$27.4 million on the date of sale for proceeds of $22.5 million resulting in an approximate loss of

$4.9 million

Declaration of Distribution

On March 13 2009 the Board of Directors declared dividend in the amount of $0.17 per share of

common stock The dividend is payable on April 2009 to common stockholders of record on March 26 2009

Repayment of amounts outstanding under the Column Financial Warehouse Line of Credit

On March 2009 the Board authorized the repayment in full of the outstanding balance on the Column

Financial warehouse line of credit and the line was paid off on March 2009
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ITEM Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

ITEM 9A Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to

be disclosed in our Exchange Act reports is recorded processed summarized and reported within the time

periods specified in the SECs rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated

to our management including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer as appropriate to allow

timely decisions regarding required disclosures Notwithstanding the foregoing no matter how well control

system
is designed and operated it can provide only reasonable not absolute assurance that it will detect or

uncover failures within our company to disclose material information otherwise required to be set forth in our

periodic reports

As of the end of the period covered by this report we conducted an evaluation under the supervision and

with the participation of our management including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial

Officer of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures Based upon

that evaluation our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls

and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this report

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting during the three months ended

December 31 2008 that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect our internal

control over financial reporting

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial

reporting for the Company The Companys internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated

financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles The

Companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company

ii provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of

consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts

and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and

directors of the Company and

iii provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition

use or disposition of the Companys assets that could have material effect on the consolidated financial

statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk

that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with

the policies and procedures included in such controls may deteriorate

The Company conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting

based upon the framework in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO Based upon such evaluation our manage

ment concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31 2008
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The Companys effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008

has been audited by Deloitte Touche LLP an independent registered public accounting firm as stated in

their attestation report which is included immediately below
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Care Investment Trust Inc and subsidiaries

New York NY

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Care Investment Trust Inc and subsidiaries

the Company as of December 31 2008 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission The

Companys management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and

for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompany

ing management report on internal control over financial reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion

on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our

audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that

material weakness exists testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control

based on the assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the

circumstances We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed by or under the supervision of the

companys principal executive and principal financial officers or persons performing similar functions and

effected by the companys board of directors management and other personnel to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external

purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over

financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that

in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial

statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of

the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the

company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial

statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting including the possibility of

collusion or improper management override of controls material misstatements due to error or fraud may not

be prevented or detected on timely basis Also projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the

internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become

inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures

may deteriorate

In our opinion the Company maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2008 based on the criteria established in Internal Control Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules as of and for the year

ended December 31 2008 of the Company and our report dated March 16 2009 expressed an unqualified

opinion on those financial statements and financial statement schedules and includes an explanatory paragraph

regarding the fair value of assets that have been estimated by management in the absence of readily

determinable fair values

Is DELOITTE TOUCHE LLP

Parsippany NJ

March 16 2009
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ITEM 9B Other Information

None

Part III

ITEM 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance of the Registrant

The information called for by ITEM 10 is incorporated by reference to the information under the caption

Election of Directors in the Registrants definitive proxy statement relating to its 2008 Annual Meeting of

Stockholders to be held on June 2009

ITEM 11 Executive Compensation

The information required by ITEM 11 is incorporated by reference to the information under the caption

Executive Compensation in the Registrants definitive proxy statement relating to its Annual Meeting of

Stockholders to be held on June 2009

ITEM 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters

The information required by ITEM 12 is incorporated by reference to the information under the caption

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management in the Registrants definitive proxy

statement relating to its Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on June 2009

ITEM 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by ITEM 13 is incorporated by reference to the information under the captions

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence in the Registrants definitive

proxy statement relating to its Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on June 2009

ITEM 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by ITEM 14 is incorporated by reference to the information under the caption

Ratification of Selection of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm in the Registrants definitive

proxy statement relating to its Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on June 2009
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Part IV

ITEM 15 Exhibits Financial Statement Schedules

and Financial Statements and Schedules See Index to Financial Statements and Schedules included in

ITEM

Exhibits

Exhibit No Description

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant previously filed as

Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys Form 10-Q File No 001-33549 filed on August 14 2007 and

herein incorporated by reference

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant previously filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the

Companys Form 10-Q File No 001-33549 filed on August 14 2007 and herein incorporated

by reference

4.1 Form of Certificate for Common Stock previously filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Companys

Form 5-1 as amended File No 333-14 1634 and herein incorporated by reference

10.1 Assignment Agreement dated as of January 31 2009 previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the

Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on February 2009 and herein incorporated

by reference

10.2 Amendment No to Master Repurchase Agreement dated as of November 13 2008

previously filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Companys Form 10-Q File No 001-33549 filed on

November 14 2008 and herein incorporated by reference

10.3 Amendment to Management Agreement dated as of September 30 2008 previously filed as

Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on October 2008 and

herein incorporated by reference

10.4 Warrant to Purchase Common Stock dated as of September 30 2008 previously filed as

Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on October 2008 and

herein incorporated by reference

10.5 Mortgage Purchase Agreement dated as of September 30 2008 previously filed as Exhibit 10.3

to the Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on October 2008 and herein

incorporated by reference

10.6 Earn Out Agreement dated as of June 26 2008 previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the

Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on July 2008 and herein incorporated by

reference

10.7 Multifamily Note dated as of June 26 2008 previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys

Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on July 2008 and herein incorporated by reference

10.8 Exceptions to Non-Recourse Guaranty dated as of June 26 2008 previously filed as

Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on July 2008 and herein

incorporated by reference

10.9 Master Lease Agreement dated as of June 26 2008 previously filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the

Companys Form 8-K File No 00 1-33549 filed on July 2008 and herein incorporated by

reference

10.10 Amendment No to Master Repurchase Agreement dated as of June 26 2008 previously filed

as Exhibit 10.5 to the Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on July 2008 and

herein incorporated by reference

10.11 Purchase and Sale Contract dated as of May 14 2008 previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the

Companys Form 8-K File No 00 1-33549 filed on May 20 2008 and herein incorporated by

reference

10.12 Performance Share Award Agreement dated as of May 12 2008 previously filed as

Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys Form 10-Q File No 001-33549 filed on November 14 2008

and herein incorporated by reference
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Exhibit No Description

10.13 Restricted Stock Unit Agreement Under the 2007 Care Investment Trust Inc Equity Plan dated

as of April 2008 previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K

File No 001-33549 filed on April 14 2008 and herein incorporated by reference

10.14 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement Under the 2007 Care Investment Trust Inc Equity

Plan previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed

on April 14 2008 and herein incorporated by reference

10.15 Contribution and Purchase Agreement dated as of December 31 2007 previously filed as

Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on January 2008 and

herein incorporated by reference

10.16 Master Repurchase Agreement entered into by Care Investment Trust Inc and two of its

subsidiaries Care QRS 2007 RE Holdings Corp and Care Mezz QRS 2007 RE Holdings Corp
with Column Financial Inc previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 10-Q

File No 001-33549 filed on November 14 2007 and herein incorporated by reference

10.17 Registration Rights Agreement previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 10-Q

File No 001-33549 filed on August 14 2007 and herein incorporated by reference

10.18 Management Agreement previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Form 10-Q

File No 001-33549 filed on August 14 2007 and herein incorporated by reference

10.19 Contribution Agreement previously filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Form 10-Q

File No 001-33549 filed on August 14 2007 and herein incorporated by reference

10.20 Care Investment Trust Inc Equity Plan previously filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys
Form 10-Q File No 001-33549 filed on August 14 2007 and herein incorporated by

reference

10.21 Manager Equity Plan previously filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Companys Form lO-Q

File No 001-33549 filed on August 14 2007 and herein incorporated by reference

10.22 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under Care Investment Trust Inc Equity Plan previously

filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Companys Form S-il as amended File No 333-141634 and

herein incorporated by reference

10.23 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under Care Investment Trust Inc Equity Plan previously
filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Companys Form S-il as amended File No 333-141634 and

herein incorporated by reference

10.24 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under Care Investment Trust Inc Manager Equity Plan

previously filed as Exhibit 10.8 to the Companys Form S-li as amended

File No 333-141634 and herein incorporated by reference

10.25 Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into by the Registrants directors and officers

previously filed as Exhibit 10.9 to the Companys Form S-li as amended

File No 333-141634 and herein incorporated by reference

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Company

23.1 Consent of Deloitte Touche dated as of March 16 2009

31.1 Certification of CEO pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of CFO pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of CEO pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of CFO pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
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Care Investment Trust Inc and Subsidiaries

Schedule III Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation

December 31 2008

Dollars in thousands

Real Estate

Balance at December 31 2007

Additions during the year

Land 5020

Buildings and improvements 101524

Balance at December 31 2008 $106544

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance at December 31 2007

Additions during the year

Additions charged to operating expenses
1414

Balance at December 31 2008 1414
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Care Investment Trust Inc and Subsidiaries

Schedule IV Mortgage Loans on Real Estate

December 31 2008

Dollars in thousands

Location
Carrying Interest Maturity

Property Typea City State Amount Rate Date

SNF Middle River Maryland 9185 L3.75% 03/31/11

SNF/ALF/IL Various Washington/Oregon 26012 L2.75% 10/04/11

SNFd/e Various Michigan 23767 L2.25 03/26/12

SNFd/e Various Texas 6540 L3.00% 06/30/11

SNFd/e Austin Texas 4604 L3.00% 05/30/11

SNFb/d/e Various Virginia 27401 L2.50% 03/01/12

SNF/ICFd/e Various Illinois 29045 L3.00% 10/31/11

SNFd/e San Antonio Texas 8412 L3.50% 02/09/11

SNF/ALFd/e Nacogdoches Texas 9696 L3.15% 10/02/11

SNF/Sr.Appts/ALFe Various Texas/Louisiana 15682 L4.30% 02/01/11

ALFe Daytona Beach Florida 3688 L3.43% 08/11/11

SNF/ILc/d/e Georgetown Texas 5980 L3.00% 07/31/09

SNF Aurora Colorado 9151 L5.74% 08/04/10

SNFe Various Michigan 10080 L7.00% 02/19/10

Investment in loans gross 189243

Valuation allowance 29327

Loans at lower of cost or

market $159916

SNF refers to skilled nursing facilities ALF refers to assisted living facilities IL refers to independent liv

ing facilities ICF refers to intermediate care facility and Sr Appts refers to senior living apartments

Loan sold to Manager in February 2009 totaling $22543 See Note

Borrower has the ability to extend the maturity date to 7/31/12 upon advanced written notice and subject

to compliance with certain covenants stipulated in the loan agreement

Pledged as collateral for borrowings under our warehouse line of credit On March 2009 Care repaid

the outstanding borrowings on its warehouse line in full

The mortgages are subject to various interest rate floors ranging from 6.00% to 11.5%

Balance at December 31 2007 $236833

Additions

New loans and advances on existing loans 10864

Amortization of loan fees 380

Deductions

Repayments 54245
Amortization of premium 1927
Lower of cost or market reserve 29327

Loss on sale of loan to our Manager 2662

Balance at December 31 2008 $159916
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the

Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

Care Investment Trust Inc

By Is/ Frank Plenskofski

Frank Plenskofski

Chief Financial Officer

and Treasurer

March 16 2009

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been duly signed

below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signature
Title Date

Is Scott Keilman President and Chief Executive Officer March 16 2009

Scott Keilman Principal Executive Officer

Is Frank Plenskofski Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer March 16 2009

Frank Plenskofski Principal Financial and Accounting

Officer

Is Kirk Gorman Chairman of the Board of Directors March 16 2009

Kirk Gorman

Is Flint Besecker Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors March 16 2009

Flint Besecker

Is Gerald Bisbee Jr Director March 16 2009

Gerald Bisbee Jr

Is Alexandra Lebenthal Director March 16 2009

Alexandra Lebenthal

Is Karen Robards Director March 16 2009

Karen Robards

Is Rainer Twiford Director March 16 2009

Rainer Twiford

Is Steve Warden Director March 16 2009

Steve Warden
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No Description

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant previously filed as

Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys Form 10-Q File No 001-33549 filed on August 14 2007 and

herein incorporated by reference

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant previously filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the

Companys Form 10-Q File No 001-33549 filed on August 14 2007 and herein incorporated

by reference

4.1 Form of Certificate for Common Stock previously filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Companys
Form S-li as amended File No 333-141634 and herein incorporated by reference

10.1 Assignment Agreement dated as of January 31 2009 previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the

Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on February 2009 and herein incorporated

by reference

10.2 Amendment No to Master Repurchase Agreement dated as of November 13 2008

previously filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Companys Form 10-Q File No 001-33549 filed on

November 14 2008 and herein incorporated by reference

10.3 Amendment to Management Agreement dated as of September 30 2008 previously filed as

Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on October 2008 and

herein incorporated by reference

10.4 Warrant to Purchase Common Stock dated as of September 30 2008 previously filed as

Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on October 2008 and

herein incorporated by reference

10.5 Mortgage Purchase Agreement dated as of September 30 2008 previously filed as Exhibit 10.3

to the Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on October 2008 and herein

incorporated by reference

10.6 Earn Out Agreement dated as of June 26 2008 previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the

Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 flied on July 2008 and herein incorporated by

reference

10.7 Multifamily Note dated as of June 26 2008 previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys
Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on July 2008 and herein incorporated by reference

10.8 Exceptions to Non-Recourse Guaranty dated as of June 26 2008 previously filed as

Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on July 2008 and herein

incorporated by reference

10.9 Master Lease Agreement dated as of June 26 2008 previously filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the

Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on July 2008 and herein incorporated by

reference

10.10 Amendment No to Master Repurchase Agreement dated as of June 26 2008 previously filed

as Exhibit 10.5 to the Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on July 2008 and

herein incorporated by reference

10.11 Purchase and Sale Contract dated as of May 14 2008 previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the

Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on May 20 2008 and herein incorporated by

reference

10.12 Performance Share Award Agreement dated as of May 12 2008 previously filed as

Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys Form 10-Q File No 001-33549 filed on November 14 2008

and herein incorporated by reference

10.13 Restricted Stock Unit Agreement Under the 2007 Care Investment Trust Inc Equity Plan dated

as of April 2008 previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K

File No 00 1-33549 filed on April 14 2008 and herein incorporated by reference

10.14 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement Under the 2007 Care Investment Trust Inc Equity

Plan previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed

on April 14 2008 and herein incorporated by reference
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Exhibit No Description

10.15 Contribution and Purchase Agreement dated as of December 31 2007 previously filed as

Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K File No 001-33549 filed on January 2008 and

herein incorporated by reference

10.16 Master Repurchase Agreement entered into by Care Investment Trust Inc and two of its

subsidiaries Care QRS 2007 RE Holdings Corp and Care Mezz QRS 2007 RE Holdings Corp

with Column Financial Inc previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 10-Q

File No 001-33549 filed on November 14 2007 and herein incorporated by reference

10.17 Registration Rights Agreement previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 10-Q

File No 001-33549 filed on August 14 2007 and herein incorporated by reference

10.18 Management Agreement previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Form lO-Q

File No 001-33549 filed on August 14 2007 and herein incorporated by reference

10.19 Contribution Agreement previously filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Form 10-Q

File No 001-33549 filed on August 14 2007 and herein incorporated by reference

10.20 Care Investment Trust Inc Equity Plan previously filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys

Form 10-Q File No 001-33549 filed on August 14 2007 and herein incorporated by

reference

10.21 Manager Equity Plan previously filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Companys Form 10-Q

File No 001-33549 filed on August 14 2007 and herein incorporated by reference

10.22 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under Care Investment Trust Inc Equity Plan previously

filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Companys Form S-il as amended File No 333-141634 and

herein incorporated by reference

10.23 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under Care Investment Trust Inc Equity Plan previously

filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Companys Form S-Il as amended File No 333-141634 and

herein incorporated by reference

10.24 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under Care Investment Trust Inc Manager Equity Plan

previously filed as Exhibit 10.8 to the Companys Form S-li as amended

File No 333-141634 and herein incorporated by reference

10.25 Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into by the Registrants directors and officers

previously filed as Exhibit 10.9 to the Companys Form S-Il as amended

File No 333-14 1634 and herein incorporated by reference

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Company

23.1 Consent of Deloitte Touche dated as of March 16 2009

31.1 Certification of CEO pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of CFO pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of CEO pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of CFO pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
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EXHIBIT 21.1

LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES OF CARE INVESTMENT TRUST INC

Name Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Formation

Care QRS 2007 RE Holdings Corp Delaware

Care Mezz QRS 2007 RE Holdings Corp Delaware

ERC Sub LLC Delaware

ERC Sub L.P Delaware

Care YBE Subsidiary LLC Delaware



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement No 333-145410 on Form S-8 of our

reports dated March 16 2009 relating to the consolidated financial statements and financial statement

schedules of Care Investment Trust Inc and subsidiaries which report expresses an unqualified opinion and

includes an explanatory paragraph regarding the fair value of assets that have been estimated by management

in the absence of readily determinable fair values and the effectiveness of Care Investment Trust Inc.s

internal control over financial reporting appearing in the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Care Investment

Trust Inc for the year ended December 31 2008

Is Deloitte Touche LLP

Parsippany New Jersey

March 16 2009



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

Scott Keilman certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Care Investment Trust Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to

state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which

such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control

over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15f and 5d- 15f for the registrant and

have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures

to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant

including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities

particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end

of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the

case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of registrants

board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls

over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to

record process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 16 2009

Is Scott Kellman

Scott Keilman

President and Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

Frank Plenskofski certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Care Investment Trust Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to

state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which

such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e and internal control

over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15f and Sd-i 5f for the registrant and

have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures

to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant

including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities

particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end

of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the

case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of registrants

board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls

over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 16 2009

Is Frank Plenskofski

Frank Plenskofski

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer



EXHIBIT 32.1

Certification Pursuant to Section 18 U.S.C Section 1350

As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Care Investment Trust Inc the Company on Form 10-K for

the year ended December 31 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof

the Report Scott Keliman the Chief Executive Officer of the Company certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C

1350 as adopted pursuant to 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d as applicable of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and

ii The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial

condition and results of operations of the Company as of and for the periods covered in the Report

Is Scott Kellman

Scott Keliman

President and Chief Executive Officer

Care Investment Trust Inc

Dated March 16 2009



EXHIBIT 32.2

Certification Pursuant to Section 18 U.S.C Section 1350

As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Care Investment Trust Inc the Company on Form 10-K for

the year ended December 31 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof

the Report Frank Plenskofski the Chief Financial Officer of the Company certify pursuant to

18 U.S.C 1350 as adopted pursuant to 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d as applicable of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and

ii The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial

condition and results of operations of the Company as of and for the periods covered in the Report

Is Frank Plenskofski

Frank Plenskofski

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Care Investment Trust Inc

Dated March 16 2009
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